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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

To all shareholders,

2021 is a challenging year to our Group, the total revenue decreased to
approximately US$52.3 million by approximately 6.6% for the year
ended 31 December 2021, as compared with last year. In 2021, We are
experiencing unprecedented harsh external environmental factors,
including but not limited to, port congestion, increase in crew
expenses due to the impact of COVID-19, and the significant increase
in bunker price, all these factors have significant adverse impact to our
business performance.

Although we face unfavorable environmental and market factors, our
teams operated the fleet effectively, the utilization rate of vessels
maintained at a high level. Recently, we have entered into time charter
agreements on a fixed term basis with reputable customers, steady
income to our Group is expected in the coming years. Looking forward
2022, we remain optimistic about our business prospects, and has
ability to resolve the difficulties and uncertainties from the markets.

Taking into account some of the positive information and the latest
market developments from the industry, we expect the future
prospects of the industry of asphalt tanker chartering and dry bulk
chartering to remain optimistic. From time to time, we closely monitor
various adverse factors, such as variant COVID-19, the war between
Russia and Ukraine and global oil price etc, so that we can respond in a
timely manner,

Following the last year's footprint, our gearing is improving this year by
gradual repayment of debts and net cash inflow from operation. Our
Group's financial position and liquidity still maintain at a healthy level,
and has sufficient financial resources to meet our financial obligation.

We would like to express our gratitude to all of our employees for their
dedication and professionalism, and most of all, our shareholders,
customers, and suppliers for their continued support. Going forward,
we will continue to refine and optimize our business in order to further
enhance the long-term returns of our Group.

Mr. Chen Ming
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFEUBERE

A summary of the results, and of the assets, liabilities and non-  #&#k B AR B2 HIEBZ I B HRER AR
controlling interest of the Group for the last five financial years, as S£EiBE R AN KFEENEENREE -
extracted from the published audited financial statements of the B & R IEEIREREHLMIIT -

Company is set out below.

RESULTS

Year ended 31 December

HE12A31BILEE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20174 20184 20194 20204F 2021 5
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$’000
FET FET FET FET S
Revenue WA 33,727 42,716 49,751 55,973 52,331
Cost of sales SHERAR (20,458) (28,225) (35,762) (39,309) (44,022)
Gross profit EFH 13,269 14,491 13,989 16,664 8,309
Other income Eblgzs 332 8,222 1,489 634 1,299
Administrative expenses TEB S (2,095) (3,864) (2,535) (3,199) (3,664)
Other operating expenses Hi&ERY (350) (7,110) (634) (596) (1,034)
Exchange gains/(losses)net  [& ¥ Uz, (E518)
HEE (1,543) 343 (218) (89) 417
Profit from operations REFBRN 9613 12,082 12,091 13414 5,327
Finance costs BMEKE (3,581) (5,469) (6,087) (4,806) (3,596)
Profit before tax BT A E F 6,032 6,613 6,004 8,608 1,731
Income tax expense A= - - - (5) (10)
Profit for the year FE A 6,032 6613 6,004 8,603 1,721
Attributable to: NE=SEY
Owners of the Company ZA/NGIE 2N 5,489 6,613 6,004 8,603 1,721
Non-controlling interests e 543 - - - =
6,032 6,613 6,004 8,603 1,721

XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Five-Year Financial Summary

EFEUBERE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE
As at 31 December 12 A31H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20174 20184 2019 5 2020 5 2021 &
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
FET FETT FETT FET FEx
Total assets EERE 164,033 211,014 218,965 212,525 200,499
Total liabilities BEER (89,598) (111,910) (113,875) (93,218) (79,469)
74,435 99,104 105,090 119,307 121,030
ERCEEBAR AT /2021 FER 7



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEN W R D

The board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Director”) of Xin Yuan
Enterprises Group Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present the
audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“Year Under Review"), together with the comparative figures for the
corresponding period in 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

For the year ended 31 December 2021, our Group recorded revenue of
approximately US$52.3 million, representing a decrease of 6.6%
compared with the last year, with two operating segments which
included asphalt tanker chartering services and bulk carrier chartering
services. Our Group principally provides asphalt tanker chartering
services under various types of charter agreements comprising: (i) time
charters; and (ii) voyage charters and contracts of Affreightment
("“CoAs"). During the Year Under Review, our Group did not have any
asphalt trading transaction.

Currently, we operate a fleet of twelve vessels with total capacity of
approximately 470,000 dwt, of which five vessels are operated under
asphalt tanker time charters, five vessels are operated under asphalt
tanker voyage charters or CoAs and the remaining two second-hand
Capesize vessels are operated under bulk carrier time charters. Those
vessels operated under time charters are chartered to customers with
high performance capabilities on a long-term basis ranging from one
to three years, which generated steady income for our Group.

We endeavour to provide high quality asphalt tanker and bulk carrier
chartering services. We have our own team of engineers and we are
actively involved in the design of our vessels. Our team works closely
with ship design experts, our customers, shipyards, international
classification societies and banks or finance lease companies. Our major
customers include global shipping and logistics groups, global
independent energy traders, and publicly traded energy companies
based in the United States. Our Group has diversified our business and
services and gradually developed our own customers portfolio.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEN W R D

With our Group's experienced management team and competitive
strengths, our Directors believe that our Group is well-positioned to
further develop our presence in the asphalt tanker chartering services
market and bulk carrier time chartering services. Hence, our Group
maintains the variety of services types with a balanced approach to
meet different demands in the market.

At the beginning of 2022, affected by Chinese holidays and the Winter
Olympics, the domestic demand has seasonal downturn in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The asphalt price has not been
significantly increased, despite the global crude oil price continues
demonstrating high volatility. Under these adverse situations, and
asphalt with low margins as compared to crude oil, the supply of
asphalt begins to slow down. On the whole, the asphalt trade activities
were at a flat level in the first two months, and the asphalt shipping
market weakened.

According to the work report of the 13th National People’s Congress, a
strategy is adopted to expand domestic demand and accelerate the
transformation of the economic growth model, that notably
developing infrastructure investment, major in transportation and
water conservancy projects and increase the national railway
development capital, which may result in the growing asphalt demand.
As at the same time, the 14th Five Year Plan has set a new pace for
decarbonisation for achieving peak carbon emission before 2030 and
carbon neutrality by 2060. This puts pressure on the growing national
refinery industry. We expect that further regulations and reduction on
production capacity may be imposed on domestic refineries. In the
long run, the domestic asphalt supply will shrink and boosting
imported asphalt, the impact on shipping seems to be positive.

Given the harsh reality faced by the global effort to contain COVID-19,
though the vaccine rollout continues to accelerate in many countries,
global human coexistence with fast mutating COVID-19 will be
inevitable, and people have found ways to return to a semblance of
normal life. The impact affecting the global and domestic economy by
COVID-19 is expected to lessen gradually, the operating costs of vessels
for the epidemic prevention measures may decrease accordingly.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWmE D

Despite there was strong freight rates of dry bulk market in 2021, one
of the key factors was inefficient supply of shipping capacity to
customers, with ships being tied up longer at ports due to COVID-19
restrictions and disruptions. Looking forward 2022, dry bulk market is
expected to increase driven by low supply of shipping capacity, rising
fuel price and strong demand for most dry bulk commodities, while
freight rates may face correction when vaccines reduce pandemic
impacts. With the end of the rainy season, the iron ore export of Brazil
is expected to improve, in light of the prices of dry bulk commodities
remain high. Also, the bauxite production from Guinea will continue to
expand. Although the coal demand is greatly affected by the policies
and weather, there is increasing likelihood for growth of domestic
production and imports in response to the shortages. The limited
orderbook continues to lower fleet growth in short term, thus the
overall expected demand growth may exceed capacity growth.

Nowadays, we are facing many challenges and uncertainties, including
the effects of global economic situation, geopolitical and trade risks,
and the ever-evolving global health landscape, also the war between
Russia and Ukraine has brought uncertainty to the markets.
Nonetheless, we remain optimistic about our business prospects.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021, our revenue decreased to
approximately US$52.3 million by approximately US$3.7 million or 6.6%
from approximately US$56.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. For the Year Under Review, such decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in revenue generated from asphalt tanker chartering services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEN W R D

Revenue generated from asphalt tanker time charter services
decreased by approximately US$7.1 million or 32.3% from
approximately US$22.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately US$14.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. Such decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to (i) off-hire
during dry-docking as one vessel was required to dry-dock for passing
the renewal survey every five years, (i) off-hire due to delay in shipping
schedule as a result of a vessel carried out an temporary voyage repair
in Japan instead of Shanghai because of the epidemic control
measures in Shanghai, (iii) the absence of a one-off compensation of
approximately US$1.3 million from the early termination of a charter
agreement in respect of a vessel for the year ended 31 December 2020
in the Year Under Review, (iv) the decline in revenue from Zhuang
Yuan Ao and Lilstella of approximately US$5.9 million in aggregate as
they have been changed from time charter to voyage charter since
January 2021 and May 2021, respectively, but partially offset by (v) the
revenue from Orcstella increased by approximately US$1.1 million for
the Year Under Review, as it has been changed operation from voyage
charter to time charter during the first half of 2021.

Revenue generated from asphalt tanker voyage charter, and CoAs also
increased by approximately US$3.7 million or 15.9% from
approximately US$23.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately US$27.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, was mainly due to (i) the increase in revenue from Zhuang Yuan
Ao and Lilstella of approximately US$5.9 million and US$2.4 million,
respectively, as they have been changed from time charter to voyage
charter since January 2021 and May 2021, but partially offset by (i) the
decline in revenue from Orcstella by approximately US$3.4 million for
the Year Under Review, as it has been changed operation from voyage
charter to time charter during the first half of 2021, and (iii) off-hire
during dry-docking as one vessel was required to dry-dock for passing
the renewal survey every five years and another vessel was required to
dry-dock for passing the intermediate survey every two to three years.

During the Year Under Review, two second-hand Capesize vessels,
namely XYG Fortune and XYMG Noble, contributed stable revenue
from bulk carrier time chartering services to our Group, amounting to
approximately US$10.5 million and US$10.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWmE D

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales increased by approximately US$4.7 million or 12.0%,
from approximately US$39.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately US$44.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. However, such increase was not proportional to the
decrease in revenue of approximately 6.6%, due to particular adverse
situations, including (i) the increase in crew expenses due to the impact
of COVID-19, (i) the significant increase in bunker price and (iii) the
increase in dry-docking costs as four vessels were required to dry-dock
for passing the regular renewal or intermediate survey.

The increase in cost of sales was mainly due to the combined effect of
following factors:

(i) our bunker fees recorded an increase of approximately US$2.8
million or 50.0%, as the global bunker indices have shown a
moderate uptrend, the average bunker price increased by
approximately 40% to 50% in 2021 as compared to 2020;

(i) our crew expenses recorded an increase of approximately US$1.9
million or 15.1%, resulting from more expensive crew change,
quarantine and other pandemic-related manning costs, which
was mainly due to the impact of COVID-19; and

(i) our port charge increased by approximately US$0.3 million, which
was mainly due to the increase in operations of asphalt tanker
voyage charter;

but partially offset by

(iv) our depreciation recorded a decrease of approximately US$0.7

million or 6.3%, mainly due to the fact that certain dry docking
have been fully depreciated in prior year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN W R D

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our Group's gross profit decreased sharply by approximately US$8.4
million or 50.3%, from approximately US$16.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately US$8.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. Such decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in the gross profit generated from asphalt tanker chartering
services.

Besides, our overall gross profit margin decreased dramatically from
approximately 29.8% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately 15.9% for the year ended 31 December 2021, which was
mainly attributable to the decline in gross profit margin from asphalt
tanker chartering services, in particular, resulting from the adverse
market factors.

Our gross profit generated from asphalt tanker time charters services
decreased by approximately US$4.2 million or 75.0% for the year ended
31 December 2021, and its gross profit margin dropped by
approximately 16.1 percentage points. Such decrease was in line with
the decline in revenue from asphalt tanker time chartering by
approximately 32.3%, and also the increase in crew expenses due to
the impact of COVID-19.

Our gross profit from asphalt tanker voyage charters and CoAs
decreased by approximately US$4.2 million or 65.5% for the year ended
31 December 2021. Such decrease was mainly due to (i) the increase in
crew expenses due to the impact of COVID-19, and (ii) significant rise of
bunker price market in 2021, but partially offset by (iii) the increase in
revenue generated from asphalt tanker voyage charters and CoAs of
approximately 15.9%. Accordingly, its gross profit margin decreased by
approximately 19.3 percentage points.
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Our gross profit from bulk carrier time chartering services slightly
increased by approximately US$97,000 or 2.1% for the year ended 31
December 2021, and its gross profit margin also increased by
approximately 1.7 percentage points for the Year Under Review. It was
mainly attributable to (i) the aggregate of port charges and repair costs
decreased by approximately US$0.6 million for the Year Under Review,
given our Group maintained stable revenue from bulk carrier chartering
services, and operating costs were incurred for the two second-hand
Capesize vessels prior to the commencement of their time charter in
the early of 2020 but less costs were incurred during the charter period
in 2021; but partially offset by (i) the increase in crew expenses due to
the impact of COVID-19.

Other income

Our other income increased by approximately US$0.7 million or 116.7%
from approximately US$0.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately US$1.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. The increase was mainly due to (i) the increase in non-recurring
insurance compensation income of approximately US$0.7 million in
relation to the repair costs of vessels for the Year Under Review; and (ii)
the increase in net fair value gains on derivative financial instruments
(including foreign currency forward contracts and interest rate swap
contracts) of approximately US$0.1 million.

Administrative expenses

Our Group's administrative expenses increased by approximately
US$0.5 million or 15.6% from approximately USS$3.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately US$3.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, mainly due to the increase in staff costs
(including directors emoluments) of approximately US$0.3 million.

Other operating expenses

Our Group recorded other operating expenses of approximately US$1.0
million, mainly in relation to an accident related costs of a vessel, for
the year ended 31 December 2021. For the year ended 31 December
2020, other operating expenses was approximately US$0.6 million,
mainly in relation to the allowance for other receivables and vessels
repair Costs.
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Exchange gains, net

Our Group recorded net exchange gains of approximately USS$0.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, while net exchange
losses of approximately US$89,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020, which was principally attributable to the exchange fluctuation of
our Group's borrowings denominated in Singapore Dollars ("SGD”).
United States dollars ("USD") appreciated against SGD by
approximately 2.0% for the year ended 31 December 2021, but
depreciated against SGD by approximately 2.2% for the year ended 31
December 2020, respectively, resulting in exchange gains for the year
ended 31 December 2021 but exchange losses for the year ended 31
December 2020, when translation of the borrowings denominated in
SGD. Besides, our Group gradually decreased the borrowings
denominated in SGD from approximately US$13.2 million as at 31
December 2020 to approximately US$8.3 million as at 31 December
2021.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased by approximately USS$1.2 million or 25.2%
for the year ended 31 December 2021 as compared with the same
period last year. The decrease was mainly due to gradual repayment of
borrowings and lease liabilities during the prior and current year.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense of approximately US$10,000 and US$5,000 was
recognised for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
respectively, mainly represented under-provision for Hong Kong Profits
tax and Singapore Corporate Income Tax in prior year for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively. For the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020, Singapore Corporate Income Tax has
been provided at rate of 17%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC Corporate Income Tax
was made since our Group has no assessable profit for the year ended
31 December 2021.
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Profit for the year

Our profit for the Year Under Review decreased significantly by
approximately US$6.9 million or 80.2% from approximately US$8.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately US$1.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, while our net profit
margin also decreased from approximately 15.4% to approximately
3.3% for the respective years. Such decrease in our profit for the Year
Under Review was primarily due to (i) the decrease in revenue
generated from asphalt tanker chartering services of approximately
US$3.4 million, mainly attributable to (a) the absence of a one-off
compensation from early termination of the time charter agreement of
a vessel, (b) off-hire during dry-docking as four vessels were required to
dry-dock for passing the regular renewal or intermediate survey, and (c)
off-hire due to the delay in shipping schedule as a result of a vessel
carried out an temporary voyage repair in Japan instead of Shanghai
due to the epidemic control measures in Shanghai; (i) the increase in
bunker fee due to the significant rise of global bunker price; and (iii) the
increase in crew expenses due to the impact of COVID-19.

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2021, our Group's total assets amounted to
approximately US$200.5 million (2020: US$212.5 million) with net
assets amounting to approximately US$121.0 million (2020: US$119.3
million). As at 31 December 2021, the gearing ratio (total debts divided
by the total equity attributable to owners of our Company) of our
Group was 0.60, representing a decrease of 20.0 percentage points as
compared to that of 0.75 as at 31 December 2020. Net debt to equity
ratio (net debt, being our total debts net of bank and cash balances
and pledged bank deposits, by total equity attributable to owners of
our Company) of our Group was 0.55 as at 31 December 2021,
representing a decrease of 16.7 percentage points as compared to that
of 0.66 as at 31 December 2020. As at 31 December 2021, the current
ratio of our Group was 0.22, representing a decrease of 51.1 percentage
points as compared to that of 0.45 as at 31 December 2020.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the liquidity position
gradually decreased due to the repayment of borrowings and lease
liabilities, on the other hand, the gearing ratio was improving. Our
Group adopts a balanced approach to cash and financial management
to ensure proper risk control and lower the costs of funds, and seek to
maintain an optimal level of liquidity that can meet our working capital
needs while supporting a healthy level of business and our various
growth strategies. Our Group finances our operations and growth
primarily through cash generated from operations, borrowing and
finance lease arrangement and from the net proceeds of the new
shares issued in prior year.

As at 31 December 2021, our Group had net current liabilities of
approximately US$32.3 million. Our Directors are confident that our
Group has the ability to continue to attain profitable and positive cash
flows operations in the immediate and longer terms. In order to
strengthen our liquidity in the foreseeable future, our Group has taken
several measures, including but not limited to (i) on 30 December 2021,
our Group entered into a two-year US$4.0 million loan facilities with a
related company, of which US$0.3 million has been utilised as at 31
December 2021; (ii) our Group entered into a finance lease
arrangement of US$16.0 million with a financial institution on 4 March
2022; (i) negotiating with banks and other financial institutions in
advance for renewal and obtaining new banking facilities or financing
arrangement; (iv) our Group has been taking various cost control
measures to tighten the costs of operations; and (v) our Group has
been implementing various strategies to enhance our Group's revenue
and profitability. Considering the current and anticipated future
liquidity of our Group and the above measures, our Directors have
concluded that our Group will have sufficient working capital to meet
in full its financial obligations as they fall due and accordingly the
consolidated financial statements has been prepared on a going
concern basis.
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As at 31 December 2021, our Group's borrowings and lease liabilities of
approximately US$72.1 million in aggregate, decreased by
approximately US$16.8 million as compared to approximately US$88.9
million as at 31 December 2020, which was primarily due to repayment
of debts financing by the profits generated from operations and
general working capital.

As at 31 December 2021, our Group had pledged bank deposits and
bank and cash balances of approximately US$5.2 million in aggregate,
representing a decrease of approximately US$5.0 million as compared
to approximately US$10.2 million as at 31 December 2020. Such cash
outflows were mainly used for operations as well as the repayment of
borrowings and lease liabilities. Our pledged bank deposits and most
of our bank and cash balances are denominated in USD.

Treasury Policies

The primary objective of our Group's capital management is to
maintain its ability to continue as a going concern so that our Group
can constantly provide returns for the shareholders of our Company
(the “Shareholders”) and benefits for other stakeholders by securing
access to financing at reasonable costs. Our Group actively and
regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and makes
adjustment by taking into consideration the changes in economic
conditions, its future capital requirements, prevailing and projected
profitability and operating cash flows, projected capital expenditures
and projected strategic investment opportunities.

INDEBTEDNESS

As at 31 December 2021, our Group's indebtedness mainly comprised
of borrowings and lease liabilities of approximately US$40.6 million and
US$31.5 million, respectively. Our borrowings are denominated in USD
and SGD, while lease liabilities are denominated in USD. All borrowings
and lease liabilities are arranged at floating rates, thus exposing our
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. During the year ended 31
December 2021, our Group used interest rate swaps in order to
mitigate its exposure associated with fluctuations relating to interest
cash flows.
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The maturity of borrowings and lease liabilities as at 31 December 2021
is as follows:

R2021F 128318 BEREHEEEAED
BIHAE T :

Lease

Borrowings liabilities

RN HEESE

US$'000 US$'000

FET FET

Within one year —F PR 17,058 17,121
More than one year, but not exceeding —FE P B BIERE

two years 8,959 14,256
More than two years, but not more than MELA FENBARF

five years 14,335 76

More than five years AFU 326 -

40,678 31,453

As at 31 December 2021, our borrowings comprised of bank loans,
other loans and loans from a related company, amounting to
approximately US$16.7 million, US$23.6 million and US$0.3 million,
respectively.

Bank loans were obtained for the sole purpose of the construction of
vessels. As at 31 December 2021, the bank loans were secured by the
followings:

(@) Mortgage over our Group's vessels;

(b)  Corporate guarantees provided by our Company and subsidiaries;
and

(c) Pledged bank deposits and restricted bank balances.
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Other loans were obtained for the additional working capital of our
Group. As at 31 December 2021, the other loans were secured by the
followings:

(@) Mortgage/Charge over our Group's vessels;

(b)  Corporate guarantees provided by our Company and subsidiaries;
() Restricted bank balances; and

(d)  Shares of certain subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2021, our lease liabilities of approximately US$31.2
million were secured by:

(@) Charges over our Group's certain right-of-use assets;

(b) Corporate guarantee provided by our Company and/or
subsidiaries;

(c) Restricted bank balances; and
(d)  Shares of certain subsidiaries.

The remaining lease liabilities of approximately US$0.3 million was in
relation to the office properties leases and was not secured by any
collateral.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

Our Group has a certain exposure to foreign currency risk as some of
our business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the respective Group
entities such as SGD and Renminbi. Our Group has also adopted a
foreign exchange rate and interest rate risk control policy to manage
the foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. Our Group monitors the
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
transactions to mitigate significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise. Our Group has foreign currency forward contracts to
hedge the foreign currency risk in respect of borrowings denominated
in SGD.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of pledged bank
deposits, bank balances restricted from being used and vessels
pledged as securities for our Group's borrowings amounted to
approximately US$1.4 million, USS$1.5 million and US$112.9 million,
respectively. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of vessels
as right-of-use assets held by our Group and bank balances restricted
from being used under finance leases arrangement amounted to
approximately US$77.6 million and US$0.6 million, respectively.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT
As at 31 December 2021, our Group did not have any material capital
commitment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2021, our Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

We value our employees and recognise the importance of a good
relationship with our employees. We recruit our employees based on
their work experience, educational background and qualifications. To
maintain and ensure the quality of our employees, we provide our
personnel formal and on-the-job training to enhance their technical
skills as well as knowledge of industry quality standards and work place
safety standards. As at 31 December 2021, our Group had a total of 36
employees of which 31 were located in the PRC, 2 were located in
Hong Kong and 3 were located in Singapore. The remuneration to our
employees includes salaries and allowances. Employees are
remunerated according to their qualifications, experiences, job nature,
performance and with reference to market conditions.

Our Group's total employee benefit expenses (including Directors’
emoluments) for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 were
approximately US$2.1 million and US$1.8 million, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD
Our Group had not held any significant investments during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by
our Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 6 September 2018 and which became
effective on 26 September 2018 (the “Listing Date”). Under the Share
Option Scheme, Eligible Participants (as defined below) (including
Directors, full-time employees of and advisers and consultants to our
Company or our subsidiaries) may be granted options which entitle
them to subscribe for the shares of the Company (the “Shares”), when
aggregated with options granted under any other scheme,
representing initially not more than 10% of the Shares in issue on the
Listing Date. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option
Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from that date. No share
option had ever been granted under the Share Option Scheme since
its adoption. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
“Report of the Directors” of this annual report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no definite future plan for material investments or
acquisition of material capital assets as at 31 December 2021.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE SUBSCRIPTIONS
Pursuant to the subscription agreements dated 19 May 2020, the
Company allotted and issued, and the subscribers subscribed for, an
aggregate of 40,000,000 Shares at HK$1.092 per Share for an aggregate
cash consideration of HK$43,680,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$5,628,866) on 3 June 2020 (the “Subscriptions”).

The aggregate gross proceeds of the Subscriptions amounted to
HK$43,680,000 (equivalent to approximately US$5,628,866) and the
aggregate net proceeds, after the deduction of the related expenses,
was approximately HK$43,280,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$5,577,320). An analysis of the amount utilised up to 31 December
2021 is set out below:

AEEEREREARAR

BIE B H A 202055 A 19 BRE R -
RN EH2020F 6 A3 HIZFIRAZS 1.092
78 70 Bt B & 32174 ££40,000,000 A% A% 15 -
i 52 8 A LA 28 3R & (8 43,680,000, 7T (18
ERA156288663% ) RIEZ ERMN (1R
BEE]) -

REFBEB 2 HMEREEBEARA
43,680,000 7T (FHE 1A 495,628866 FE 7T )
MK EEAX % 2B FREAEN A
43,280,0008 JT (M8 R 475,577,320 TT) °
HE2021F12A31BHEHRSBENDINT
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Proposed use of
proceeds as
disclosed in the Utilised

announcement Un-utilised during the Un-utilised
of the Company asat year ended asat
dated 19 May 1 January 31 December 31 December
2020 2021 2021 2021

EANCRER - F

202055 19H
D ERE #2021 5 Bz F #2021 5
JEC B 1A1H 12A318 12A31H
BERAZ AEBA LEECBA REA
HK' million HK' million HK' million HK' million
AEAT BEAT BEAT AEAT
General working capital —REEES 433 433 150 283

The net proceeds from the Subscriptions were used or are proposed to
be used as intended, as set out in the Company’s announcement dated
19 May 2020. The un-utilised net proceed of approximately HK$28.3
million as at 31 December 2021 is to be utilised in the next two years.

RIBEIEM TSR FED IR QT
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 4 March 2022, our Group entered into a finance lease agreement of
US$16.0 million for the additional working capital of our Group. The
lease is repayable in three years, interest bearing and secured by the
following:

(i) charge over a vessel of our Group;

(i) corporate guarantee provided by our Company;

(iii)  restricted bank balance; and

(iv)  100% of the shares of a subsidiary.

Further on 9 March 2022, our Group received US$9,500,000, being the

net amount after repayment of other loan, from the financial
institution.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Chen Ming

Mr. Chen Ming (PREG ), aged 26, is our executive Director and the
chairman of the Board. Mr. Chen was appointed as our executive
Director on 25 March 2021 and chairman of the Board on 20 December
2021, who has approximately 3 years of experience in corporate
governance. From September 2018 to October 2020, Mr. Chen worked
in Xinhua Fortune Group Company Limited* (F2#£ 81 & £ B B R A 7))
(a company primarily engaged in iron and steel, e-commerce,
agriculture, real estate, tourism and other industries coordinated
development) as the assistant to the chairman, responsible for assisting
the chairman of the board to call and preside over the general meeting
of the management, organising the discussion of the company's
development plan, operation policy, annual plan and major issues in
daily operation.

Mr. Chen is the son of Mr. Chen Maochun, who held a total of
116,000,000 Shares, representing approximately 26.36% of the share
interest in the Company through his wholly owned company named
UNIVERSAL INTERNATIONAL TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG) LIMITED (R
FRBERER(ER)BRAR).

Mr. Chen graduated from Beijing Sport University (1t 88 & X&) and
received a bachelor's degree in Sports Economics And Management in
July 2018.

Chen Jiagan

Mr. Chen Jiagan (BRZR# 5L 4), aged 47, is our executive Director and
vice chairman of the Board. Mr. Chen was appointed as our executive
Director and vice chairman of the Board on 11 March 2022, who has over
21 years of experience in securities investment. From July 2000 to March
2004, Mr. Chen served as a manager at MF Securities Co,, Ltd. (B35 3% %
BRE(EZAR]) (currently known as Dongxing Securities Corporation
Limited (R BI85 A% 19 B PR A 7)), a company listed on the Shanghai
stock exchange (stock code: 601198)). From April 2004 to December
2009, Mr. Chen served as the head of merger and acquisitions of the
Fujian investment bank division at Sinolink Securities Co, Ltd. (Bl& &%
I& 19 BBR A F]), a company listed on the Shanghai stock exchange
(stock code: 600109). From January 2010 to January 2015, Mr. Chen
served as the vice chairman of the board of directors of China Chemical
Fibers Investment Co., Ltd* (F#ERIZEIR & B R 2 7). Since February
2015, Mr. Chen has served as the legal representative, executive director
and general manager of Fujian Jiuhe Investment Co, Ltd* ({8 2RI
B AHPRAR]). Since December 2019, Mr. Chen has also served as the
legal representative, executive director and manager of Fuzhou Dayang
Intelligent Parking Co,, Ltd* (&8N A F B Z2REFRAR)).

* For identification only
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Mr. Chen obtained his bachelor's degree in mathematics education
and his master's degree in probability and mathematical statistics from
Fujian Normal University (&R &8 K2) in 1997 and 2000,
respectively. Mr. Chen obtained his doctoral degree in quantitative
economics from Huagiao University GEBAEZ2) in 2014.

Xu Wenjun

Mr. Xu Wenjun (8 X9 % 4), aged 66, is our executive Director and
the chief executive officer of our Group. Mr. Xu has been a Director
since 28 June 2016, being the date of incorporation of our Company.
Mr. Xu has participated in the management of our Group since 1
February 2010 where he has been responsible for corporate strategic
planning, overseeing the overall operations and business development
and day-to-day business management of our Group. Mr. Xu is a director
of each member of our Group other than Xinlanhai.

Mr. Xu has approximately fifteen years of relevant experience in the
shipping industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Xu worked as the
deputy general manager at Fuzhou Dongfang Jinrong Shipping Co,,
Ltd. ((@ N R J7 $R R 8:EFBR A A)), a company principally engaged in
international shipping management business, from November 2002 to
June 2006, where he was mainly responsible for international shipping
business. From May 2006 until now, Mr. Xu worked as the general
manager of Fujian Chuan Yuan, a company principally engaged in
investment, where he was mainly responsible for making investment.

Mr. Xu served as the chief executive officer and general manager of
Jincheng Hengtong from January 2010 to November 2017, where he
was mainly responsible for overseeing the overall operations.

Mr. Xu received the certificate of Adult Higher Education majoring in
economic management from Fujian Normal University (1& 2Rl &5 X
B in the PRC in September 2000.

Ding Yuzhao

Mr. Ding Yuzhao (T E %t 4), aged 67, is our executive Director. Mr.
Ding has been a Director since 28 June 2016, being the date of
incorporation of our Company. Mr. Ding has participated in the
management of our Group since 1 February 2010 where he has been
responsible for overseeing the overall operations and business
development of our Group.
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Mr. Ding has approximately eleven years of relevant experience in the
shipping industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Ding worked as a
deputy manager at Ningde District Power Company (B{EHb[E& & A
7)), a company principally engaged in providing technical support and
construction for power systems from March 1990 to December 1991,
where he was mainly responsible for providing technical support for
power construction. From April 1994 to May 1997, Mr. Ding worked as
a director and general manager at Fujian Muyang Creek Hydropower
Development Co, Ltd. (f&&2& BB E KB EHFRAF), a company
principally engaged in hydropower construction, where he was mainly
responsible for providing technical support for hydropower station
development and construction. From May 1997 to August 2006, Mr.
Ding served as the general manager of Mindong Power Investment
Company Limited (BIRgeIRIZE B R 2 R]), which is principally
engaged the business of power investment, where he was mainly
responsible for overseeing investment in hydropower station and
fossil-fuel power station.

From November 2003 to August 2006, Mr. Ding served as the general
manager of Ningde City State-owned Asset Investment Company
Limited (BEMEAEEREBR AT, a company principally
engaged in investment, where he was mainly responsible for
investment and operation of state-owned asset. From August 2006 to
March 2010, Mr. Ding served as the chairman of Ningde City State-
owned Properties Investment & Management Co,, Ltd. (BTG &
EREKLEABR A7) and director of Ningde City State-owned Asset
Supervision and Management Committee (EEfEHMEH B & EE
BEEEZBE), both of which principally engaged the business of
investment, where he was mainly responsible for investment and
operation of state-owned asset. From July 2011 to September 2017, Mr.
Ding served as the general manager at Fujian Haodeyuan Investment
Co, Ltd (R R =TI E B A F]), a company principally engaged
in investment, where he was mainly responsible for investment in real
estate business. From January 2016 until now, Mr. Ding served as the
supervisor of Xiamen Tangram Science and Technology Co,, Ltd. (B
BARERMDABER AR, a company principally engages in
information technology.

Mr. Ding received the Bachelor's degree from the electric engineering
school of the Wuhan Institute of Hydraulic and Electric Engineering (i
EIKFE S12Br), currently known as School of Electrical Engineering
and Automation, Wu Han University (BVE X2 E R B E1L &)
majoring in High-voltage electricity technology and equipment in
September 1982. Mr. Ding was granted the qualification as a senior
engineer in hydropower by the Department of Personnel of Fujian
Province in July 1996.
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Lin Shifeng

Mr. Lin Shifeng (WK t:8% 55 4E), aged 45, was appointed as our executive
Director on 25 March 2021, has been serving as the financial controller
of the Company since July 2016. Mr. Lin has participated in the
management of the group since July 2016 where he has been primarily
responsible for overseeing the financial planning and accounting
management of the Group.

Mr. Lin has approximately twenty one years of relevant experience in
accounting and finance management, where he has spent
approximately nineteen years in the shipping industry. Prior to joining
the group, Mr. Lin worked as a financial supervisor at Fujian Wanfeng
Shoes Co., Ltd* (@i B2 & B[R 7)), a company principally
engaged in sports products production, from July 2000 to November
2003, where he was mainly responsible for cost accounting and
difference analysis, data statistics and financial statement preparation.

From November 2003 to January 2006, Mr. Lin worked as an
accountant at P&O Nedlloyd (China) Ltd. Fuzhou Branch (178 % (F
B A5 B R A Rl4EM 92 |]), a company principally engaged in
shipping business, where he was mainly responsible for cost
accounting and cost control.

From February 2006 to November 2007, Mr. Lin worked as an assistant
accountant and cost manager at Maersk Logistics (China) Co., Ltd,, a
company principally engaged in container shipping, where he was
mainly responsible for registering and controlling operational cost and
assisting payment center to arrange operational payment.

From November 2007 to January 2015, Mr. Lin served as a financial
officer at CMA CGM (China) Shipping Co., Ltd. Fuzhou Branch (¥
(P BB R A R4EMN 22 7)), a company principally engaged in
container transportation, where he was mainly responsible for
accounting management and accounting principal setting up.

Mr. Lin served as the finance manager of Jincheng Hengtong from
March 2015 until April 2016 and as the financial controller from July
2016 until November 2017, where he was mainly responsible for
accounting management.

* For identification only
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From April 2016 to June 2016, Mr. Lin served as a ﬁnance manager at
Air Liquide (Fuzhou) Co,, Ltd* (R{LZ=RGEM)B R 2 7)), a company
principally engaged in the supplying of industrial gases and services,
where he was mainly responsible for accounting management and
accounting principal setting up.

Mr. Lin graduated from Changchun University of Science and
Technology (&2 T KE), formerly known as Changchun Institute
of Optics and Precision Instruments (K& Yt 2% 25 20%) and
received a bachelor’s degree in accounting in July 2000. Mr. Lin
obtained the certificate for passing all the required subjects of the
professional stage of the national uniform CPA Examination of P.R.
China GIft @5t 2BAE —ZE A FERBEEHEEFH) issued by
the Certified Public Accountant Examination Committee of The
Ministry of Finance, P.R. China (& SETMIZEREZE®)
December 2018.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Suen Chi Wai

Mr. Suen Chi Wai (FRE(ZFE4E), aged 57, has been our independent
non-executive Director since the Listing Date. He is a practicing solicitor
in Hong Kong and a partner of Withers. Mr. Suen has more than twenty
years' experience in corporate finance and with area of practice
principally in initial public offerings on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), mergers and acquisitions,
corporate reorganisations and Listing Rules compliance.

Before joining Withers, Mr. Suen was an associate and later a partner of
DLA Piper Hong Kong from June 2007 to May 2012 and May 2012 to
February 2018 respectively, and served as a manager in the investment
products department of the SFC between October 2005 and July 2006,
responsible for reviewing applications of collective investment
schemes and monitoring continuing compliance of authorized
schemes. Mr. Suen was an assistant solicitor at Woo Kwan Lee & Lo
from September 2000 to March 2005. Mr. Suen was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Da Yu Financial Holdings
Limited (Stock Exchange stock code: 01073), a company principally
engaged in provision of corporate finance advisory services and asset
management services on 26 July 2019; and Venus Medtech (Hangzhou)
Inc. (Stock Exchange stock code: 02500), a company principally
engaged in transcatheter heart valve medical device business on 8 July
2019 respectively.

* For identification only
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Mr. Suen graduated from the University of East Anglia in July 1987 with
a Bachelor of Science Degree and the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
program in the University of Hong Kong in June 1998. Mr. Suen was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in October 2000 and in England
and Wales in December 2003. Mr. Suen is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since May 1998 and a
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since April 1993,

Xu Jie
Mr. Xu Jie (R84 4), aged 67, has been our independent non-
executive Director since the Listing Date.

Mr. Xu has accumulated over thirty-four years of experience in the legal
field. From June 1986 to July 1993, Mr. Xu was the deputy president of
the Maritime Commercial Tribunal of the Shanghai Maritime Court (_t
Y8/ EEPT) of the PRC. From September 1993 to October 1994, Mr.
Xu was a teacher at the Shanghai Maritime College (/&8 /&& £5%),
currently known as Shanghai Maritime University (/88 % K2,
From October 1994 to December 2000, Mr. Xu worked as a partner in
Shanghai Duan & Duan Law Firm (_E/8 B FEE ERIEEFT). From
January 2001 to May 2014, Mr. Xu served as the partner of Shanghai
Haoying Law Firm* (/8 M /& RZMMEHFR). From May 2014 to
November 2016, Mr. Xu served as the senior partner of CoEffort Law

Firm LLP (=787 173 77 122 B = 145 PY).

Mr. Xu graduated from the Shanghai Maritime College (_/& /88 E355%),
currently known as Shanghai Maritime University (/885 X2) in
January 1982 with a Bachelor's degree, majoring in ocean shipping
business, and obtained a Master's degree majoring in international
economic law in January 1991. Mr. Xu has also been an arbitrator at the
China Maritime Arbitration Commission (P EI/ESH{HHZEZE @) since
May 2017.

* For identification only
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Wei Shusong

Mr. Wei Shusong (B2&#2), aged 77, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 20 December 2021. Mr. Wei is a senior and
registered accountant, who has approximately nineteen years of
experience working in government departments, and approximately
nine years of experience serving as an independent director in listed
companies. From September 1985 to September 1999, Mr. Wei
successively held important positions in the Harbin Municipal Finance
Bureau (%5 BR & TH BT B4 L), Harbin Municipal Audit Bureau ("5 ER/&
MIEATEEET D), Harbin Municipal Institutional Reform Commission (&
BBEMEATESINEZ BE), and Municipal Securities Regulatory
Office (MBTEHFEBREEPHNE). Mr. Wei then served as the
director and inspector (E £ K #(#R &) of the Fuzhou Special Office of
the China Securities Regulatory Commission (71 B35 B & 1@ 1 =F R %)
from July 1999 to July 2003 and from July 2003 to September 2004,
respectively. Mr. Wei had been retired since September 2004.
Subsequently, Mr. Wei served as an independent director in Fujian Star-
net Communication Co, Ltd. (&3 2 488 B AR 5 B R 2 7)) (stock
code: 002396.57) from October 2005 to December 2011, in Yango Group
Co,, Ltd (BRI ER D B R Q) (stock code: 000671.57) from
December 2007 to December 2010, and in Fujian Nanping Sun Cable
Co., LTD. (t8i2FF KIS EE M AR 2 A) (stock code: 002300.57)
from January 2013 to September 2014 respectively.

Mr. Wei graduated from the Renmin University of China (FBI A RX
2) in 1968 and graduated from the Graduate University of the Chinese
Academy of Sciences (R BT ABT) in 1991.

Senior management

Mr. Chen Chengmei (BRARHME S5 4E), aged 59, is the vice president of
our Company since 28 June 2016. Mr. Chen has participated in the
management of our Group since 1 February 2010 where he has been
primarily responsible for supervising tanker chartering business of our
Group.

Mr. Chen has approximately eleven years of relevant experience in the
shipping industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen served as the
general manager at Fuzhou South Pipeline Gas Technology
Development Co., Ltd* ({&/1 875 B B R M5 2 A PR A A) from
April 2002 to April 2004, a company principally engaged in gas
Technology Development pipeline provision, where he was mainly
responsible for overseeing the overall operations of gas pipeline
provision.

* For identification only
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From May 2006 until April 2018, Mr. Chen served as the deputy general
manager at Fujian Chuan Yuan, a company principally engaged in
investment, where he was mainly responsible for supervising overall
operations.

Mr. Chen served as the deputy chief executive officer of Jincheng
Hengtong from January 2010 until November 2017, where he was
mainly responsible for supervening investment of Jincheng Hengtong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yim Lok Kwan (BZi&#9 % 4), was appointed as the company
secretary of our Company on 14 June 2018. Mr. Yim has over eight
years of experience in the corporate services field. Mr. Yim currently
serves as a senior manager of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited ("SWCS"), formerly known as SW Corporate Services
Group Limited, a professional services provider specialising in corporate
services. Mr. Yim was nominated by SWCS to act as our company
secretary pursuant to an engagement letter entered into between our
Company and SWCS.

Mr. Yim graduated from Hong Kong Shue Yan University and received
a Bachelor's Degree in accounting in July 2010. In September 2016, Mr.
Yim obtained a master’s degree in corporate governance from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Since December 2016, he has been
both an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators).
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERHmE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are crucial to improving the efficiency and performance of the Group
and to safeguarding the interests of the Shareholders. The Board
reviews the Company’s corporate governance practices from time to
time in order to meet the expectations of stakeholders and comply
with increasingly stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance. Set out below are
the principles of corporate governance as adopted by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders, enhance
corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (version
up to 31 December 2021) (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own’s corporate
governance code of practices and complied with all the code
provisions set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31 December
2021.

Furthermore, the Company will adopt the new CG Code (version with
effect from 1 January 2022), the requirements under which shall apply
to the Company’s corporate governance report in the forthcoming
financial year ending 31 December 2022.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors of any non-
compliance with the Model Code during the year ended 31 December
2021, and they have all confirmed their full compliance with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code.
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TEEBRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and should take decisions objectively in the best interests
of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time in performing them.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making.

As at 31 December 2021, there are four executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors of the Company. Mr. Chen Jiagan
was appointed on 11 March 2022. As at the date of this annual report,
the composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Jiagan (Vice Chairman)
(appointed on 11 March 2022)

Mr. Xu Wenjun (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Ding Yuzhao

Mr. Lin Shifeng

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Suen Chi Wai

Mr. Xu Jie

Mr. Wei Shusong (appointed on 20 December 2021)

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section
headed "Biography of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive Directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors do not have any other financial,

business, family or other material/relevant relationships with one
another.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company have been separated as required by code provision C.2.1 of
the CG Code. For the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Chen Ming
has served as the chairman of Company and Mr. Xu Wenjun has served
as the chief executive officer of the Company.

The chairman provides leadership and governance for the Board so as
to create the conditions for the effective performance of the Board as a
whole and effective contribution by individual Director and to ensure
that the Board performs its responsibilities and all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The chief
executive officer has the delegated power to manage the Company
and to oversee the activities of the Company on a day-to-day basis.

The division of responsibilities between the chairman and the chief
executive officer is defined and established in writing.
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Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records
During the reporting period, the Company convened one annual
general meeting ("AGM") and four Board meetings.

The attendance of the above meetings by each Director is as follows:

EXEERNESHELHE
RBEHRE - ARR] AR —RBERBFKX

ERMAEFEES -
SEEHE LRGBNERBIIMT

Number of meetings attended/held
during the Director’s term of office

EENEHAEE
FHBTERRE
Board Annual
meeting general meeting
Name of Directors EEng E=ggl BRRAFAE
Mr. Chen Ming (Chairman) PREg &S (FE) 3/3 /1
Mr. Chen Jiagan (Vice Chairman) =" BRR & E A (BIEE) =D N/A & N/A N3 A
Mr. Xu Wenjun (Chief Executive Officer) BN EA (TTEEE) 4/4 1
Mr. Wang Faqing M2 ERB LA WD 4/4 11
Mr. Ding Yuzhao TE8I%E 4/4 1/1
Mr. Lin Shifeng Nz S 3/3 11
Dr. Lai Guanrong "2 FRER GG L ) 4/4 11
Mr. Wei Shusong eV WEME LMD N/A i F N/A TNiE
Mr. Suen Chi Wai BEEes 4/4 /1
Mr. Xu Jie wRERE 4/4 11
Notes: (T
1. Mr. Wei Shusong was appointed as an independent non-executive Directoron 20 1. MEMEAENR2021FE 1220 B EZEAB

December 2021 and Mr. Chen Jiagan was appointed as an executive Director and
the vice chairman of the Board on 11 March 2022.

2. Mr. Wang Faqging and Dr. Lai Guanrong resigned as an executive Director and an
independent non-executive Director respectively on 20 December 2021.
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors during the reporting period.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the reporting period and up to the date of this annual report,
the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
outin Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance
with the independence requirement set out in the Listing Rules.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Directors is engaged on a service contract (in the case of
the executive Directors) or a letter of appointment (in the case of
independent non-executive Directors) for a specific term of three years.

The Company's articles of association (the “Articles of Association”)
provides that all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall be subject to election by Shareholders at
the next following general meeting of the Company.

Every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall also
be subject to retirement and re-election by rotation at least once every
three years at the AGMs of the Company under the Articles of
Association.
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Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and
risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgment on
corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
coordinating the daily operation and management of the Company
are delegated to the management.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
they remain informed and relevant for their contribution to the Board.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and
reading material on relevant topics would be provided to Directors
where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company's expenses.

During the reporting period, all Directors had complied with code
provision C.1.4 of the CG code through attending training courses or
reading materials relevant to the duties of Directors.
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The table below summarises the participation of each of the Directors

in continuous professional development during the reporting period

and up to the date of this annual report:

TEBASESNHREHREMEEANRSE
FH2EBEEXERNBN -

Reading Legal

and Regulatory

Updates and other

Reference Materials

RERIEH

RIRAIRHA

Name of Director ExE8 8EZ&5

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chen Ming PR 38 5 4 4

Mr. Chen Jiagan (et PR 2R o 5 A (M) N/A 738 B

Mr. Wang Faqing Mete2 FIEE A MED 4

Mr. Xu Wenjun wHEE 4

Mr. Ding Yuzhao TEel%E 4

Mr. Lin Shifeng MRS A 4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAKEHITES

Mr. Wei Shusong Mot BAE S A D v/

Mr. Suen Chi Wai HEELEE 4

Mr. Xu Jie REEE 4

Dr. Lai Guanrong (et FEER SR 1E (2 v/

Notes: PaE -
1. Mr. Wei Shusong was appointed as an independent non-executive Directoron 20 1. BENMEER2021F 1220 BEZTAEB L

December 2021 and Mr. Chen Jiagan was appointed as an executive Director and

the vice chairman of the Board on 11 March 2022.

2. Mr. Wang Faging and Dr. Lai Guanrong resigned as an executive Director and
independent non-executive Director respectively on 20 December 2021.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with specific written terms
of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee are posted on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to Shareholders upon
request.

The majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee are independent non-
executive Directors.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expense.

Audit Committee

During the reporting period, Dr. Lai Guanrong resigned as a member of
the Audit Committee on 20 December 2021 and Mr. Wei Shusong was
appointed on the same date as a member of the committee. As at the
date of this report, the Audit Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wei Shusong, Mr. Suen Chi Wai
and Mr. Xu Jie. Mr. Suen Chi Wai, being the chairman of the committee,
is appropriately qualified as required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of
the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting process,
risk management and internal controls system of the Group, assist the
Board to fulfill its responsibility over the audit, and review and approve
connected transactions and to advise the Board.
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The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the functions
set out in code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. These include
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management of the Company;
reviewing and monitoring the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the employees and Directors of the
Company; and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
from time to time adopted by the Company and the disclosure in the
corporate governance report to be contained in the Company’s annual
report.

During the reporting period, four Audit Committee meetings were
held. It had reviewed and discussed the interim and annual financial
statements, the interim report, annual results announcement and
report, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and the effectiveness of the internal control of the Group and
recommended the re-appointment of auditor to the Board.

The attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

BEZZBENBERTERERTRINST
AIMERSZER A2 IRFRERHOBLGE - B B 1EH
E&*ﬁ%ﬁzﬁ/&ﬁ?é@ﬁiamﬁbﬁ&%%ﬁ
THESFSRLER B RERAR

%%&% REIEA B J\I&?ii‘“iﬁﬁ?‘
B e RERARREETARRES

%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁ&%%ﬁ CHIE A K&
BRARBIRENEFTNRTENREMRTF
i (E) : R AR B ETARRETE
W EE AT RIMIE I MR R AF

PR

WAAE TR E A RE NRBEE o

NREHE GETHRERLZESS
& HeFRALIwhHERFEENHR
2\% hEHEmE FEREAQNER®E K
SEFRAN ST R LBOIIARAREE
NEBIE I B R - R E BT
RAEESELHEESR

BERREEKEMNHFELTENT

Number of meetings
attended/held
during the member’s
term of office

ZEREHR

HEMEHIERT

Name of Members of the Audit Committee BRXEEESREMH SRRE
Mr. Suen Chi Wa (Chairman) BREREE(FE) 4/4
Mr. Wei Shusong ¢ B 2 S A () 0/0
Mr. Xu Jie GELE 4/4
Dr. Lai Guanrong et " R B LA e - (D) 4/4

Note:

1. Mr. Wei Shusong and Dr. Lai Guanrong was appointed and resigned as an
independent non-executive Director respectively on 20 December 2021.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2021
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Xu Jie and Mr. Suen Chi Wai, the independent
non-executive Directors, and Mr. Xu Wenjun, the chief executive officer
and executive Director. Mr. Xu Jie is the chairman of the committee.
The majority of the Remuneration Committee members are
independent non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of
the Remuneration Committee are to review and make
recommendations to the Board regarding the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to our Directors
and senior management.

During the reporting period, two meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held. It had reviewed the Company's remuneration
policy and restructure and the remuneration package for Directors and
senior management and assessed performance of executive Directors
and approved/proposed the terms of executive Directors’ service
contracts . The Remuneration Committee also make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. The attendance records of the
members of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:
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Number of meetings
attended/held
during the member’s
term of office

ZEREHRA
Name of Members of the HEEHIERT
Remuneration Committee FHEEERENS SRR
Mr. Xu Jie (Chairman) RELRE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Xu Wenjun X EE 2/2
Mr. Suen Chi Wai HEELEE 2/2
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Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
remuneration of the senior management (other than Directors) by
bands for the year ended 31 December 2021 are as follows:

FriM e E

Remuneration bands

BRIECEEATRIASTANEXXEEI 51K -
HEXDNFNAJNBILFE  BHEHE
LREBEHRREREAB (EEHRIN BFH
E -1 NNE

Number of
employee(s)
(Note)

EE AB(KEE)

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 = 1,000,0008 7T

Note: Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

During the reporting period, Mr. Wang Faqging resigned as member of
the Nomination Committee on 20 December 2021 and Mr. Chen Ming
was appointed on the same date as member of the committee. As at
the date of this report, the Nomination Committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Chen Ming, the chairman and executive Director,
Mr. Suen Chi Wai and Mr. Xu Jie, the independent non-executive
Directors. Mr. Chen Ming is the chairman of the committee. The
majority of the Nomination Committee members are independent
non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of
the Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to our
Board regarding the appointment of Directors and Board succession.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (‘Board Diversity
Policy”). A summary of the Board Diversity Policy is set out below:

The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the
approach to achieve diversity in the Company’s
Board.

Purpose:
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Board Diversity ~ With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity
at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives
and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, the Nomination committee has
primary responsibility for identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board and all
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. All appointments are based on the
principle of merit-based appointment and
comprehensive consideration of objective
conditions, so as to select leading talents with both
ability and virtue.

Policy
Statement:

Measurable
Objectives:

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Company understands and believes that diversity on the Board of
Directors contributes greatly to enhancing the quality of the
Company'’s performance. The Company is committed to selecting the
best candidates for board membership. Selection of candidates will be
based the above measurable objective. The Board considers that
independent directors can enhance the effectiveness and decision-
making ability of the Board by providing independent views, objective
judgments and constructive challenges to the Board and the
management of the Group.

Also having reviewed the Board composition, the Board recognises the
importance and benefits of gender diversity at the Board level and shall
continue to take initiatives to identify female candidate(s) to enhance
the gender diversity among the Board members. We will appoint at
least one female representation in our Board before 31 December
2024.
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The Nomination Committee has adopted a nomination policy
(‘Nomination Policy”) which sets out a set of nomination procedures
and selection criteria for directors. The Nomination Committee shall
evaluate and select candidates based on the criteria by reference to
character and integrity, business experience relevant and beneficial to
the Company, qualifications including professional qualifications, skills
and knowledge that are relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate strategy, willingness to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and other significant commitments,
present needs of the Board for particular expertise, skills or experience
and whether the candidates would satisfy those needs, requirement
for the Board to have independent directors in accordance with the
Listing Rules and whether the candidates for independent directors
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and the Board
Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted by the
Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the Board.

During the reporting period, two meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held. It had reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, made recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and re-appointment of Directors and
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
Nomination Policy. The attendance records of the members of the
Nomination Committee are as follows:

RAZESGOHREMN—ERBBEE ([RBK
RDHIEFRBEFMGEIZE - 25
ZESRBBEETZREFRREA - I
DEHMRRHEE - BAQF)HEEREF
MEBLEER BE(BIERRAQRERK
TEEBRABHEEERL B
) RRRERMERNRHEEITES
REMNBEREMEZRAE EELE
AT TER  BERKEBRNTEZ KR
BAEELGHEZEEE - EWRAERE
EENEERBYESENRT  UAR2EBE
MARRFHAB RS - B EHRR
AREEHWRABIALT  UNEEES
TEBERRIRREECERERESES T
{EFTER AN TR AT T 2 B 1Z -

REBEHHE BRTRAREZESE
& HEEMEFENRE  REIE
B FHEBIYIFAITESTNEYIE - BE
EREHZIEFAESSHFLERER
KM iR B R bt MEESEL R
BER -REZBEGKEMHETENT

Number of meetings
attended/held
during the member’s
term of office

ZEREHR
Name of Members of the HEERRT
Nomination Committee REZEERENA SRBRE
Mr. Chen Ming (Chairman) BR&GIAE (EE) 0/0
Mr. Suen Chi Wai BRERLE 2/2
Mr. Xu Jie TS 2/2
Mr. Wang Faging et " FIEB R AEMED 2/2

Note:

1. Mr. Wang Faging resigned as an executive Director and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee on 20 December 2021.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on an
ongoing basis. We evaluate and monitor key risks within our business
as follows:

Credit Risk. We select customers with good credit records and
preferably larger companies with long established records. For
further details, please refer to the section headed “Business —
Sales and Marketing” in the Prospectus.

Environmental Risk. We maintain a newer fleet of vessels, with
regular inspections of equipment carried out and we rely on
experienced and professional ship management companies to
minimise the probability of environmental pollution. For further
details, please refer to the section headed “Business — Suppliers
— Ship Management Companies” in the Prospectus.

Market Risk. We are exposed to various types of market risks,
including changes in foreign exchange rate, interest rate and
fluctuations of any component of our operating costs during the
normal course of business.

For further details regarding our exposure to market risks, please
refer to the sections headed “Risk Factors — Risks Relating to Our
Business” and “Financial Information — Principal Factors Affecting
Our Results of Operations” in the Prospectus.

Political Risk. As maritime safety will be affected by political
unrest, our marine department will closely monitor the maritime
safety of the route of our vessels to minimize the impact of local
conflicts or other political unrest.

During the reporting period, the Group has engaged an independent
internal control consultant to review the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance as well as risk management. The
Board considers that the Group's risk management and internal control
are adequate and effective. The Group does not have an internal audit
function and will engage an external party to review risk management
and internal control systems annually.
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In addition, the procedures on disclosure of inside information were in
place to ensure that all relevant facts and circumstances that may have
material effect on the share price of the Company are promptly
assessed and that any material information which comes to the
knowledge of any one or more officers of the Group is promptly
identified, assessed and, if appropriate, escalated for the attention of
the Board to determine whether a disclosure is required.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Directors have taken into account the cash requirements of the
Group for the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period
and the measures disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, and have concluded that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due
and accordingly the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” of this annual
report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend distribution ratio shall be determined by the Board from
time to time. The declaration and payment of dividends shall be
determined by the Board, which is also in the best interests of the
Group and Shareholders. In addition, the final dividend for any financial
year is subject to Shareholders” approval. The remaining net profit will
be used for the operation and development of the Group. When
determining whether to propose dividends and determining the
amount of dividends, the Board should consider, among other things,
the following factors:

(A)  current and future business, actual and expected financial results
of the Company;

(B) any development plan of the Company;
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(Q) liquidity position, working capital and capital expenditure

requirements and future expected capital requirements of the
Group;

the debt-to-equity ratio, return-on-equity ratio and the level of
the relevant financial contracts of the Group;

any restrictions on the payment of dividends may be imposed by
the lenders of the Group or other third parties;

retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group and
each member of the Group;

general economic conditions, the business cycle of the Group’s
business as well as other internal and external factors that may
affect the Company or financial results and position; and

any other factors that the Board considers appropriate and
relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends are subject to any
restrictions under the Cayman Islands Company Law, any applicable
laws, rules and regulations, including the Listing Rules and the Articles
of Association.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors
of the Company in respect of audit services and non- audit services for
the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited as an external service provider, and Mr. Yim Lok Kwan
has been appointed as the Company’s company secretary. Its primary
contact person at the Company is Mr. Lin Shifeng, the executive
Director and the financial controller of the Company.

The company secretary attended sufficient professional training as
required under the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021
to update their skills and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Director. All resolutions
put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition of
one or more members deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionist(s), provided that such requisitionist(s) held
as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the Cayman
Islands Companies Law for Shareholders to move new resolutions at
general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph. As regards
proposing a person for election as a director of the Company, please
refer to the “Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director” of the Company which is posted on the
Company'’s website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The
Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests to the Board as
mentioned above via the following channels:

Address . Room 02-05, 40th Floor, International Commerce Centre,
No. 23 Changting Street, Taijiang, Fuzhou, China
Email : angelazhu@xysgroup.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders” information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and other general
meetings. At the AGM, directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are
available to meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company maintains a website at www.xysgroup.com as a
communication platform with Shareholders and investors, where the
financial information and other relevant information of the Company
are available for public access.

The Board has conducted the annual review of the implementation
and effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy of our
Company, and concluded that the policy was implemented effectively
during the reporting period.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the reporting period, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in provision of asphalt tanker chartering services
and bulk carrier chartering services, and trading of asphalt. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set forth
in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2021 by operating segments is set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 is set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are set forth in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 162 to 165 of this
annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

No Share was issued in the year ended 31 December 2021. Details of
the share capital of the Company in the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the Shareholders
entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM of the Company
to be held on Tuesday, 21 June 2022, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 16 June 2022 to Tuesday, 21
June 2022, both days inclusive, during the period no transfer of shares
will be registered. All transfers accompanied by the relevant certificates
must be lodged with the Company'’s transfer office and share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 15 June 2022.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2021,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
US$74.9 million (2020: US$74.9 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out on pages
6 to 7 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Jiagan (Vice-chairman)
(appointed on 11 March 2022)
Mr. Xu Wenjun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ding Yuzhao
Mr. Lin Shifeng
Mr. Wang Faqing (resigned on 20 December 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Wei Shusong (appointed on 20 December 2021)
Mr. Suen Chi Wai

Mr. Xu Jie

Dr. Lai Guanrong (resigned on 20 December 2021)

On 20 December 2021, Mr. Wang Faging has resigned as an executive
Director and the chairman of the Board, and Mr. Chen Ming, an
executive Director, has been appointed as the chairman of the Board.
On 11 March 2022, Mr. Chen Jiagan has been appointed as an
executive Director and the vice chairman of the Board.

The Company has received written confirmations of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wei
Shusong, Mr. Suen Chi Wai and Mr. Xu Jie, pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. As at the date of this report, the Company considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Retirement and re-election of Directors

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association, at each
AGM, one third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation. However, if the number of Directors is not a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third shall
be the number of retiring Directors. The Directors to retire in each year
shall be those who have been in office longest since their last re-
election or appointment but, as between persons who became or
were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those to retire shall
(unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.
Accordingly, Mr. Xu Wenjun and Mr. Xu Jie shall retire by rotation. All
the retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the AGM.
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EEGHRE

According to Article 112 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election. Any Director appointed under this Article shall not be
taken into account in determining the Directors or the number of
Directors who are to retire by rotation at an AGM. Accordingly, Mr.
Chen Jiagan being appointed as an executive Director and the vice
chairman of the Board on 11 March 2022 and Mr. Wei Shusong being
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 20 December
2021 shall retire from office and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re- election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years since the Listing Date and will
be renewed or extended automatically by one year upon the expiry of
the initial term and each successive term until termination in
accordance with the service contact. The Company also entered into
the appointment letters with all the independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Suen Chi Wai and Mr. Xu Jie on 26 September
2021, and Mr. Wei Shusong on 20 December 2021. These appointment
letters have a term of three years. All of them are subject to retirement
by rotation and re- election at the AGM in accordance with the Articles
of Association. Their emoluments were determined by the Board by
reference to their experience, responsibilities and duties with the
Company and shall be reviewed annually by the Remuneration
Committee. The details of the remuneration of each of the Directors
are revealed in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company, which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY'’S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this report, no other transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance to which the Company’s subsidiaries or its
parent company was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 25 to 32 of this annual report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

There was no change to any information required to be disclosed in
relation to any Director pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of this
report.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group having regard to the
Group's operating results, individual performance and comparable
market standard and practices. The Company has adopted the Share
Option Scheme as an incentive to the Directors and eligible employees,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” below.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF OUR COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")
which will be required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or (b) to be entered into the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, or (c) as otherwise to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules, are set out as follows:
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(a) Our Company (a) AAF]

Approximate

percentage of

Number of shareholding in

Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held™ our Company

)i YN I )

EENA ERME FrERoEE ™ 140 BR RE L 51

Mr. Xu Wenjun® Interest of controlled corporation 34,079,000 Shares (L) 7.75%

‘wXHEED X EErEE 34,079,000 A% BE 19 (L) 7.75%

Mr. Ding Yuzhao® Interest of controlled corporation 14,898,000 Shares (L) 3.39%

TE&IEES R EEER 14,898,000 PEAZ 17 (L) 3.39%

Mr. Lin Shifeng® Interest of controlled corporation 17,478,000 Shares (L) 3.97%

Rt EE S @ R AE R R 17,478,000 PER% 1D (L) 3.97%

Notes: N

(1) Theletter “L" denotes our Directors’ long position in the Shares. N FEHILURRSZERRDPIFIENTE -
(2)  Perfect Bliss Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Xu Wenjun, an executive (2)  Perfect Bliss Limited 1T & B4 B %

Director. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu Wenjun is deemed to be interested in
the 34,079,000 Shares held by Perfect Bliss Limited.

(3) Gigantic Path Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Ding Yuzhao, an
executive Director. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ding Yuzhao is deemed to be
interested in the 14,898,000 Shares held by Gigantic Path Limited.

(4) Profit Source HK Trading Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Lin Shifeng,
an executive Director. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lin Shifeng is deemed to be
interested in the 17,478,000 Shares held by Profit Source HK Trading
Limited.

SHAEEERE - BEEAFALBER
7 & X5 5 A AR & A Perfect Bliss
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(3)  Gigantic Path Limited A TEF T £ 4
SHERBE MR - RIBEFRAEK
Bl - T X 81l 55 & 5 48 & R Gigantic Path
;jmi/ted 55 #914,898,000 B B 15 o A
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions in which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the
register required to be maintained pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2021 was the Company or its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or their spouses
or children under the age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for
the share capital or debt securities of the Company or any other body
corporate, or had exercised any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as our Directors are aware, the persons
(other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who will
have or be deemed or taken to have interests and/or short positions in
the Shares or the underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who
were recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or who were directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the Company'’s issued share capital will be

FERRRRS R EBEKR G A
mRIXRE

R2021F 128318 BEFFA AT
AT (BEERARRESITHRABRIN &
AR B S E VER IR 0 S AR BB AR (D
BERBESRBAERIEXVEHE2LRE
3D WK ATFTHEBEORET KA
B KSR AR BIRIEE S KA E &)
FBIKAEGFTE ZELM  KEZEHMEE
BAARRRIEEITRASS% A LRy

as follows:
Approximate
percentage of
Capacity/ Numberof  shareholdingin
Shareholders Nature of interest Shares held™ our Company
RAEQFH
BR=R B REEHE FERAEE ™ BEAY B RE L 1
UNIVERSAL INTERNATIONAL Beneficial owner 116,000,000 Shares (L) 26.36%
TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG)
LIMITED®
RFEBRE(BE)ERAF EnBEAA 116,000,000 AR5 (L) 26.36%
PROSPEROUS BRIGHT LIMITED® Interest of controlled 116,000,000 Shares (L) 26.36%
corporation
PROSPEROUS BRIGHT LIMITED? R EE R 116,000,000 PR 17 (L) 26.36%
Mr. Chen Maochun® Interest of controlled 116,000,000 Shares (L) 26.36%
corporation
PRIXFELED ZEEE R 116,000,000 P& P& 17 (L) 26.36%
Ms. Ni Hualing®? Interest of spouse 116,000,000 Shares (L) 26.36%
REKR LT R 116,000,000 AB& 7 (L) 26.36%
Well Grace Trading Co,, Limited® Beneficial owner 49,000,000 Shares (L) 11.14%
EREHERARAO EmBEA 49,000,000 A% A% 17 (L) 11.14%
Mr. Lin Kaiquan® Interest of controlled 49,000,000 Shares (L) 11.14%
corporation
MAREED R LEER 49,000,000 A% A% 17 (L) 11.14%
Ms. Yang Lihua® Interest of spouse 49,000,000 Shares (L) 11.14%
GRBIEL L0 feiBtE = 49,000,000 A% A% 17 (L) 11.14%
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Approximate

percentage of

Capacity/ Number of shareholding in

Shareholders Nature of interest Shares held” our Company

RAEQFH

[ By, EEHE FrERGEE ™ BB B

HJ Technology Co., Limited® Beneficial owner 36,000,000 Shares (L) 8.18%

ESRBEAERARY EmBEA 36,000,000 AE RS (L) 8.18%

Mr. Wu Kai® Interest of controlled 36,000,000 Shares (L) 8.18%
corporation

REEED R AEEE 36,000,000 %A% 15 (L) 8.18%

Ms. Pang Min® Interest of spouse 36,000,000 Shares (L) 8.18%

e AL LW [y 36,000,000 A% A% 15 (L) 8.18%

Perfect Bliss Limited® Beneficial owner 34,079,000 Shares (L) 7.75%

Perfect Bliss Limited® EnBEAA 34,079,000 A& A% 15 (L) 7.75%

Ms. Zhu Zhen © Interest of spouse 34,079,000 Shares (L) 7.75%

Kzt © LT 34,079,000 B& A% 15 (L) 7.75%

Golden Boomer Limited® Beneficial owner 30,000,000 Shares (L) 6.82%

Golden Boomer Limited® EnBEEA 30,000,000 MRS (L) 6.82%

Ms. Lan Shaoyun® Interest of controlled 30,000,000 Shares (L) 6.82%
corporation

BMBEL Lo X AR 30,000,000 AR5 (L) 6.82%

Mr. Hong Jianbin® Interest of spouse 30,000,000 Shares (L) 6.82%

HEER A © [y 30,000,000 AE A5 (L) 6.82%

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd® Person having a security 30,000,000 Shares (L) 6.82%

interest in shares

BERITRD AR ARO HAERMORBEERA 30,000,000 A RS (L) 6.82%

Forever Win Asia Trading Limited” Beneficial owner 24,540,000 Shares (L) 5.58%

Forever Win Asia Trading Limited” EmBEA 24,540,000 %A% 15 (L) 5.58%

Mr. Chen Chengmei®” Interest of controlled 24,540,000 Shares (L) 5.58%
corporation

PRAXIBSC A O R AEEE 24,540,000 A% A% 15 (L) 5.58%
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Notes:

Save

The letter “L" denotes a person’s long position (as defined under Part XV of the
SFO) in our Shares.

UNIVERSAL INTERNATIONAL TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG) LIMITED is owned as to
100% by PROSPEROUS BRIGHT LIMITED, which is in turn wholly owned by Mr.
Chen Maochun. As such, each of PROSPEROUS BRIGHT LIMITED and Mr. Chen
Maochun is deemed to be interested in the 116,000,000 Shares held by
UNIVERSAL INTERNATIONAL TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG) LIMITED pursuant to
the SFO. Ms. Ni Hualing is the spouse of Mr. Chen Maochun.

Well Grace Trading Co., Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Lin Kaiquan. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. Lin Kaiquan is deemed to be interested in the 49,000,000 Shares
held by Well Grace Trading Co., Limited. Ms. Yang Lihua is the spouse of Mr. Lin
Kaiquan.

HJ Technology Co., Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Wu Kai. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Wu Kai is deemed to be interested in the 36,000,000 Shares held by HJ
Technology Co., Limited. Ms. Pang Min is the spouse of Mr. Wu Kai.

Perfect Bliss Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Xu Wenjun. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. Xu Wenjun is deemed to be interested in the 34,079,000 Shares held by
Perfect Bliss Limited. Ms. Zhu Zhen is the spouse of Mr. Xu Wenjun.

Golden Boomer Limited is owned as to 100% by Ms. Lan Shaoyun. By virtue of the
SFO, Ms. Lan Shaoyun is deemed to be interested in the 30,000,000 Shares held by
Golden Boomer Limited. Mr. Hong Jianbin is the spouse of Ms. Lan Shaoyun.
Golden Boomer Limited provided an interest in the 30,000,000 Shares as security
to Industrial Bank Co,, Ltd, a person other than a qualified lender.

Forever Win Asia Trading Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Chen Chengmei. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chen Chengmei is deemed to be interested in the
24,540,000 Shares held by Forever Win Asia Trading Limited.

as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of any person

who has, as at the date of this report (without taking into account any
options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme), an
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares, which
would be required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or, directly or indirectly, be interested in 5% of the issued voting
shares of any other member of the Group.

L FEILERARRARODAFBNEFE (EER
B LG GEDIFEXVED) °

2. RFBIBR B (EB) B R A & B PROSPEROUS
BRIGHT LIMITED#E 5 2 ZB# 25 +  f PROSPEROUS
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o REBEFRBEKRD - R EFER
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Our Company has conditionally adopted the Share Option Scheme on
6 September 2018 which became effective on the Listing Date. Under
the Share Option Scheme, Eligible Participants (as defined below) may
be granted options which entitle them to subscribe for Shares, when
aggregated with options granted under any other scheme,
representing initially not more than 10% of the Shares in issue on the
Listing Date.

As at 31 December 2021 and to the date of this report, no option had
been granted or to be granted under the Share Option Scheme.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

(a) Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions the
Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b) below) have had
or may have made to our Group. The Share Option Scheme will
provide the Eligible Participants an opportunity to have a
personal stake in our Company with the view to achieving the
following objectives:

() motivating the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of our Group; and

(i) attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining on-going
business relationships with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of our Group.
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(b) Who may join
The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance with
paragraph (f) below to the following persons (“Eligible
Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
of our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) of our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents

to our Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(iv)  such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the Board,
will contribute or have contributed to our Group, the
assessment criteria of which are:

(aa) contribution to the development and performance of
our Group;

(bb) quality of work performed for our Group;
(co) initiative and commitment in performing his duties;
and

(dd) length of service or contribution to our Group.

(b) ATBEAL
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BB EE |)BHBERE  WET
XNREFTHERBESST
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(c)

64

Acceptance of an offer of options

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted
by the grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
document constituting acceptance of the options duly signed by
the grantee, together with a remittance in favour of our Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by our Company on or before the relevant acceptance
date. Such payment shall in no circumstances be refundable. Any
offer for grant of an option to subscribe for Shares may be
accepted in respect of less than the number of Shares for which
it is offered provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot
for dealing in Shares on the Stock Exchange or an integral
multiple thereof and such number is clearly stated in the
duplicate offer document constituting acceptance of the option.
To the extent that the offer to grant an option is not accepted by
any prescribed acceptance date, it shall be deemed to have been
irrevocably declined.

Subject to paragraphs (I), (m), (n), (o) and (p), an option shall be
exercised in whole or in part and, other than where it is exercised
to the full extent outstanding, shall be exercised in integral
multiples of such number of Shares as shall represent one board
lot for dealing in Shares on the Stock Exchange for the time
being, by the grantee by giving notice in writing to our Company
stating that the option is thereby exercised and the number of
Shares in respect of which it is exercised. Each such notice must
be accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of the
exercise price for the Shares in respect of which the notice is
given.

Within 21 days after receipt of the notice and the remittance and,
where appropriate, receipt of the certificate by the auditors to
our Company or the independent financial adviser as the case
may be pursuant to paragraph (r), our Company shall allot and
issue the relevant number of Shares to the grantee credited as
fully paid and issue to the grantee share certificates in respect of
the Shares so allotted.

The exercise of any option shall be subject to our Shareholders in

general meeting approving any necessary increase in the
authorised share capital of our Company.
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(d) Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all option to be granted (including Shares in respect
of which options, whether exercised or still outstanding, have
already been granted) under the Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of our Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
on the Listing Date, being 40,000,000 Shares (the “Scheme
Limit"), excluding for this purpose Shares which would have
been issuable pursuant to options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme (or any
other share option schemes of our Company). Subject to the
issue of a circular by our Company and the approval of our
Shareholders in general meeting and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time, the Board
may:

(i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the Shares in issue (the
“New Scheme Limit’) as at the date of the approval by our
Shareholders in general meeting; and/or

(i) grant options beyond the Scheme Limit or New Scheme
Limit to Eligible Participants specifically identified by the
Board. The circular issued by our Company to our
Shareholders shall contain a generic description of the
specified Eligible Participants who may be granted such
options, the number and terms of the options to be
granted, the purpose of granting options to the specified
Eligible Participants with an explanation as to how the
options serve such purpose, the information required under
Rule 17.02(2) (d) and the disclaimer required under Rule
17.02(4) of the Listing Rules.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of our Company at any time shall not exceed
30% of the Shares in issue from time to time (the "Maximum
Limit"). No options shall be granted under any schemes of our
Company (including the Share Option Scheme) if this will result
in the Maximum Limit being exceeded. The maximum number of
Shares in respect of which options may be granted shall be
adjusted, in such manner as the auditors of our Company or an
approved independent financial adviser shall certify to be
appropriate, fair and reasonable in the event of any alteration in
the capital structure of our Company in accordance with
paragraph (r) below whether by way of capitalisation issue, rights
issue, consolidation, sub-division of shares or reduction of the
share capital of our Company but in no event shall exceed the
limit prescribed in this paragraph.

Maximum number of options to any one individual

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of our
Company (including both exercised, outstanding options and
Shares which were the subject of options which have been
granted and accepted under the Share Option Scheme or any
other scheme of our Company but subsequently cancelled) to
each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit
shall be subject to:

() the issue of a circular by our Company containing the
identity of the Eligible Participants, the numbers of and
terms of the options to be granted (and options previously
granted to such participant) the information as required
under Rule 17.02(2)(d) and the disclaimer required under
Rule 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules; and
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the approval of our Shareholders in general meeting and/or
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time with such Eligible Participant and his close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (or his/her
associates if the participant is a connected person)
abstaining from voting. The numbers and terms (including
the exercise price) of options to be granted to such
participant must be fixed before our Shareholders” approval
and the date of the Board meeting at which the Board
proposes to grant the options to such Eligible Participant
shall be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of
calculating the subscription price of the Shares. The Board
shall forward to such Eligible Participant an offer document
in such form as the Board may from time to time determine
or, alternatively, documents accompanying the offer
document which state, among other things:

(@aa) the Eligible Participant’ s name, address and
occupation;

(bb) the date on which an option is offered to an Eligible
Participant which must be a date on which the Stock
Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities;

(cc) the date upon which an offer for an option must be
accepted;

(dd) the date upon which an option is deemed to be
granted and accepted in accordance with paragraph (o);

(ee) the number of Shares in respect of which the option
is offered:;

(ff)  the subscription price and the manner of payment of
such price for the Shares on and in consequence of
the exercise of the option;

(gg) the date of the notice given by the grantee in respect
of the exercise of the option; and

(hh) the method of acceptance of the option which shall,
unless the Board otherwise determines, be as set out
in paragraph (c).
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Price of shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save
that such price will not be less than the highest of:

() the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open
for the business of dealing in securities;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

Granting options to connected persons

Any grant of options to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of our Company or
any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
is required to be approved by the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent non-executive Director
who is the grantee of the options). If the Board proposes to grant
options to a substantial shareholder or any independent non-
executive Director or their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) which will result in the number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
such person in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue;
and
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(i)

having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million or such
other sum as may be from time to time provided under the
Listing Rules, based on the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
at the date of each grant, such further grant of options will
be subject to the approval of our independent non-
executive Directors as referred to in this paragraph, the
issue of a circular by our Company and the approval of our
Shareholders in general meeting on a poll at which the
grantee, his associates and all core connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of our Company shall abstain
from voting in favour, and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time. Any
vote taken at the meeting to approve the grant of such
options shall be taken as a poll.

The circular to be issued by our Company to our Shareholders
pursuant to the above paragraph shall contain the following
information:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

the details of the number and terms (including the exercise
price) of the options to be granted to each selected Eligible
Participant, which must be fixed before our Shareholders’
meeting and the date of the Board meeting for proposing
such further grant shall be taken as the date of grant for the
purpose of calculating the exercise price of such options;

a recommendation from our independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent non-executive
Director who is the grantee of the options) to the
independent Shareholders as to voting;

the information required under Rule 17.02(2)(c) and (d) and
the disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the Listing
Rules; and

the information required under Rule 2.17 of the Listing
Rules.
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(h) Restrictions on the times of grant of options

(i)

70

A grant of options may not be made after inside information has
come to our Company's knowledge until such information has
been announced pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules and the Inside Information Provisions of Part XIVA of the
SFO. In particular, no options may be granted during the period
commencing one month immediately preceding the earlier of:

(i) the date of the Board meeting (such date to first be notified
to the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Listing Rules)
for the approval of our Company’s results for any year, half-
year, quarterly or any other interim period (whether or not
required under the Listing Rules); and

(i) the deadline for our Company to publish an announcement
of the results for any year, or half-year, or quarterly or any
other interim period (whether or not required under the
Listing Rules); and ending on the date of actual publication
of the results announcement.

Rights are personal to grantee

An option is personal to the grantee. No grantee shall in any way
sell, transfer, assign, charge, mortgage, encumber or otherwise
dispose of or create any interest whatsoever in favour of any third
party over or in relation to any option or attempt so to do (save
that the grantee may nominate a nominee in whose name the
Shares issued pursuant to the Share Option Scheme may be
registered). Any breach of the foregoing by a grantee shall entitle
our Company to cancel any outstanding options or any part
thereof granted to such grantee.
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(k)

U]

Time of exercise of option and duration of the Share
Option Scheme

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the
expiry of ten years from that date. The minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than ten years after it has been
granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years after the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme by the Shareholders
(the “Adoption Date”). Subject to earlier termination by our
Company in general meeting or by the Board, the Share Option
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from
the Adoption Date. The remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme is around 6 years.

Performance target

A grantee may be required to achieve any performance targets as
the Board may then specify in the grant before any options
granted under the Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

Rights on ceasing employment/death
If the grantee of an option ceases to be an Eligible Participant:

() by any reason other than death, ill-health, injury, disability
or termination of his/her relationship with our Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries on one or more of the grounds
specified in paragraph (m) below, the grantee may exercise
the option up to the entitlement of the grantee as at the
date of cessation (to the extent not already exercised) in
whole or in part within a period of one month (or such
longer period as the Board may determine) from such
cessation which date shall be the last actual working day
with our Company or the relevant subsidiary whether salary
is paid in lieu of notice or not, failing which it will lapse (or
such longer period as our Company may determine); or
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(i) by reason of death, ill-health, injury or disability (all
evidenced to the satisfaction of the Board) and none of the
events which would be a ground for termination of his
relationship with our Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
under paragraph (m
appropriate, his personal representative(s) may exercise the
option in full (to the extent not already exercised) within a
period of 12 months (or such longer period as the Board
may determine) from the date of cessation of being an
Eligible Participant or death.

) has occurred, the grantee or, as

(m) Rights on dismissal

(n)

72

If the grantee of an option ceases to be an Eligible Participant on
the grounds that he has been guilty of serious misconduct, or has
committed any act of bankruptcy or has become insolvent or has
made any arrangements or composition with his/her creditors
generally, or has been convicted of any criminal offence involving
his/her integrity or honesty, his/her option will lapse and not be
exercisable after the date of termination of his/her employment.

Rights on takeover

If a general offer is made to all our Shareholders (or all such
Shareholders other than the offeror and/or any person controlled
by the offeror and/or any person acting in concert with the
offeror (as defined in the Takeovers Code)) and such offer
becomes or is declared unconditional during the option period
of the relevant option, the grantee of an option shall be entitled
to exercise the option in full (to the extent not already exercised)
at any time within 14 days after the date on which the offer
becomes or is declared unconditional.
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(o)

(p)

Rights on winding-up

In the event that a notice is given by our Company to its
members to convene a general meeting for the purposes of
considering, and if thought fit, approving a resolution to
voluntarily wind-up our Company, our Company shall forthwith
give notice thereof to all grantees and thereupon, each grantee
(or his legal personal representative(s)) shall be entitled to
exercise all or any of his options (to the extent not already
exercised) at any time not later than two business days prior to
the proposed general meeting of our Company referred to above
by giving notice in writing to our Company, accompanied by a
remittance for the full amount of the aggregate subscription
price for the Shares in respect of which the notice is given,
whereupon our Company shall as soon as possible and, in any
event, no later than the business day immediately prior to the
date of the proposed general meeting, allot the relevant Shares
to the grantee credited as fully paid.

Rights on compromise or arrangement between our
company and its members or creditors

If a compromise or arrangement between our Company and its
members or creditors is proposed for the purposes of a scheme
for the reconstruction of our Company or its amalgamation with
any other companies pursuant to the laws of the jurisdiction in
which our Company was incorporated, our Company shall give
notice to all the grantees of the options on the same day as it
gives notice of the meeting to its members or creditors
summoning the meeting to consider such a compromise or
arrangement and any grantee may by notice in writing to our
Company accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of
the aggregate subscription price for our Shares in respect of
which the notice is given (such notice to be received by our
Company no later than two business days prior to the proposed
meeting), exercise the option to its full extent or to the extent
specified in the notice and our Company shall as soon as possible
and in any event no later than the business day immediately prior
to the date of the proposed meeting, allot and issue such
number of Shares to the grantee which falls to be issued on such
exercise of the option credited as fully paid and register the
grantee as holder thereof.
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(a)

(r)
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With effect from the date of such meeting, the rights of all
grantees to exercise their respective options shall forthwith be
suspended. Upon such compromise or arrangement becoming
effective, all options shall, to the extent that they have not been
exercised, lapse and determine. If for any reason such
compromise or arrangement does not become effective and is
terminated or lapses, the rights of grantees to exercise their
respective options shall with effect from such termination be
restored in full but only upon the extent not already exercised
and shall become exercisable.

Ranking of shares

Our Shares to be allotted upon the exercise of an option will not
carry voting rights until completion of the registration of the
grantee (or any other person) as the holder thereof. Subject to
the aforesaid, Shares allotted and issued on the exercise of
options will rank pari passu and shall have the same voting,
dividend, transfer and other rights (including those arising on
liquidation) as at attached to the other fully-paid Shares in issue
on the date of exercise, save that they will not rank for any
dividend or other distribution declared or recommended or
resolved to be paid or made by reference to a record date falling
on or before the date of exercise.

Effect of alterations to capital

In the event of any alteration in the capital structure of our
Company whilst any option may become or remains exercisable,
whether by way of capitalisation issue, rights issue, consolidation,
subdivision or reduction of share capital of our Company, such
corresponding alterations (if any) shall be made in the number of
Shares subject to any outstanding options and/or the
subscription price per Share of each outstanding option as the
auditors of our Company or an independent financial adviser
shall certify in writing to the Board to be in their/his opinion fair
and reasonable in compliance with Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing
Rules and the note thereto and the supplementary guidance
attached to the letter from the Stock Exchange dated 5
September 2005 to all issuers relating to share option schemes.
The capacity of the auditors of our Company or the approved
independent financial adviser, as the case may be, in this
paragraph is that of experts and not arbitrators and their
certificate shall, in the absence of manifest error, be final and
conclusive and binding on our Company and the grantees.
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(s)

Any such alterations will be made on the basis that a grantee
shall have the same proportion of the equity capital of our
Company (as interpreted in accordance with the supplementary
guidance attached to the letter from the Stock Exchange dated 5
September 2005 to all issuers relating to share option schemes)
for which any grantee of an option is entitled to subscribe
pursuant to the options held by him before such alteration
provided that no such alteration shall be made if the effect of
which would be to enable a Share to be issued at less than its
nominal value. The issue of securities as consideration in a
transaction is not to be regarded as a circumstance requiring any
such alterations.

Expiry of option
An option shall lapse automatically and shall not be exercisable
(to the extent not already exercised) on the earliest of:

(i) the date of expiry of the option as may be determined by
the Board;

(i) the expiry of any of the periods referred to in paragraphs (l),
(m), (n);

(i) the date upon which the scheme of arrangement of our
Company referred to in paragraph (p) becomes effective;

(iv)  subject to paragraph (o), the date of commencement of the
winding-up of our Company;

(v)  the date upon which the grantee ceases to be an Eligible
Participant by reason of such grantee’s resignation from the
employment of our Company or any of its subsidiaries or
the termination of his or her employment or contract on
the grounds that he or she has been guilty of serious
misconduct, or has committed any act of bankruptcy or is
unable to pay his or her debts or has become insolvent or
has made any arrangement or has compromised with his or
her creditors generally, or has been convicted of any
criminal offence involving his or her integrity or honesty or
has been in breach of contract. A resolution of the Board to
the effect that the employment of a grantee has or has not
been terminated on one or more of the grounds specified
in this paragraph shall be conclusive; or

(s)
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(t)

(vi) the date upon which the Board shall exercise our
Company’s right to cancel the option at any time after the
grantee commits a breach of paragraph (i) above or the
options are cancelled in accordance with paragraph (u)
below.

Alteration of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme may be altered in any respect by
resolution of the Board except that:

() any alteration to the advantage of the grantees or the
Eligible Participants (as the case may be) in respect of the
matters contained in Rule 17.03 of the Listing Rules; and

(i) any material alteration to the terms and conditions of the
Share Option Scheme or any change to the terms of
options granted, shall first be approved by our Shareholders
in general meeting provided that if the proposed alteration
shall adversely affect any option granted or agreed to be
granted prior to the date of alteration, such alteration shall
be further subject to the grantees’ approval in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme. The amended
terms and any adjustment to be made to the exercise price
of the Share Option Scheme shall still comply with Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules, the supplemental guidance of 5
September 2005 and any future guidance or interpretation
of the Listing Rules from time to time and any change to
the authority of the Board in relation to any alteration to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme must be approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting.

(u) Cancellation of options

76

Any cancellation of options granted but not exercised must be
approved by the grantees of the relevant options in writing. For
the avoidance of doubt, such approval is not required in the
event that any option is cancelled pursuant to paragraph (i).
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(v) Termination of the Share Option Scheme

Our Company may by resolution in general meeting or the Board
may at any time terminate the Share Option Scheme and in such
event no further option shall be offered but the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme shall remain in force to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of any option granted
prior thereto or otherwise as may be required in accordance with
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

Options granted prior to such termination but not yet exercised
at the time of termination shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Our Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and the development of the society. Details of the
Group’'s development, performance and operation in the
environmental aspect will be set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Our Group has adopted internal control and risk management policies
to monitor the on-going compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. As far as the Board is concerned, our Group has complied
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries in
all material aspects.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, AND KEY
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Our Group is in good relationship with its employees and we have
policies in place to ensure our employees’ remuneration, and welfare
package as competitive among other players in the industry and they
receive adequate continuous professional training. Our Group also
maintains a good relationship with its customers and suppliers, without
whom the production and operation success will not be guaranteed.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 28.4%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 74.9%
Sales

— the largest customer 23.1%
— five largest customers in aggregate 70.1%

Save as Bilsea International disclosed in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” below, none of the Directors, their respective
close associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any
interest in the five largest suppliers or customers.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions:

IBRRFRHEER
AEBTEHENREFERFREORE
BRHEREHLLWT

R

— &AEER 28.4%
— AARHEmEH 74.9%
— &AEP 23.1%
—RAREFAH# 70.1%

BRTITX [ HERERS ] EHMERD
Bilsea International #p + BB EEH - HE X
ENEEBBEANBESMAHEEART
5% A ERR AN EIERARER - R A KRR
KBS TR -

BERERS
REBZE202F12A31BILEE  KEE
BUTHERERS

Annual actual
transaction

Annual cap amount
for the year for the year
ended ended
Name of relevant Connected relationship 31 December 31 December
connected persons with the Group Nature of transactions 2021 2021
HZ2021F BZ21 5
12A31H 12A31H
ILFEH LLFEER
FRBEEALER EAKENRERE XHHE FELR ERRZEHE
US$'000 US$'000
TER TER

Exempt

E#e
Bilsea International Holdings Note Property leasing N/a N/a
Pte Ltd (‘Bilsea Holdings")

Bilsea Holdings Uiz MERE TEA TEH
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Annual actual
transaction
Annual cap amount
for the year for the year
ended ended
Name of relevant Connected relationship 31 December 31 December
connected persons with the Group Nature of transactions 2021 2021
Bza021% Bza021F
12A31H 12A31H
LLFEH LEFEMN
BRREALER HEAKENHERE XHME FELR BEBRXZEE
US$'000 US$'000
TET FET

Non-exempt

TE#H%
Bilsea International Pte. Ltd. Note Provision of asphalt tanker 22,500 11,199
(‘Bilsea International’) chartering services

Bilsea International BisE RALE S MM R 22,500 11,199

Note: Bilsea Holdings is wholly owned by Bilsea International (mainly engages in asphalt
trading and provision of transportation services), which is in turn owned as to
64%, 34%, 2% by Ms. Liu Weipeng, Mr. Yan Xiankai (the spouse of Ms. Liu
Weipeng) and Ms. Gao Chuan, respectively. As Ms. Liu Weipeng and Mr. Yan
Xiankai are both the directors of some of our subsidiaries, Bilsea Holdings and
Bilsea International are associates of each of Ms. Liu Weipeng and Mr. Yan Xiankai,
and are connected persons of our Group at the subsidiary level. As at the date of
this report, our Company is owned as to 3.41% by Bilsea International.

Bilxin Tenancy Agreement

A tenancy agreement (the “Bilxin Tenancy Agreement’) was entered
into between Bilsea Holdings as landlord and the Company’s subsidiary
Bilxin Shipping Group Pte Ltd ("Bilxin Shipping”) as tenant, under
which Bilsea Holdings agreed to lease a property located in Singapore
to Bilxin Shipping, for a term of 12 months commencing from 1 January
2021 and ending on 31 December 2021 for office use. Pursuant to the
Bilxin Tenancy Agreement, the monthly rental payable to Bilsea
Holdings shall be in the sum of US$2,000 (exclusive of the relevant
goods and services tax in Singapore). The monthly rental under the
Bilxin Tenancy Agreement was determined on an arm'’s length basis
between Bilsea Holdings and Bilxin Shipping. Total rental payable by
the Group under the Bilxin Tenancy Agreement amounted to
US$24,000 (equivalent to HK$187,000) for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Bff7E : Bilsea Holdings FA Bilsea International ( = 2 ¢ =&
BEEE S RIBHERRYS) 2 EWE - MBilsea
International A Liu Weipeng 2ZZ = * Liu Weipeng
27+ K BL 48 Yan Xiankai 55 4 BA & Gao Chuan 2
15 B 64% ~ 34% K 2% ° FIFA Liu Weipeng
224 [ Yan Xiankai £ 439 B EAPE T E A A
#J)E = - Bilsea Holdings K& Bilsea International £
Liu Weipeng 2 &= & Yan Xiankai 5t 4 & B RO 2
A WAREERMEARERNEAEAL -
N4 B A - XA R Bilsea International #
H341% °

Bilxin fH & 1# 3%

Bilsea Holdings (fE & A ) BEAAR R &) M /&
72 &) Bilxin Shipping Group Pte Ltd ([ Bilxin
Shipping |) ({EAEBAN) I —HHEER
# ([Bilxinl & 1 &/ 1) - 1% Ut - Bilsea
Holdings [&] & [A Bilxin Shipping i 8 £z 7 #
LR —IBYZE - B AR - B2021F
1TA1BRZE2021F 128381t A+ =
BAH - BREBIXKnNHEWZ T AEN
Bilsea Holdings &Y #H & 42 8 & /52,0003 7T
(M EFER TN B A R P mm SRS TR o
Bilxin #H & 1z 18 T~ 79 & A M & JI H Bilsea
Holdings &2 Bilxin Shipping #& A~ ¥ £ 7 &
EeHE0WIFNANALFE  &~&
ERBIxnHEHZE TENEHSBER
24,0003 7T (FHE R 187,00087T) °
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The transactions under the Bilxin Tenancy Agreement constitute de
minimis continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Rule 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Bilxin Tenancy
Agreement and the transactions thereunder are exempted from the
reporting, announcement, annual review, circular and the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Bilsea Master Service Agreement

On 6 September 2018, the Company’s subsidiary, Shun Yuen Group
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Shun Yuen HK"), as service provider, entered
into a master service agreement (the “Existing Bilsea Master Service
Agreement’) with Bilsea International, for a term ended on 31
December 2020, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide
asphalt tanker chartering services to Bilsea International and/or its
subsidiaries (the “Bilsea Group”). As the Existing Bilsea Master Service
Agreement expired on 31 December 2020, the Company intended to
continue the transactions contemplated thereunder, on 28 October
2020, Shun Yuen HK entered into a renewed master service agreement
(the "2021-2023 Bilsea Master Service Agreement”’) with Bilsea
International based on substantially the same terms and conditions as
the Existing Bilsea Master Service Agreement.

The service fees payable by Bilsea Group to the Group were
determined after arm’s length negotiation between the parties thereto
with reference to (i) reputation of the customer; (i) duration of charter
period; (i) the prevailing market circumstances; (iv) past business
relationship with the customer; (v) the financing cost of vessel; (vi) cost
of shipbuilding and operation; and (vii) cargo quantity. Taking into
account that the Group has already provided asphalt tanker chartering
services to Bilsea Group in the past and that provision of such services
has offered stable and considerable profits to the Group historically,
the Directors consider that it is in the Group’s interests to continue the
relationship with Bilsea Group and to provide the asphalt tanker
chartering services under the 2021-2023 Bilsea Master Service
Agreement to Bilsea Group. For details of the renewal of 2021-2023
Bilsea Master Service Agreement of these continuing connected
transactions, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 28
October 2020.
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As for the sales amount, for the year ended 31 December 2021, the
annual cap for these continuing connected transactions in total was
US$22.5 million, and the actual transaction amount for the year was
approximately US$11.2 million.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, our independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the above non-exempt continuing
connected transactions and have confirmed that such transactions
were entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal or better commercial terms; and

(iii) in accordance with the agreements for such transactions, the
terms of which are fair and reasonable, and are in the interest of
the Shareholders as a whole.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of all of its
non-exempt continuing connected transactions.

The Company'’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s non-
exempt continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions disclosed above.

The Directors confirm that the auditor has confirmed the matter set
out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions for the year as disclosed in note 36(a) to
the consolidated financial statements also constituted exempted
connected transactions as defined under the Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended 31
December 2021, there were no connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions which are required to be disclosed by the
Company in accordance with the provisions concerning the disclosure
of connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is
sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued shares
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 and to the date of this
annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to the “Share Option
Scheme”, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the Directors
or the controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company nor any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) that competed or might compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interest which any such person had or might have with the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which any controlling shareholders
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2021.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
our Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by RSM Hong
Kong who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company did not change its auditor since the listing of the
Company.

By order of the Board
Mr. Chen Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022

ERBRRRERSYNES

AR B E AT E R RN E = 2021 5
12 A 31 B IEFE F RF A EA RS
BRI AR BEAERBR R E R EER
HAEBEBEARGSHERNERGL -

B R R
EXUTHERRABEARRELZMZE
BEMBHRR

¥ BB
RAMBRREHEPRXSIMEBAE
it REBREERFBFEAE LRE -
BAERYRTEBHEETE

AR B EHIARKE BAZEED -

EEEED
BRER B 4E
e

EE 0 20202F3 258

EREXEEERAF /2021 FFRH 83



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiR -HERERBHRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Our Group is delighted to present our fourth Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") report (the “ESG Report” or “Report’) to illustrate
our management approach and performance in sustainable
development.

Reporting Scope and Period

The reporting scope covers the performance and measures of the
Group's ESG development of the operations of our offices in the PRC,
Hong Kong and Singapore, and our asphalt tanker chartering business,
bulk carrier chartering business and asphalt trading business in the
reporting period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

Reporting Standard and Principles

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide “(the “ESG Guide”) set out in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. This Report has strictly complied with
all provisions of “mandatory disclosure requirements” and “comply or
explain”in the ESG Guide.
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The following reporting principles have been adopted in the
preparation of the Report:

Materiality

Quantification

Balance

Consistency

We have conducted materiality assessment and
collected stakeholders’' feedback, the importance
levels of various ESG issues to the Group and
stakeholders in 2021 were assessed, thus serving as
the disclosure focus of the Report.

In order to evaluate the ESG performance of the
Group during the reporting period comprehensively,
we disclosed the applicable quantitative key
performance indicators in the ESG Guide, and stated
the standards, methods, assumptions and
calculation reference and basis used to quantify the
key performance indicators, including the sources of
major conversion factors.

The Report discloses the Group's progress and
challenges in sustainable development management,
so as to fully demonstrate our sustainable
development performance.

The statistical methods used in the ESG Report are
generally consistent with those used in previous
years, and explanation is provided on any changes
in relevant factors, such as statistical methods or key
performance indicators.

Feedback on the Report

We welcome your comments or suggestions regarding the Report and
our overall sustainability practices. Your support is the motivating force
for our continuous improvement. Please feel free to contact us through
the following channels:

Address:

Telephone:
Email:
Website:

Room 02-05, 40th Floor
International Commerce Centre
No. 23 Changting Street
Taijiang, Fuzhou

China

+ 86-591-87573330
angelazhu@xysgroup.com
WWW.XYSgroup.com
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
MANAGEMENT APPROACH

While pursuing business development, we actively connect with our
stakeholders, pay attention to the environment and the society and
proactively undertake our social responsibility to contribute to the
sustainable development of the society.

Oversight in Sustainability

We proactively manage ESG matters and promote sustainability.
During the reporting period, we have established robust ESG
governance framework to ensure that the ESG material issues are fully
considered in our operation and decision making, which could
safeguard the interests of our stakeholders and align with our
corporate values.

The details of ESG governance of the Group are stated in the section
headed “Governing Sustainability”, which comprises the ESG
governance structure, ESG risks management and the corporate
compliance.

Connecting with Stakeholders

We strive to create long-term value for our stakeholders. To better
understand the expectations in the interests of our stakeholders, we
engaged with them and collected their feedback through diverse
channels on a regular basis. We maintain open dialogues and build
trusted relationships with our stakeholders through ongoing and
structured engagement. We believe that concerns and opinions from
our stakeholders are valuable in strategically improving our
sustainability performance.
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The table below summarises the key stakeholder, their main concerns
and the engagement channels adopted in our operations.

TERBINEBRMERE  RENTEM
FRBARERMARGLETNEBERE

Key Stakeholders Issues of Main Concerns Engagement Channels
FEFGE FEBIRE BBRE
Government and regulators . Compliance with laws and Abiding by laws and regulations
B R ESE#iE regulations RSO E JNG R
B RE KRG Implementing relevant policies and
Corporate governance measures according to the laws and
BEER regulations
ORI E B IR R IE b
Suppliers . Increasing production scale Tendering
R BAEERE Bz
Open and fair purchases Regular communication
NFERFERE EHER
Inspection and evaluation
Bt h
Shareholders and investors . Financial and operating Shareholders’ meeting
PRERIEEE performances RERE
Mg R EERR Roadshow
Growth strategies and business BB
prospect Investor presentation
BRERNEBATR REERES
Risk management Announcement
B i 38 NE

Information disclosure

BRHNEE
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Key Stakeholders Issues of Main Concerns Engagement Channels
FEHHNE FTEBIRE BBERE
Trade and industry associations - Labour issues . Abiding by relevant laws and
ITEhe ZTHEB regulations
Safety ESTIRRAR KRG
fogea . Business communication
Sharing of operation best practices EFLY 3

DERELEED

Customers and potential clients -« Pricing . Company website
BEPLBRERRP EfE NSIECD
Quiality of products and services . Email
EmMRBEE B
Compliance with laws and . Satisfaction survey
regulations MEERAE
CASDZREINTRL
Employees . Salaries and welfare . Regular meetings
BT HENBEN EHeE
Career development . Training
BERR ol
Team building . Staff activities
EIP S = WG
Local communities . Community involvement . Company website
=p: ekl HERem NGIEEN
Environmental compliances
REAR
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Stakeholders-driven Materiality Assessment

To ensure our ESG development and strategies are always aligned with
stakeholders’ expectations, we commissioned external professional
consultancy to carry out a stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment for 2021 in order to further determine the material ESG
issues.

Our material assessment process includes the following four steps:

Analysis of the
materiality
assessment results
OMEEN

ks

Identifying
materality issues
e

Conducting survey

S

EE%1

Based on development trend in the shipping industry, along with
benchmarking and studies on stakeholders, we have selected
corresponding material topics according to their economic,
environmental and social influence, as well as their impact on the
decision-making of stakeholders and in our corporate management.

Our stakeholder groups (e.g. the Board, employees, suppliers) are
invited to share their perspectives in ESG and to rate the materiality on
the identified 13 ESG topics towards the stakeholders themselves as
well as the Group’s business operation through online surveys. The
results of the materiality assessment were illustrated in two dimensions,
namely “Importance to stakeholders” and “Importance to business
operation” to prioritise the ESG issues identified.

O ERETENEEMNME

SERBFIRE  H8 REa %R MRS
MR ERHENRERE -3 RAZRE
SNEBERFBARAET0NFRHNHER
HENEEURE  AE-—PEBEEEENR

BoHeakEREE -

BAMEENFEEEEF NI mEY

B

Vertification of the
materality

assessment result
%{—;‘:‘75\.2 EE/'\E
NER A z=Z

BREECES

RIEBHHEXRNHREY  RTEHNE
MR RMRBELEEMEZBYL
e RERHE  BROERRLEAE

LERNYE MERBAIERNES
% -

BHFsmnEHRE(WESEe  BEIRHEE
B XBOERERRR LG RERT
HEHEF - WRBR EEAEREERNNI3
HIRE - HegRERTBURFNERS K
AEEXBELNEERETTD B2
MRS ERNME D m2a - B 55
MENERE] RIHEHEENER
] NEERE HehBaEENE
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The following materiality matrix and list summarise the material issues

relevant to us.

SEEEMH
High-

ATEEMEREE LI R T FINEE NS

=3
AR o

2021 Materiality Matrix of ESG Issues

materiality

HEOENEEM

Importance to stakeholders

2021 FIRIE - HEREAREENEEMEMRE

Energy Efficency and Energy-saving
BEIRA K K ffie

Air Emissions

ARSI \

P

Responsing To Cliamte Change /

e

Greenhouse Gases Emissions \
B EREEHEN

Ocean Pollutions
R

Supply Chain Management
HEEEIR

Corperate Goverence

EER

Occuptional Health and Safety
a&%@%ﬁ?ﬁ/
Employee’s Rights and Care
BTHMEEE
Business Compliance
@ cHuE
Risk Management
[\ E 1R
Service Quality and Safety

O — EBpEERZ:

Employee’s Training and Career Development
BTHIIRBEER

mi:::::ty Importance to business &Qeration of the Group ma':;?i:;ity
bt HAREXRBEENEEREN BEEEH

We have identified the following material ESG issues:

High materiality issues

BPCHEENTER MRS

2 g .
FERE

HEREE

Other materiality issues

BEEEMEE HEEMEE

1. Business Compliance 7. Supply Chain Management
AREE e E R

2. Corporate Governance 8. Greenhouse Gases Emissions
PEER B EREBHE

3. Risk Management 9. Employee’s Training and Career Development
2 B 3 BTHRIIRBRER

4. Service Quality and Safety 10.  Energy Efficiency and Energy-saving
REEERLZ S BEIR UK K EPBe

5. Employee’s Rights and Care 11. Ocean Pollutions
B THEN N RE ETR

6.  Occupational Health and Safety 12. Air Emissions
BEREEZE RRTRDBE

13.  Responding To Climate Change
JE AR E b

20
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With the inputs and efforts from our stakeholders, we have taken the
material ESG issues into considerations while reviewing the latest
development of our ESG management approaches, and those have
been organized and shown in the preparation of this Report. We have
the materiality issues disclosed in the following chapters:

Governing Sustainability

Protecting the Environment

Walking along with Employees

Operating Our Business Responsibly

We will continuously improve our ESG approaches along with the join
hands of our stakeholders.

ERHENSEREAT BB ELER
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GOVERNING SUSTAINABILITY
Establishing Robust Environmental, Social and
Governance Structure

92

ESG Governance in the Group

We remain anchored with our environmental and social
commitments and have defined clear responsibilities for the
Board and a governance structure amongst the Group that lays a
solid foundation for our sustainable development.

The Board has overall responsibility to oversee the Group's ESG
matters, as well as to determine the ESG management priority,
approaches and strategies. The Board is the highest decision-
making institution in our ESG management structure. To better
assist and monitor the ESG management, ESG Working Group has
been established. The ESG Working Group is composed of
representatives from functional departments, who are dedicated
to facilitating the ESG strategies implementations into our daily
operations. Meanwhile, the ESG Working Group connected the
overall Group through delivering decisions made by the Board
and reporting the work progress and feedbacks from the
functional departments.

Through supports and regular reporting from the ESG Working
Group, the Board effectively supervise the Group's overall ESG
development, including the management on the material issues,
identification of ESG risks and opportunities, review on ESG
performances etc. The ESG governance structure enables a timely
evaluation on the implemented policies and initiatives in our
operation, which encourages a continuous improvement on key
ESG targets, performance and progress.
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. ESG Governance Structure

The Board

ESG
Working Group
RE g RER

T

Marine
Department

Vi

Dedicated ESG
work leader in
the functional
departments

Teachnical
Department

Dedicated ESG
work leader in
the functional
departments

THRIEER

HR & Administration Business
Department Department

AEITHAD [

Dedicated ESG Dedicated ESG
work leader in work leader in
the functional the functional
departments departments

Accounting Purchasing
Department Department

B ER EREBAD

Dedicated ESG Dedicated ESG
work leader in work leader in
the functional the functional
departments

ESG Governance Structure of Xin Yuan Enterprises Group Limited

FEREXFERRARANRE HEREGNERRE
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Responsibilities of ESG Working Group
The ESG Working Group meets at least once a year and whenever
necessary to closely work for the Board in managing ESG issues

on a regular basis. The main responsibilities of the ESG Working

Group include:

M

Organize the Company’s ESG work, and formulate relevant
systems and procedures, according to the Company’s
overall ESG management goals, management strategies
and guidelines;

Coordinate and supervise implementation and execution of
ESG-related work by various functional departments of the
Group;

Review the progress of achieving ESG goals, and assist the
Board to review the progress of ESG goals and targets;

Coordinate relevant departments of the Group to prepare
and review the annual ESG Report, and submit for the
Board's approval;

Regularly report to the Board on ESG management work
(including but not limited to evaluation, prioritization and
management of important ESG-related matters);

Communicate with stakeholders on ESG matters, and
provide feedback to the Board, management or relevant
departments, etc,, if necessary;

Perform other ESG-related work at the request of the Board,
including but not limited to providing ESG-related training
to the Board.
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. Refining Governance Structure
To further enhance the governance structure, we will keep
abreast of the rising expectations on corporate sustainable
development with respect to the ESG Guide which has been
giving advice and insights in cooperate ESG governance.

ESG Risk Management

With the basis of the existing risk management and response
mechanism, we have conducted an ESG risk assessment in 2021 to
further explore the potential ESG risks posed to our business.

The ESG risks assessment is conducted based on the megatrend
analysis and peers’ benchmarking. ESG risks are further evaluated and
prioritised under the two perspectives of “severity of potential negative
impacts” and “possibility of occurrence”. We invited internal
stakeholders to rank the identified ESG risks into four levels: “Very Low”,
"Low”, "Moderate” and “High". The "High" level ESG risks are identified
as significant ESG risks.

In the reporting period, we have identified 21 ESG risks and
incorporated into our ESG risk checklist. 13 “Moderate” level and 8
“Low” level ESG risks are identified and none significant risks are
identified.

We have formulated corresponding risk response strategies for
different level of ESG risks, and implemented sound risk management
and control measures in daily duties by various departments to prevent
the occurrence of major risk events.
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Detailed management approach to one of the "Moderate” level risksis  Erf—IF [ 5 | BB FAEIE 5 AH

shown as below:

FanR

Identified ESG Risk Infectious Disease

ERBIAERER

HERERER B2

Potential Impact In 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic continued to be severe across the globe. A
BEEE resurgence of infectious cases in many countries has led to large-scale lockdowns

Our Responses

BIAMH R

and tightened epidemic control measures, such as blocking borders and closing
ports, or causing congestion at transport destination ports, and so on, which might
directly affect our operations. Number of infected cases has risen again and new virus
strains have appeared, which post health issues to our crew and employees.
Refineries and other supply chain partners might face difficulties to transport as
scheduled, which may result in insufficient shipping capacity or maintenance
difficulties and extension of dry-docking periods.

ZEZ—F  RIRCOVID-19EBEERARIE - ZEBRERRHEIBTT - BT
ARREH - WER B EER - HFEENERED - EER B B
BORES  ERSEETERPMNES - BERRBOBR LI - #EVE
FHRAIR - COVID- 19K B EHR MMM E MEB HBRRFEITENEE - R -
FEROH R B EL A (e SR RO RE FE IR PR B DA LN ERSE 81 - BEUE N T R SIS IR B -
ISIEHRERFBFR

Responding mechanism:

PEST#E )

COVID-19 prevention and control taskforce have been established since 2020, and
we have formulated the “Guidelines of COVID-19 Prevention and Control Onboard" and
the "Office Pandemic Prevention and Control Policy” with reference to the relevant
documents developed by the World Health Organization ("WHO") and The
International Maritime Organization (“IMO") and recommendations and guidelines
promulgated by the Maritime Safety Administration of the PRC (“China MSA") to
combat the epidemic. The guidelines and policy stipulate on-board management
responsibilities, inspection systems, response drills and trainings, prevention and
control measures, personal protection measures and other epidemic prevention and
control management measures taken onboard and at offices.

BME T FRENZCOVID-19F = T/E4H - W 2 Rt 7 &4 858
(TwHo |) X Bl g %= 4048 (Mo ) I & R R X A R BB £/ ([ P El
MSA ) B K32 I8 R - $ITE T (COVID- 198 LB 1318 B ) R (N 35 T &
IEAERE)AMEBRE - ZEMARBERMRE T EEREE  EHE -
JEEEE SR - BiEE e - (B A DT b IA KA £ R A5 P SR EY B
b BB I E IR FE e
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Identified ESG Risk Infectious Disease
2RI HRE
HERERRAR B35

Effective anti-epidemic measures:

BRI R

Various measures have been put in place to combat COVID-19, such as: COVID-19
prevention and control on-board quarantine plan; employees returning from
overseas must undergo 14-day home quarantine, and employees returning from
medium and high-risk areas must be tested for COVID-19. Implementing safety and
health measures in offices in various places, including requiring employees to wear
masks, maintaining social distance, reducing employees’ business trips outside the
province, and so on, which help to enhance employees’ awareness on epidemic
prevention and hygiene, and while reduce the occurrence of infection.
RIBCOVID-19%1E - HFIFIE T 2B - a0COVID-19B7 1% M L FRBEt S ;
FBINREIE THAKLBI4RNERERE - A oRERMERREE THEETT
COVID-194 RI%E - HMIERES PR GMEN  BEEREIMECE - R
AR BPBETIRINEZFLTR2EEREN U BRI ERIESE
TR EREERER R DRRNEE -

Flexible operations:

BEBRSE:

We are committed to maintaining good relationships and close communications
with suppliers and business partners, such as ship management companies, ship
brokerage companies, ship manufacturers and suppliers of spare parts and other
materials, which enables us to mobilize resources flexibly in the long run.

BB AR EHER MEBREY  OIMMAEIERGF ML QR - M
SUER - R4 REMMEHERSSEREERRIFOBE  TRSEEYE
BOEBRMAIBETESMAZER -

We will continuously monitor, analyze and review the potential ESG  F {95 EER - i LR PIEEH
risks and opportunities in our business. HBTEIRE - g NERRER RS -
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Compliance Operations

We strictly comply with the laws and regulations of the respective
countries and regions, and simultaneously we abide by the
requirements of the international conventions for our operations.
Meanwhile, we also pay attention in business compliance under
different scenarios. We will provide descriptions in detail on the
business compliance actions and the corresponding laws and
regulations, as well as the appropriate internal policies and guidelines
in the chapters of this Report accordingly.

In the reporting period, to strengthen our employees awareness
towards the up-to-date international and regional implemented
regulations and policies, we have provided various trainings and
introduction sessions on each of the significant regulations that we
strictly abide, includes but not limited to International Maritime Solid
Bulk Cargoes Code ("IMSBC Code"), International Convention for the
Safety of Life at Sea ("SOLAS"), STCW 95, Maritime Labour Convention,
2006 and so on. Internal Conference on researches and findings that
related to the latest industry developments have been organized
timely to ensure we are in compliance with the relevant laws,
regulations and best practices.
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Responding to latest environmental regulations in IMO
and Shipping industry

Changes and inconsistencies in external environmental
regulatory requirements across the industry may cause an
increase in exposure on compliance risks, and financial or
reputational losses to us. Lately, IMO has launched series of
policies, regulations and updated policies and regulations
regarding to enhance the environmental protections and
conservations, performance in the shipping industries. The 76th
conference organized by the IMO Marine Environment Protection
Committee, has shed lights on technical and operational
initiatives, including Existing Ship Energy Efficiency Design Index
("EEXI"), Operational Carbon Intensity Index (“CIl") and Ship
Energy Efficiency Management Plan (“SEEMP”) were introduced
with an aim of carbon reductions for all international shipping.

In view of that, we have been working in the upgradations of our
ships, so as to retain high energy efficiency and low carbon
emissions shipping operation that aligns with the latest
international standard and marine development trend at all time.

We are fully supported with a set of environmental-conscious
measures, while we also cooperated closely with our engineers,
customers, shipyards, and international societies to study the
upgradations on ship hardware and shipping systems, with an
aim to strengthen the applications of industry-leading low-
carbon technology on our ships. The ESG working group and our
operations professionals will continuously pay attention to the
environmental compliance related issues through studying the
market dynamics and industry development and actively carry
out relevant preparations work to minimize the compliance risks
and potential impacts on our business.
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PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

Echoed with our commitments to protect the environment, we have
been stepping up our efforts to enhance our sustainability
performances across all business units. Devoted to minimising adverse
impacts arising from our operation, we are committed to complying
with relevant international, regional and local environmental
regulations at the sea and port, including but not limited to the Marpol
Convention, the International Management Code for the Safe
Operation of Ships and for Pollution Prevention (“ISM Code"), the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC, the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC and the Atmospheric Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC. We have been implementing a
wide variety of sustainable policies and measures to advocate
environmental awareness of customers and suppliers.

During the reporting period, there were no reported prosecution cases
for violation of laws and regulations related to environmental
protection.

Highlights of Environmental-conscious Strategies in 2021
In 2021, to turn our commitment on environmental protection into
long-term progress, we have developed different achievable target
and action plans, with an aim to further strengthen the effectiveness of
our diversified initiatives in the following chapters step by step.

The Board will continuously monitor and review the progress of our
targets, and ensure the relevant policies and initiatives are effective.
Meanwhile, we will explore more directions in targets setting based on
the material environment impacts arised in our operations.
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. Transforming into decarbonising shipping .
IMO’s decarbonisation goals have become our industry’s biggest
long-term technical challenge, which require the development of
new low-carbon operations and related bunkering services
worldwide. As such, we closely adopted measures and innovative
technologies to reduce our carbon intensity and improve our fuel
consumption efficiency, below are our commitments which is
consistence with our industry goals:

Rk A Y

B GEABNRIREZEEXN AR
MITERRANRBEMKE - FE
FERER TR E ERRE R
WELE o Bt - HPIE )RS
K2 Bl 37 4540 LA B 1K 3R P9 MO ik 5 S I
RmE ‘1FﬁE’JW>H‘}%ﬁ§ﬁ(“? AN A
BPRFE1TE B MR

Our commitments: HAIH) A
Increase in Fuel efficiency, Reduction in Carbon Intensity and RERBEME  BEREERERER

Air emissions

Short-term targets: SHIRE -

All existing ships should meet the latest IMO requirements of EEXI
and Cll from January 1,2023

Strengthen the fuel management of our fleet, sulphur oxide
emission intensity and carbon emission intensity will be reduced

Align air pollutants reduction target with the reductions of our
carbon intensity targets, as air pollutants such as particulate
matter (PM) emissions and Nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions are
closely correlated

BH2023F1 A1 H#E  FTAIRAEMM
I REB ST IMO SRR BE R ET IR &
fix ol fE 388 Bk

MeRMBRE ER - RERELD
PR 2 K b BE e =

RRGRYNFRZERZE _—R
ek E E R EE — FRE EEEAK
RISRY - REACWB R R BIFR
FHERUER — S ALHR B R L) AE RS

Middle to Long-term targets: FHIRRHABAE :

Continuously track and disclose energy efficiency indicators and
performance

Strive to meet the energy efficiency obligations that are expected
to apply to our ships

Keep a close eye on technological, regulatory and related
developments in the shipping industry to ensure we are well-
prepared

BEBM IR RN AL L ERIZ
PNEEY

BEBEEBTHAERMEMIEERNEE
BiE

YD BREMUE R - XA AAERE
R - ERIPIEL R
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Steps to Achieve Targets:

. Reduce in Fuel consumptions and air emissions
Use of low-sulpfur oil completely to achieve the IMO
sulphur cap and to reduce pollutant emissions

Follow strictly and study on the latest standard of IMO
regulations

Monitor and review closely on fuel consumption and
carbon emissions

. Improve energy efficiency on ships
Strengthen fuel management and enhance fuel utilizations

Strengthen maintenance on shipping engines, machinery,
equipments to ensure combustion efficiency

Timely overhaul and record to ensure that shipping
machinery and equipments are in the best condition

. Adoption of latest energy efficiency technologies and
practices
Fuel-efficient voyage planning with the Computer-aided
Routing services

Improve shipping designs, such as trim and draft
optimisation to reduce hull resistance

. Invest and use of clean energy
Gradually increase the proportion of clean energy use in
long run, such as solar energy equipments installation on
ships

Detailed study and invest in application of clean energy

102 XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BHAR 7

. BRERBUEFERERBER
ZEFAELHKLEE MO/
HEE LRI ITLEMEER

B 1 4% 5F % BF 92 IMO B9 3 37 %
iz

8

P ERE B R B M R S R BE IR

. REMRERME

ISR KRR E IR I 52 = KRR A
=

=

PSR AEAH S B - B - B
B 4 AR DA AR IR G S R
RE I 08 % R0 8% DA R AR M A 4%
WhER B R Hs A AR AR AR

. RARERSH RSN

ARSI GRS EITE
WA ERMIZ R E

DACHE U B AT - B AR AR AR Nz
IKEBAE LA B AR REFH 77

. BFRERNIRANMER
- BITRFBBRERNEML
5l PlanFEfM AR IR N2 KK
7 HE AR

SRR BB R IRER



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR #HEBRERGHE

potential harm
BRI EHKER
BERE

B it BT S DARL
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«  Developing targets in other environmental aspects . HTHMBEEMETIEBE
Targets Aspects Environmental Targets Targets Indicator Targets Achieving Frame
BEEHE REAR BRER ERARNRR
Marine Discharges Minimize hazardous waste Identify and prevent the application of hazardous ~ Short-term
& Waste and dispose responsibly substances, and reqularly update the Hazardous %2
Management  FEHJBEENL substances list
=dES2 30 9 NEEENTETRE BRIMENERAAEENE  THEMFENE
BUEE BE
Develop hazardous waste management approach  Short-term
HEBERENERIE ok
Regularly provide safety inspection and Short-term
maintenance of hazardous waste storage 2 H
equipment
THHREEMRFREETL2REREE
Minimize non-hazardous waste  Install and use more onboard waste disposal Middle term
and dispose responsibly machinery to reduce waste amount i Ef
RERNVEZENUANEE ZRUGAETSHMEENERESIRD
EH A ETRIE BEYE
Increase waste sorting and recycling devices Short-term
EREDHBROREE okt
Reduce plastic waste generation Middle term
WA R REME £ i
Manage wastewater treatment ~ Further equip and optimize sewage treatment Short-term
to minimize harmful marine  facilities 2 H
discharge E—AREREIKERERE
EREKEENZER D
BEREETENR Manage and review on ballast water management, ~ Middle term
implement innovative technique in reducing i E
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Targets Aspects Environmental Targets Targets Indicator Targets Achieving Frame
BEEHE REAR BRER ERARNRR
Offshore Water Avoid unnecessary water Increase the water-saving equipment on ships Short-term
Efficiency wastage R M EK R yoskal
B LRKME BETPEHKERRE
Regular maintenance of water supply and storage  Middle term
facilities et
TE BR MR MK R BT KR
Regularly check on the water-saving initiatives Long-term
progress KH
T BB EKE RN ER
Strengthen desalinating Optimize and maintain desalination water Middle term
seawater work generators, and strengthen desalinated water i H
meagKR I THE reserves
B RERRIOR M - INRKKE
Strengthen the usage ratio and the applications Middle term
of seawater desalination F
IE:EY S d:op YY) i
Reduce the fresh water Increase recycling uses of water resources Short-term
demands from ashore 1K E R ERF A yob:t

Wb EOSORER
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Green Designs

Our ship engineering professionals seize every opportunity to
incorporate green features and measures during the design and
construction processes to mitigate potential environmental impacts
throughout the business cycle. The adaptation of advanced and
innovative technology, along with the introduction of environmental
protection concepts during the ship designing process have allowed
us to significantly reduce the energy and fuel consumption during our
stages in design, construction, operation and maintenance.

We strictly fulfilled the requirements of the IMO, which launched the
energy efficiency and greenhouse gas reduction requirements by 2025,
and a limit on the sulphur content in the fuel oil used on board ships.
We have significantly enhanced the Energy Efficiency Design Index
("EEDI") of all the newly commissioned ships with their fuel
consumption well below international standards while contributing to
the combat against climate change. Meanwhile, very low sulphur fuel
oil ("WVLSFO") has been widely applied on the ships owned by us
during the reporting period to ensure we complying with the IMO
2020 global sulphur cap at all time.

Shore power system
BEZG

LED lighting
SRR AR AR AR

MGO supply unit system
AEHR AR 88 5 R AT

Monitor and alarm
system and power
management system
ERRERRRE)

Advanced ship type
4 s

&zt

Eco-friendly refrigerant

RRELE

Bigger black and grey water tank
EPNE/ N

Stern tube S.W. cooling system
KA R T

(HLBYB5%) 2RAR
Ballast Water Management system

EBHKEERE

Low speed and long stroke M/E
ST B IR o R R MY TTAR ) AR 5

Coating system (sea mate NB)

BeRE

HFIRM AR TR B R RGT M E B IR T
BERRBURRM TR MG - R EA(E
EEBHPNBEEREZE - BBEMMN
AR ET AR BR A ST BV B R R 32 5| AR IRIE
o RMERGT B - BEREERE
RIE K BE IR MR EAE -

e PIER A 8 ST IMO B MR B9 B 2025 F HYBER
MBERBERBBERTE KM A SHER
FIRERITE - BESRIERE LML ER
MR - BB KIRIRE A FIREMRM
RIRE R ETE 8N ([EEDL]) - BB RER
BIBIZZAE o BRI - RIREEN - B
AN EE EZE R RIER S
(TVLSFO)) » &R B P9 16 #2358 <F IMO 2020
FHRIKAB SHE LR -

Hydraulic system uses plant-based oil (VGP compliant)
BB R A YRR (7 & VGPIR%E)

Halogen-free cable
ERES

Non-Asbestos

RRER

Xin Yuan Enterprises Group Limited Eco-Friendly Ship Designs
FREEREBERARRELFHOMMRET

ERECEEEGR AR /2021 FFER
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Enhancing Energy Efficiency

Incorporating skeg stern, fin stabiliser, streamline style and
other advanced vessel designs to reduce water resistance
and improve vessel efficiency.

Advanced energy management systems are in place to
allow efficient energy allocation. The systems are monitored
and adjusted continuously during sailing to enable high
energy efficiency at all times.

Variable-frequency control system and energy-efficiency
light fixtures are applied and installed to reduce energy
consumption.

Completely follow the latest IMO regulations on fuel and
energy requirements, gradually compliance with EEXI
reduction requirements, track and monitor Carbon Intensity
with ClI.

Onshore power systems are used during berthing to reduce
the energy consumption on ships and emissions at dock.
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. Preventing Pollution
Ballast water treatment devices are installed to prevent
microbial growth in ballast water and avoid biological water
pollution during sailing.

Stern tubes alongside the seawater cooling system are fully
concealed to minimise the risk of oil leakage in the case of
stern tube failure.

Green materials such as halogen-free cable, fluorine-free
refrigerant, plant-based biodegradable hydraulic oil and
asbestos-free binder are used to avoid pollution during
vessel construction and operation.

Low sulphur fuel systems are installed to reduce sulphur
emissions.

Copolymer antifouling paint is used in the coating of the
entire vessel to avoid potential marine contamination and
prevent marine species from attaching themselves to the
ship hull, thereby minimising the disruption of the marine
ecosystem.

. Managing Waste
Hull-mounted incinerators are installed to treat solid waste
and oil waste at high temperatures.

A large volume storage tank is equipped for black water
and grey water to store oil waste generated.

On top of introducing green features into our vessels’ design, we
are dedicated to minimising the environmental impacts through
all-inclusive management.
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Green Operation

In terms of the vessel management business, we acknowledge the
potential emissions generated by the 2 Capesize ships, and have
established SEEMP to specify data collection for parameters such as
fuel oil consumptions, travel distance and underway hours, thus to
manage environmental pollution and safety operation. All of our
vessels have obtained the Statement of Compliance, which declares
that our fuel oil consumption collection are reported in accordance
with the methodology stated in the SEEMP. To further strengthening
our efforts, an internal guide, Energy Conservation and Emission
Reduction Measures for All Ships has been issued in the reporting
period. Currently, all ships that we owned have received the Engine
International Air Pollution Prevention Certificate, which certified that
the vessels had met the international standards in terms of air
emissions.

To further reduce the adverse impact posed by hazardous materials
and wastes, we entrust qualified professionals to handle hazardous
wastes collected on vessels during sailing. Inspections and sampling
on all possible hazardous materials at vessels are arranged for the ships
owned by us, allowing us to develop a more far-reaching management
plan in the future.

108 XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BReEYE

EMEEES T E - RFABMREIE
TR AT BEEE £ HE IR - B AT KA AR AE
MEEETE) - FIBAMRIERE - S - M
TREAF2HEBKSE - WEERRS
REHEREZ2ET - FIAEMMDEUS(E
M) BN ERBIR SR HIRR
MARRE R E IR AT SR E R TAERR - R
—FEEKR - RFIRHRERRE AR
I AETRERBEEHE) - B AT - B
BEVFTA AR 2 EG CE Bh# BIFRRD LE
ZERGFAEE)  BRAMMEARITED
PEpor E 2 Z B BERARE o

R — BRRRB EMF REERY RO
MEE RMAZRTABENEXRARRE
MMfTTRRET WA STERY - RAHIHE
THRENMMETEEEE EREYR
EREE - AMERRHEE2mAEE

El



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR #HEBRERGHE

Apart from ships managed by us, we also own 10 vessels that are being
managed by outsourced third-party shipping companies. Intending to
further minimise potential environmental impact, we not only put
effort in managing environmental impact during the design,
production and maintenance stage of the vessels managed by third
parties, but are also dedicated to maintaining close communications
with them and closely monitoring their environmental performance to
ensure the operations are in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations and fulfil our environmental protection requirements. For
instance, we arrange hazardous material inspections to develop an
inventory of hazardous materials at vessels whenever necessary, and
have developed ballast water management plans specific for each
vessel, thereby minimising the environmental impact of all vessels
owned by us during operations.

. Responding to Climate Change

In facing the foreseeable surging concerns and expectations of
the society and more stringent regulations on environmental
protection in the industry, we have been always holding a
positive attitude towards responding to climate change. In
among, decarbonating strategies and its impacts to climate
change has become a collective sustainable strategy among the
international shipping industry.

The Board and senior management have been committed to
leading the Group in identifying, monitoring and responding to
major climate-related issues in our business, and have fully
participated in the Group's strategy formulation process in
coordination with IMO latest carbon reduction regulations. Other
climate-related risks, namely physical risks, and other transitional
risks will be explored continuously with the supportive
coordination of our ESG Working Group. As such, we strive to
build up our business climate resilience and adopt precautionary
measures to get our business prepared for any potential impact.
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Green Procurement

We are keen on searching for opportunities to improve our overall
environmental performance by identifying environmental risks along
the value chain. When procuring vessels, we consider more than the
market rent level, price of second-hand vessels and vessel recycling as
well as pricing trends of second-hand vessels and vessel recycling. We
highly value and prioritise environmental factors as procurement
criteria, such as environmental-related technology certifications,
whether the vessels comply with emissions and energy efficiency
standards by the IMO and other international organisations and
whether the vessel has higher energy efficiency than other suppliers.

We have developed the Green Procurement Standard to allow more
comprehensive management of environmental risks in the supply
chain. All suppliers are expected to abide by the green procurement
policies and requirements stated in the Green Procurement Standard,
such as supplier assessment procedures, requirements for suppliers’
operation practice and the use of materials during production.

In views of the potential adverse environmental and health impacts
that arise from the improper use of chemicals, the raw materials and
parts used by suppliers are also being assessed. We have formulated
the Environmental Load Material Management Standard with reference
to the Green Procurement Standard, specifying substances with
potential environmental impacts that required extra attention, such as
paint, foam concentrate and hydraulic oil. Submission of the Material
Safety Data Sheet for each material listed in the Environmental Load
Material Management Standard is expected of all suppliers to ensure
the materials they used are following the safety limit.
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To ensure the proper management to the environmental risks by our
suppliers, we evaluate the environmental performance of our parts and
materials suppliers annually following the requirements stipulated in
the Green Procurement Standard. Suppliers are required to declare
their status in obtaining certification bodies, such as ISO 14001
Environmental management systems and ISO 9001 Quality
management system. Those suppliers who are unable to obtain
satisfactory results in the environmental performance evaluation
should set out an improvement plan and report the status of
enhancement and relevant evidence from time to time. On top of
fulfilling the requirement of quality, performance and price, priority will
be given to suppliers that have met the Environmental Load Material
Management Standard when selecting new suppliers. The “Annual
Evaluation Form on Suppliers” is reviewed timely.

Green Efforts Ashore

Strongly dedicated to reducing carbon footprint and waste within the
office premises, we have established guidelines to issue our green
office policies for employees, including the Measures of Energy Saving
and Environmental Protection in Offices, the Principles and Measures of
Environmental Protection in Offices and the Waste Management
System.

. Developing targets and actions in office
To further strengthen and align with our green office measures,
we have set up targets with time frame under aspects that to
further enhance and improve our environmental performance.
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Targets
Targets Aspects Environmental Targets Targets Indicator Achieving Frame
BREHE REEE BRER ARERRHER
Greenhouses Gases  Improve energy efficiency of ~ Replace and phase out high energy-consuming Short-term
Emissions and office equipment equipment yh=ii
Energy Saving REBRARENERIE FRBASHELERE
Initiatives
BRERBHERR Regularly maintain and upgrade office electronic Short-term
HIREIE IE equipment to improve energy efficiency ySht
TG ERARNABFREN RS EIRNE
Acknowledge the latest energy-saving products Middle term
and keep in touch with various technology R
manufacturers
TR ERRERBRIMRERRET
it
Promote energy-saving culture  Increase green office energy-saving initiatives Middle term
HETTERRE UL BN B ARG rh
Regularly check on the emissions reduction Long-term
progress =H

EHmERAHERE R
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Targets
Targets Aspects Environmental Targets Targets Indicator Achieving Frame
BREHE REEE BRER ARERRHER
Waste Reduction Reduce the production Widely apply electronic media and advocate Short-term
B REY of solid wastes paper-less practices ysh=i
B B R RE MM E BZEAEFHE ESEALEHA
Prioritize the purchase office supplies that Short-term
could be recycled and reused yh=i
BEBE YR BN BNMRLA®
Solid waste management Middle term
Bl REYE IR i
Promote recycling culture Increase waste recycling facilities Short-term
TR 12 e R e R H
Organize activities to enhance the awareness Middle term
of recycling, waste avoidance and reduction R
BREBARS O  BEEEEY RS EY
Recycle and dispose kitchen waste Middle term
(B 45 K% B2 3 e e 3R i
Water Efficiency Encourage water conservation, Regular inspection and maintenance of water pipes ~ Short-term
P SUES and reduce average water and water systems K2 H]
consumption TS R EKE REKESR
SEEHAK - BT
BKE Organize activities to improve water efficiency Short-term
awareness K2 H
AREBARSRAMERES
Improve the water efficiency of sanitary ware Middle term
R AR AR RKER h

EREXEEERAF /2021 FFRH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIBE -HERER

114

wE

Green office measures

A variety of measures have been implemented to conserve
energy and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Employees are
encouraged to use natural lighting as much as possible, while the
office’s lighting system has been replaced with LED lights to
enhance energy efficiency. Computers, printers, scanners and
other electrical appliances are switched off when not in use and
outside office hours to prevent unnecessary energy
consumption. Additionally, employees are reminded to avoid
opening windows when using air conditioning and to adjust the
temperature of air conditioners to a reasonable level according to
the weather conditions. To further reduce energy consumption
and greenhouse gas emissions, models with higher energy
efficiency and awarded with energy labels are prioritised when
acquiring new electrical appliances. Meanwhile, we have kept
updating and reviewing the internal guidelines timely based on
practice observations in the offices.

By cultivating our employees with recycling concepts, office
supplies that are reusable, recyclable, degradable, and with
environmentally friendly labels, are more often to be chosen. We
have established an electronic filing system and used the OA
office system, allowing employees to review and transfer
documents through electronic devices. Employees are also
encouraged to use double-sided paper when printing is
unavoidable so as to foster a paperless culture.

We spare no effort to minimise emissions arising from the use of
vehicles. We encourage employees to carpool with co-workers or
switch to public transport as much as possible. If the use of
vehicles is unavoidable, employees are required to file an
application before using the vehicle to avoid unauthorised use.

XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

FER B

BB R ZIEE B /m/J\/Miﬁ
BEEMHER - RAXBE LR
B AN ]IH##)J#/‘*E’JEEEH
RO FRBLDE LIRS EERM
Ko RPN ERARPARFEING
Eﬁp B THRABHESS
1% LﬁT\MgEﬁHw\/ﬁ%% lig
4N WF?&&EIE@FHAEHF‘ i
RHE  WARBERXREREZEAR
ERHNESBKT - RE—FRD
R ERBIHER  RMAEEE
MERKETEEAEE SRR
BEARERUR EABLSR - AR - B (M
BESZRAZTNEREE R
BT kEENIES -

RBEREETHRYBIES  AIER
e/ - AT 4 - AT RR AR e BE B IR IR
FEORLAMEBRER o B
ERVBEFREREEERGNEMOA
WMARG EETHEBBETFHRME
BRNREENH EEEBEFR
TEIRBER T - FMIexB B THRA
ST AR E | AL -

BB NEFIBEEENTER - K
MexB B TEHRFEHEHBRAHK
RBTRAUBRDEER - NETHEE
FEEMARE#RN  AELET
R MERREREERANE
T e



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE -HERERES

Although we do not operate in water-stressed regions and face
no issues of sourcing water, we are highly committed to
advocating water conservation during daily operations. The use
of tap water for car washing is forbidden to reduce water
consumption. In addition, water-saving appliances are used in
the office, and water taps and pipelines are being carefully
managed and maintained to avoid unnecessary water wastage
and enhance water efficiency.

In order to minimise the environmental impact arising from
waste generation, we have specified the handling and
management approach for non-recyclable general wastes,
electronic wastes and other hazardous wastes. To ensure proper
waste disposal, we have entrusted qualified professionals to
handle the office’s waste. Employees are also encouraged to
reduce resource consumption and recycle materials as much as
possible, where materials with recycling values are collected and
sent to recyclers to extend their life cycle and reduce waste
generation.

Committed to achieve a green working environment

As stated, we strive to promote and advocate a green working
environment while follow effective environmental-friendly
management approaches in offices. We believe that our
corresponding targets and actions with the implementation of
our Green Office Policy and measures shall pose a positive impact
on the overall environmental performance in the foreseeable
future. We believe that alongside of our excellent environmental
management approaches, as well as earnest actions from our
employees, our efforts on sustainability will be more recognised.
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WALKING ALONG WITH EMPLOYEES

Employees are our greatest asset and an integral part of our business
success. In view of it, great attention has been put on our human
resources with a purpose to attract and retain talents. Through
supporting employees with attractive remuneration packages,
diversified training and development opportunities, along
comprehensive health and safety measures, we endeavour to create a
welcoming and safe workplace for all employees.

Protecting Rights and Welfare of Employees

Strictly abiding by the Labour Law of the PRC, the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Employment
Act of Singapore and other relevant laws and regulations of the places
where it operates, we stipulate our employment policies related to
remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, anti-discrimination, training
and development, and other benefits of employees in our Personnel
Management System and the Employees’ Handbook. All employees
are entitled to the rights and obligations outlined in the
aforementioned internal measures.

Throughout the reporting period, there were neither reported cases of
prosecution for violation of employment laws and regulations as well
as employee’s rights and interests, nor have we received any relevant
complaints.
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Adopting Reasonable Employment Practice

To accommodate our continuous development, we outline the
annual human resources plan based on the needs of each
department and develop a recruitment plan to invite suitable
candidates for interviews. Throughout the recruitment processes,
we adhere to the employment principle of “Appointing
employees according to their merits and using their talents
according to their ability”, thereby promoting a fair, diversified
and inclusive workplace. All recruitments are conducted
transparently and fairly, where equal opportunities for
recruitment, promotion and salary adjustment are offered to all
employees and potential candidates only based on their abilities.
Regardless of their nationality, ethnic group, race, gender, religion
and cultural background, our employees are protected from any
form of discrimination.

We strictly prohibit the use of child labour or forced labour. We
abide by relevant laws and regulations and have formulated the
Child Labour Prevention and Remedial Procedures to avoid hiring
anyone under the age of 16. Apart from a thorough background
check during the recruitment process, we will also conduct a
general investigation on the new employees within one month
after joining us, thus preventing omissions and preventing
someone from impersonating and replacing employees who
have completed the entry procedures to work. In case of
discovering anyone under 16 has been wrongly recruited, we will
settle their salaries immediately and take remedial measures in
accordance with the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child
Labour and other laws and regulations relating to preventing
child and forced labour. Also, we sign employee contracts with all
employees to ensure that they understand and agree with our
employment policies.
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Safeguarding Employee’s Rights and Welfares

To further protect the rights and interests of employees we set
out the conditions for the termination of the employment
contract by both parties, the resignation procedures and the
settlement of salaries and compensation. We also stipulate the
requirement on working hours in the Employees’ Handbook,
where compensatory leaves are offered to employees who work
overtime to ensure that their efforts are reasonably rewarded.

We provide employees with competitive compensation and
benefits as well as a clear promotion ladder to recognise their
contributions. To attract and retain talents, our Salary System
stipulates the principle and structure of the salary policies, with
standardised salaries for each rank and promotion and career
development structure. We offer a competitive remuneration
package with basic salary, performance bonus, year-end bonus
and allowances to employees based on their performance,
responsibilities, experience and market salary level. Attractive
fringe benefits such as marriage allowance, maternity allowance
and consolation money are provided to employees. On top of
statutory holidays, we also provide annual leave, sick leave,
marriage leave, maternity leave, bereavement leave and
breastfeeding leave, thus accompanying their needs. In line with
statutory regulations, we provide our staff in the PRC with an
insurance package including pension insurance, unemployment
insurance, occupational injury insurance, medical insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund.
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«  Employment Profile . ERESR
As at the end of the reporting period, we had 36 employees in R|MEBHKR RMESFE - FE X
Hong Kong, PRC and Singapore. The composition of our T HEEIRETL - HRMHWETL
workforce by gender, age group, employment category, and HRIZER - FikAER - EEER
geographical region are as follows: NMBAEE DT -

Employee Distribution
EBISM
As of 31 December 2021
B ZE2021F12A318

éﬂ

Distribution by

Distribution by Geographical

Gender

el e il Locations

RUIRATE D e

Male Female PRC HK () Singapore
* S ¢ g ® FE o i ngg

Distribution by

Distribution by Er)
mployee

Age Groups .
RF AR D Categories

RIEBERIDM

@ 3001 Below @ 31-40

30BREA T 31-405% @ The Board and Senior Management
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41-505% STEREUA @ Department Managers
kst
() Other Employees
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Focusing on Employees’ Engagement

Communications with employees, which allows us to easily
acknowledge their needs, is always our foremost concern. We strongly
value the feedback from employees and look to resolve their concerns
by maintaining communications and providing as much assistance as
possible. Our Employee Feedback System sets out the details of our
complaint channel, such as the engagement channels and the scope
and procedures of complaint handling. Employees are welcome to file
complaints in case their rights and interests have been violated, or
express their opinions and suggestions through various channels,
including face-to-face daily communications, emails, the OA system,
WeChat or by letter. Upon receiving complaints or opinions from
employees, our management team will arrange a face-to-face meeting
with the complainant and seek to provide feasible solutions. We relish
the opportunity to receive constructive feedback, and thus we solicit
employees’ opinions on our areas for improvement and responds to
them appropriately.

We attach great importance to the well-being of employees and strive
to establish a friendly and caring workplace. We promote work-life
balance and encourage employees to maintain close relationships and
communications with their families, friends and colleagues outside of
work. With an aim to foster team spirit among employees, we have
organised team-building events regularly.
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Safeguarding Health and Safety of Employees

The Group attaches the utmost importance to the health and safety of
its employees. We stringently comply with the Law of the PRC on Work
Safety, the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases and other laws and regulations relevant to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards. We have also established the Occupational
Health and Safety Management Measures (“Health and Safety
Measures’) to manage and mitigate occupational health and safety
risks across business units.

Our Health and Safety Measures set out detailed and clear guidance for
the management and usage of safety products and equipment, as well
as the procedures in the event of any potential occupational health
and safety hazards and preventive measures for various occupational
diseases such as pneumoconiosis, eye diseases and occupational
deafness. We require all employees to strictly comply with the Health
and Safety Measures to avoid accidents. Pre-job training is delivered to
new joiners on the foresaid measures to enhance their emergency
preparedness, while regular training related to fire safety, electronic
safety and the usage of safety equipment is also provided to all
employees.
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We have been strictly abide by the regulation set out by the China
MSA, where all Chinese crews engaged in international navigations
must possess the seaman’s book issued by the Harbour
Superintendence Administration of the PRC and other relevant
certificates. We require all employees with crew qualifications to attend
regular training to assure the validity of their seaman’s book and cargo
operation-related certificates on safety, firefighting, first aid, security
awareness and other aspects, thereby ensuring they are allowed to get
on board ships chartered by us for repairs and maintenance. Safety
meetings and contingency drills and training are organized so as to
enhance the crews preparedness regarding emergencies such as oil
spill, abandon ship, fire, collision and communication blackout, as well
as to ensure stringent compliance with the ISM Code.
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Our employees participating in the escape and oi spillage drill
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In addition to our vessels, we also pay attention to the health and
safety of employees in the office premises. We provide adequate fire
safety, first aid and sanitation equipment as well as emergency
medicines in the workplace. To ensure workplace sanitation, we
regularly arrange dedicated personnel to clean carpets, water
dispensers, air-conditioning systems and other equipment, and arrange
body checks for employees.
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. Numbers of Work-related Fatalities and Injuries . EITHRZENAE
During the past three years (including the reporting period), RBE=ZF(BERSEH)RN - FHM
there were no accidents in which we suffered any injuries or WEZARISBTHER HMEE
death due to work, nor were there any cases in which we were EREEBRERERLZE2NEEZNR
materially affected by non-compliance with laws and regulations BHMZENERTE -

relating to occupational health and safety.

Employee Health and Safety

EEREHEZZ
Number of Work-related Fatalities' Unit Number
EITHHAR By A
2021 2021 F Person A 0
2020 2020%F Person A 0
2019 20194 Person A 0
Rate of Work-related Fatalities T A= % 0
Number of Work-related Injuries AT G A Person A 0
Lost Days Due to Work Injury ATIEELXIIEEH Day H 0
! The definition of work-related fatalities is determined in accordance with the ! HAITHERERE(TERERIED) - (F
Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances, the Decision on Recognition of RIBGREZRE) (EBEMEBKRI) (A
Work Injury, the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance, the Human Resources NEREEGIE)EET

Management System, etc

EREXEEERAF /2021 FFRH 123



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiR -HERERBHRE

Investing in Employees’ Development REREIRR

The development and growth of employees is an indispensable partof B THEREMKRETCERFELXENSEE
the continuous development of our business. Therefore, we &)1 o FHIit - RFIFERAERIT BEET
continuously invest in resources and provide employees with extensive IR EZ HIBLZEEH| - B S TR E

vocational training to nurture their career advancement, thus achieving & -

the aim of “One post, multiple functions”.

. Comprehensive employee’s trainings system .
We follow the Employee Training System to design and formulate
annual training plans according to the employees’ level, position
and needs, as well as our development requirement. With
reference to the annual training plan, a wide variety of training
programmes are arranged for employees. All newcomers must
attend the induction training to learn our culture and
organisational structure and details of our Employees’ Handbook,
as well as the responsibilities and working procedures of their
positions. Vocational training and professional training are also
provided to allow employees enhancing knowledge relating to
their positions.

To ensure the training quality, employees are required to
complete an Internal Training Evaluation Form and a Post-
training Review Report to reflect their opinions on the course
content, competence of trainers and their learning outcome
upon receiving training. Evaluation of the training outcome will
also be arranged for employees in the form of on-site assessment,
examinations or experience sharing. To encourage employees
actively participating in training programmes, the results of the
training evaluation will be used as part of the assessment and
promotion criteria of employees.
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During the reporting period, we have provided training on RERERR - FRPHRE T ANER

human resources, management and maritime safety to TIBE . BELEETEOEI A

strengthen employees’ professional knowledge. All of the BILBE THEEAH - FTERIEI

trainings are well-prepared and conducted by external or internal AL BFE LA - WAHARINTAY

guest-speakers with materials. The average duration per training R E AR 1B B M R 1T o 1553

are 2-4 hours depending on the training topics. MEHYRERB2E 4/ - BEFE
REME ©

Our crew members sharing their training experience onshore
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OPERATING OUR BUSINESS RESPONSIBLY

Operating in a responsible and integrity manner is the key to our long-
term success. We adhere to our commitment to responsible and
sustainable operations, and continuously communicate and
collaborate with stakeholders along the value chain to ensure our
expectations are aligned and met, thereby promoting the integrate
sustainable development of our business.

Managing Our Supply Chain

To retain our success in providing quality services, we recognize the
essentials of a practical and comprehensive supply chain management.
Meanwhile, we maintain close relationships with our major suppliers
through constant engagement, ranging from shipbroking companies,
ship management companies, ship manufacturers to parts and
materials supplier.

In order to manage the environmental and social risks in the supply
chain, we apply the most stringent rules when selecting new suppliers.
Not only the suppliers’ service quality, prices, product and service
quality, ability in technical development are in our considerations, we
also value on their the implementation in environmental protection
activities and any other social, ethical conscious practices. In addition,
the Purchasing Department conducts annual quality assessments on
our current suppliers to evaluate their quality, documentation accuracy
and rectification efficiency.

We have also developed the Provisions on the Management of Spare
Ship Parts and Material Supply, the Instruction for Vessel Asbestos
Control, the Instruction for Management of Medicines and First-aid
Equipment on Ships and other internal guidelines to further mitigate
environmental and social risks of suppliers. In the Instruction for Vessel
Asbestos Control, it is specified that all purchases of parts and materials
with asbestos are prohibited, where suppliers are required to submit an
Asbestos Free Declaration Report or relevant laboratory assessment
report. If the supplier fails to provide appropriate documents, the parts
and materials will be rejected.
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In terms of tendering and bidding, we are devoted to providing all  EHEZEHFE @ KPR H A HRE—E
parties with an open, fair, just and transparent platform, and have AR A - AIF - FHABNFES » SIET
established the Supplier Bidding Procedures to specify the format of ({tFERGIBIZIZF) » FIRAIBIE A & W&
tendering notice, criteria for suppliers to enter the bidding, contract =0  HEFRXIIREMIZE SHEE K
management and bidding process. BIFEMIE -

Supply Chain Management
adid A

O

@ Northern China @ Eastern China Northeast China Southern China @ Overseas Region

ik ER it g ot E

Locations B Numbers $ £

Northern China E: 3 5

Eastern China HER 7

Northeast China 514 2

Southern China Ecdea) 3

Overseas Region I [ 6
During the reporting period, we have maintained close collaboration R EEHAR - BRI E B3 FHEHEFREFR
with 23 suppliers. e (=

EREEXEEERAT /2021 FF§ 127



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiR -HERERBHRE

Striving for Service Excellence

Upholding our mission of “Safeguarding personnel health, ensuring
ship safety, and protecting marine environment”, we are devoted to
continuously improving the quality and reliability of the ships we
owned.

On top of strictly complying with relevant domestic and international
laws and regulations such as the ISM Code to secure navigational
safety and protect the marine environment, we have established a
comprehensive quality control system to monitor the vessel
production process closely, and have set forth the management
policies, targets and assurance measures regarding safety,
environmental protection and quality in our Product and Service
Health and Safety Policy.

. Listening and Responding Attentively

Comments and suggestions from customers are recognized as
one of the keys to allow continuous improvement of our product
and service quality. As such, we have developed the Complaint
Handling Procedure to stipulate the actions required upon
receiving complaints and the handling approaches for different
types of complaints. Our complaint channels are in place to
welcome all customers providing feedback through mail,
telephone hotline or visit in person. During the reporting period,
we did not receive any complaints regarding the quality of our
products and services.

. Valuing Customer Privacy and Persistence in Information

Accuracy

We attach great importance to maintaining a high level of
integrity and professional ethics. Apart from strictly complying
with laws and regulations related to intellectual property rights
and privacy such as the Specifications for the Administration of
Intellectual Property Rights of Enterprises and the Contract Law
of the PRC, we have registered patents for the Company logo and
domain to protect intellectual properties. To avoid data breaches
and other information security incidents, we have formulated the
Company’s Confidential Information Security System with
reference to the aforementioned laws and regulations to guide
our management of confidential information by hierarchies.

During the reporting period, there were no cases in which we
were materially affected by non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations concerning health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy issues.
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Anti-corruption

We take a stand against any behaviour related to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering, and have set out the standards of
behaviour we expect of employees and details of the anti-corruption
mechanism in our Anti-corruption and Anti-bribery Code of Conduct
("CoC") and the Integrity and Self-disciplinary Regulations (Provisional).

To deliver a fair, open and just business environment, we strive to
uphold the highest ethics and governance standards in our business
operations. We strictly abide by the Company Law of the PRC, the
Criminal Law of the PRC, the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the PRC,
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and other laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

During the reporting period, there were no cases of bribery, extortion,
fraud or money laundering involving our employee or us, nor were
there any cases in which we were materially affected by any breach of
anti-corruption-related laws and regulations.

. Internal control on anti-corruptions risks

To promote integrity and prevent unethical pursuits, we have
implemented various preventive measures. All employees must
sign the statement in the CoC as a declaration that they
acknowledge and comply with all relevant requirements to
strictly uphold business ethics. As stated explicitly in the CoC,
fraud and corruption-related risks should be included in the
scope of annual corporate risk assessment. The Audit Department
is assigned as the dedicated business unit to manage any
relevant matters. Reports should be made regularly to the Board
and the Audit Committee to ensure the risks are managed
systematically. To enhance the anti-corruption awareness within
the Group, we provide anti-corruption training for all newcomers,
with all related requirements and standards set out in the
Employees’ Handbook for employees to take reference whenever
necessary.
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. Cultivating anti-corruptions culture among the Board and

our employees

To enhance the anti-corruption awareness within the Group, we
provide anti-corruption training for all newcomers, with all
related requirements and standards set out in the Employees’
Handbook for employees to take reference whenever necessary.
In addition, we continued to organise anti-corruption education
for the Board and employees during the reporting period, such as
the training on warning education and conferences to strengthen
their awareness of self-discipline, some of the training materials
are sourced from The Hong Kong Independent Commission
Against Corruption (“ICAC"). We will organize and carry out more
integrity education and delivered regulations and case studies on
integrity practices, anti-corruption, anti-laundering etc. through
platforms including OA, email, WeChat etc., to strengthen

employees’ awareness of integrity practices.

To eliminate all irregularities within the Group, a whistle-blowing
policy has been imitated to report cases of fraud and corruption.
We encourage our employees and any parties related to us to
raise concerns about possible impropriety in any matter by mail,
telephone or email. All reported cases will be kept confidential to
protect the whistle-blowers. The reported cases will be carefully
investigated by the Audit Committee and reported to the Board
when necessary. Once the suspected cases are confirmed, the
parties involved will be subjected to disciplinary action or

immediate dismissal.

During the reporting period, there were no cases of bribery,
extortion, fraud or money laundering involving our employee or
us, nor were there any cases in which we were materially affected

by any breach of anti-corruption-related laws and regulations.
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RE HERERHSE

CARING OUR COMMUNITY

Public Welfare and Charity

We recognise the importance of participation and contribution to the
community where we operate. We strive to support the growth of the
local community and aim to create long-term value for the sustainable
development of society.

As a social-responsible corporate, we have developed the Management
Measures for the Administration of Charity and Public Welfare Activities
to guide our works in community investment, such as the
management of charity funds and define the requirements for
organising community activities. Apart from continually engaging with
the community, we also encourage all business units and employees
to participate in community welfare and voluntary work.

We are well aware of the importance of developing a close relationship
with the community. In the future, we may explore more possibilities
of establishing policies to deepen our strategic planning in community
participation. At the same time, we continue to seek opportunities to
further carry out community engagement projects and contribute to
the sustainable development of society.
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Our employees participating community voluntary work in Fuzhou City
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KEY PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

FRRENRE

Environmental Performance RIBEW
Indicator Units 2021 2020
BER B 20214 20204
Air Pollutant Emissions? 34>
ERISRIBER 28

No, Emissions Tonnes

ARECHHER WA 1,867.58 1,646.98
No, Emissions intensity Tonnes/nautical mile

AAIMBEREE Ly i=a=] 0.01 001
So, Emissions Tonnes

=Rl k7 37 WA 208.78 41961
So, Emissions intensity Tonnes/nautical mile

el Bz E Lyi=3="] 0.001 0.002
CO Emissions Tonnes

— AL BB i 202.16 155.27
CO Emissions intensity Tonnes/nautical mile

— SRR E Lyi=3=] 0.001 0.001
PM, s Emissions Tonnes

PM, BEIX 7 34.35 29.37
PM, s Emissions intensity Tonnes/nautical mile

PM,, B E L= 2.29E-04 1.96E-04
PM,, Emissions Tonnes

PM, X 7 36.89 3147
PM,, Emissions intensity Tonnes/nautical mile

PM, HEIERE W, g 2.46E-04 2.10E-04

132

Air pollutant emission comes from vehicles owned and managed by us in PRC, as
well as ships managed by us. The emission data was calculated in accordance
with the Technical Guidelines for the Preparation of Air Pollutants Emission
Inventory for Road Vehicles (Trial) and the Technical Guidelines for the Preparation
of Air Pollutants Emission Inventory for Non-road Mobile Source (Trial) published
by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of PRC and the EMEP/EEA air
pollutant emission inventory guidebook 2019 of the European Environment
Agency.

The measurement units of air pollutant emissions are shown in tonnes and
nautical mile, and the 2020 air emission data has been restated to improve data
comparability.

During the reporting period, we further refined the data collection and analysis
approach and increased the coverage of the emissions from VLSFO consumed by
the diesel generator in the ships into the reporting scope, which coupled with the
business development, led to a slight increase in the total air pollutants emission.

The wide adoption of VLSFO in ships during the reporting period has contributed

a significant decrease in Sox emission. We will continue to implement more green
measures in the future to minimise our environmental impact.
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Indicator Units 2021 2020
B B 2021 2020
Resource Consumption and Intensity
BERHEREE
Direct Energy Consumption®?’
EEmeRERES 7
Total Direct Energy Consumptions MWh
EEgREREAE F1E T FL B 271,695.03 243,041.25
Natural Gas Consumption® MWh
RARAES® THE T FLEF 4.25 353
Natural Gas Consumption Intensity MWh/person
RARHAERE FETFER A 0.12 0.10
Petrol Consumption? MWh
AHIHFE® THE T FLEF 52.72 19.20
Petrol Consumption Intensity MWh/person
AREREEE FEFEEA 1.46 0.55
Marine Gas Oil and Very Low MWh
Sulphur Fuel Oil Consumption'®
o R Sl MEMERAE THE T FLEF 271,638.06 243,018.53
Marine Gas Oil and Very Low MWh/nautical mile
Sulphur Fuel Oil Consumption Intensity
WAL RERENAERE TRETER, S8 1.81 162
Indirect Energy Consumption
B B RERUH 3%
Electricity Consumption MWh
HES" F1E T FL B 30.56 26.38
Electricity Consumption Intensity MWh/person
AERE FETFEEA 0.85 0.75
Other Resources Consumption
Hib &EREFE
Water Consumption'? Cubic metre
F7KE TR 171 180
Water Consumption Intensity Cubic metre/person
FKEE SLFHAKSA 4.75 5.14

The measurement units of and categories are in accordance with the ESG Guide
in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, the 2020 data has been restated to improve
data comparability.

Direct energy consumption refers to the direct consumption to the non-
renewable fuel consumed in the Group. The data have shown by type of fuels and
the intensity have shown in the unit of productions (employee and nautical mile)
accordingly.

The natural gas consumption data comes from our kitchen at PRC office.

The increased consumptions on petrol is related to the latest ownership on
vehicles, as we purchased one more vehicle for business development during the
reporting period.

As we strictly follow the IMO MARPOL regulations, we have widely applied the
VLSFO on all of the ships we owned in the reporting year. All VLSFO related
calculation is based on the scientific data stated on the Review of 2020 Marine
Fuels Quality document, which is the agenda Item 5 submitted to the IMO Marine
Environment Protection Committee on the 76th Session.

The electricity consumption data comes from our offices at PRC and Hong Kong.
The water consumption data comes from our office at PRC.
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B BB - BURE RIAERRDIR
BRI R IRE LB (BB FEE)IR °

AARAZEEREFRAREENEE
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Indicator Units 2021 2020
B B 2021 F 20204
Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Intensity
BERBHEREREE

Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions Tonnes

BERBHHAEE 8 78,409.06 65,357.46
Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions Tonnes/person

Intensity

BEREERABRE W, A 2,178.03 1,867.36
Scope 1 Emissions (Direct Emissions)'3 Tonnes

EE R (B WA 78,392.86 65,339.58
Scope 1 Emissions Intensity Tonnes/person

EBEERE W, A 2,177.58 1,866.85
Scope 2 Emissions (Indirect Emissions)™ Tonnes

&0 2 BE (R 8 16.19 17.88
Scope 2 Emissions Intensity Tonnes/person

HWE2HWEE LEYON 0.45 0.51

134

Scope 1 emissions refer to direct emissions from vehicles owned and managed by
us, the ships and the diesel generator on ships managed by us and the natural
gas combustion at PRC. The emission data was calculated in accordance with the
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs of SEHK, the Guidelines for
Accounting and Reporting Greenhouse Gas Emissions by China Land
Transportation Enterprises (Trial) and the Guide for Calculating Methods and
Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Enterprises in Other Industries (Trial)
issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of PRC, the Reduction of GHG
Emissions from Ships: Fourth IMO GHG Study 2020 — Final Report, and the
Greenhouse Gas Inventory Guidance — Direct Emissions from Mobile
Combustion Sources by the United States Environmental Protection Agency.
Scope 2 emissions refer to indirect emissions resulting from electricity generation
that is purchased by us. The emission data was calculated in accordance with the
2020 emission factors of CLP Group and 2021 China Regional Power Grid Average
Carbon Dioxide Emission Factor published by the National Development and
Reform Commission of PRC.
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wE

Indicator Units 2021 2020
B B 2021 2020
Non-hazardous Waste Generation and Intensity'*
BEBRRYELEBREES
Household Waste Tonnes
A E IR Mg 0.46 041
Household Waste Intensity Tonnes/person
RN E PN 13x10° 12x10°
Wastepaper Tonnes
R 7 2x10° 3x10°
Wastepaper Intensity Tonnes/person
BEREE PN 0.5x10* 1X10*
Wastepaper Recycled Tonnes
(] L /% 4 7 5x10* 9x10*
Kitchen Garbage Tonnes
G SavR WA 0.21 0.18
Kitchen Garbage Intensity Tonnes/person
B SABIIR 2 W, A 6x10° 5x10°
Hazardous Waste Generation and Intensity's"’
EEREYELEERTE SV

\/\/aste Batteries Tonnes

REEEM, g 0.01 8x10*
Waste Batteries Intensity Tonnes/person
BEEBNRE PN 3.4x10° 23x10°
VVaﬂeF%uomxcentTubes Tonnes

REE G BE 7 4x10° 2x10°
Waste Fluorescent Tubes Intensity Tonnes/person
EERENEBE PN 1.11x10* 6.85x10°
VVaﬂelnkCanndges Tonnes
BFERS 7 0.01 5x107
VVaﬂelnkCanﬂdgeshnenshy Tonnes/person
BEERETE PN 3x10* 1x10*
Waste Ink Cartridges Recycled Tonnes
Ol EERS 7 2x107 0
Waste Electr|C|ty Equipment'® Tonnes
EET R i 15x102  N/ATiEA
Waste Electricity Equipment Intensity Tonnes/person
BERENSEEE ME, A 417x10*  N/A TEF
Waste Electricity Equipment Recycled Tonnes
Bl RE R E J) R 7 15x10°  N/A T A

s The non-hazardous waste generation data comes from our office in PRC. £ EEBREVELSHBEREPENER

The hazardous waste generation data comes from our office in PRC and Hong 1

Kong.

The measurement units of the emissions are shown in tonnes, and the 2020 data
has been restated to improve data comparability.

During the reporting period, we have a record on one of the office printer no
longer functioning. In view of its nature, we have entrusted professional for
further recycling. There is no data in 2020, N/A (Not Available) have been shown

in the column.

B °
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Social Performance HEEN
Indicator Unit 2021 2020
B B 2021 F 20204

Employee Distribution
EEDM

Total Number of Employee™ Person 36 35
EE@E A
By Gender
71152 5
Male Person 20 20
B A
Female Person 16 15
g A
By Employment Type
ZIEFIEZ & 7
Full-time Person 36 35
¥ A
Part-time Person 0 0
e A
By Employee Categories
% 1E S 1852 5
The Board and Senior Management Person 8 8
EEERARERE A
Department Managers Person 7 6
BRI A
Other Employees Person 21 21
Hi8T A
By Geographical Locations
1 1% &) 77
PRC Person 31 30
Gy A
HK Person 2 2
BB A
Singapore Person 3 3
AN A
By Age Groups
B FHeH Bl E 75
30 or below Person 6 7
30BRIA T A
31-40 Person 14 10
31-40 % A
41-50 Person 9 11
41-50 5% A
51 or above Person 7 7
51pREEA E A

10 As of 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 respectively. " DRI ZE 202112 A31 A &2020F 128318 »
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Indicator Unit 2021 2020
B B 2021 2020%F
Employee Turnover®
EERE>
Total Number of Employee Turnover Person 6 4
EEEMEAR A
Total Turnover Rate % 16.67% 11.43%
HmARL =
By Gender
171152 5
Male Number of Turnover Person 5 3
EERis MR ANE A
Turnover Rate % 25% 15.00%
MK b 2
Female Number of Turnover Person 1 1
g MR ANE A
Turnover Rate % 6.25% 6.67%
MK L=
By Geographical Locations
1=l £ 53
PRC Number of Turnover Person 6 4
a8 R ABL A
Turnover Rate % 19.35% 13.33%
MR L&
HK Number of Turnover Person 0 0
BB MR ANEL A
Turnover Rate % 0.00% 0.00%
MR Ep 2
Singapore Number of Turnover Person 0 0
AN MR ANEL A
Turnover Rate % 0.00% 0.00%
MK L=
0 The turnover rate is calculated based on “Total Number of Employee Turnover per MK RZ [BHEREBEERRIARSHES

category/Total Number of Employee per category”, which is with reference to the

guideline provided by the ESG guide.

g
BEFE  WDHES2ECRE  HEgRES
#Eal)e
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Indicator Unit 2021 2020
EE B 2021 2020%F
By Age Groups
1B F He i Bl 2] 75
30 or below Number of Turnover Person 1 1
30BREKEA T mEANE A
Turnover Rate % 16.67% 14.29%
MRt 2
30-40 Number of Turnover Person 2 1
30-405% MR ANE A
Turnover Rate % 14.29% 10.00%
MK L=
41-50 Number of Turnover Person 2 0
41-50 5% R ANBL A
Turnover Rate % 22.22% 0.00%
MR &
50 or above Number of Turnover Person 1 2
50 5%k BA | MR ANEL A
Turnover Rate % 14.29% 28.57%
MR Ep 2
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Indicator Unit 2021 2020
BR B 20215 20204F
Employee Training Distribution
ZIEES M
Total Number of Employees Participated in Trainings Person 32 49
XeE B BB A
By Gender
71t 52 75
Male Person 20 30
] i A
Female Person 12 19
ey A
By Employee Categories
% 1E S5 Z] 5
The Board and senior management Person 7 14
E=ZgNEREEE A
Department managers Person 7 4
EBPIAR IR A
Other employees Person 18 31
HtET A
EREEXEEAR QA /2021 FERK 139
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Indicator Unit 2021 2020
BE B 20215 20204

Employee Training Hours?'

EEZINEH

Average Training Hours Completed per Employee Hour 2.62 5.06
BAEE TR XN TG & /N

By Gender

1L BE 7

Male Hour 18.1 1.86
St NEF

Female Hour 7.88 12.32
% N=

By Employee Categories

7% 1E B 1R 52| 7

The Board and senior management Hour 7.38 55
EFERBRERE N

Department managers Hour 20.7 29.5
EBPIAR IR /N

Other employees Hour 13.5 4.13
Hith8T N

2 The average training hours completed per employee are calculated for 2021 2 R0 FBEEETRZINTERER &

based on “Total employee training hours per category/Total Number of HEEBXZIGERE SEZIREREAE] &
Employees Participated in Trainings per category”, which is with reference to the B E2EGRR g REIBES)

guideline provided by the ESG guide.
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Indicator Unit 2021 2020
BE B 20215 20204

Percentage of employees trained®

ZIREBDLL2

By Gender

7t 52 7

Male % 62.5 =
]

Female % 37.5 -
i

By Employee Categories

% 1E S5 Z] 5

The Board and senior management % 21.9 -
E=ZghEREEE

Department managers % 219 -
EBPIAR R

Other employees % 56.3 -
HWET

2 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category are 2 P22V R RIEBEMNEDHNZIEE

disclosed and calculated for 2021 based on “Employees took part in trainings in BT [ZERIZIIRE AR REAH
the category/Total Number of Employees*100%’, which is with reference to the *100% ] 518 - WIS ECRR - g hEA
guideline provided by the ESG guide. $&51)-
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wE

CONTENT INDEX OF THE ESG GUIDE OF THE STOCK BIXMC(RE - £t RERIELS)
EXCHANGE AR
Mandatory
Disclosure Requirements Description Section
BEIREER R =41
Governance Structure A statement from the Board containing the Governing Sustainability
EREE following elements: ARBERER

Reporting Principles

HERA

Reporting Boundary
s E

MEFERHNER  ERHANIARE

(i)  adisclosure of the Board's oversight of ESG

issues;

FRESEGYIRE HEREARAEENE
=5 .

El ,

(i) the Board's ESG management approach and
strategy, including the process used to
evaluate, prioritise and manage material ESG-
related issues (including risks to the issuer’s
businesses); and
EEENERE ii@&%ﬂéﬁ@b‘fi&
& - BIEEHE  BRBII R EEERHIR
B®oHEgkE mi‘ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ( BREHETA
FHBHER) BE

pSild3

(i)  how the Board reviews progress made against
ESG-related goals and targets with an
explanation of how they relate to the issuer’s
businesses.

EFEGNIRERE g NERBEMER
EHEE - W T PIanf B 31T A XT%
BREE

A description of, or an explanation on, the
application of the following Reporting Principles in
the preparation of the ESG Report:

RS EERERE LT hEARRERN
] EFA 5 R R A -

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of
the ESG Report and describing the process used to
identify which entities or operations are included in
the ESG Report. If there is a change in the scope, the
issuer should explain the difference and reason for
the change.

ERIE HegREolmENERSEE - &i
Lﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁfiﬁﬁ MAIRE - dgRkER

WENBIE - BERBEBINE - HITAME
BEIRZRERESRA -
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RIE -HERER

Aspect
Em

KPI
BAREMER

wE

Disclosure

wE

Section/Remarks

HREE

A. Environment

R

A1 Emissions

795,87

General
Disclosure

—REE

A1

A12

A13

Information on:
BRABERSORERBIN - RKRLH
DS - BEREBEEREYNELSH
(@) the policies; and
BR M
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BIFHBETABERZENHEBE
ENSEAY

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

B o

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

B RE AR BB IR -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy direct (Scope?)
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BEE(BE—-) kplREE (BEZ)AE
ﬁm%mW%UMW$)&@MﬁWﬁ
E(MABESEN  BEXRBHE

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

ELEEREYHEE (ANEE) & (10

BAR)ZE(WMABEEEM - FEEG
e

Protecting the Environment

RAERIE

Highlights of Environmental-
conscious Strategies in 2021

2021 FIRIRBBEEER

Green Operation

HeES

Green Efforts Ashore

FLERERIE

Key Performance Summary

RGN E

Key Performance Summary

B AR E

Key Performance Summary

B ESRE
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HE

Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
B BREANER KB MBES B
Al4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in Key Performance Summary
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity ARG IRE
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
PREAEEZREEYEE (LANETE) & (10
L%)Mﬁ(ﬁuutﬁiﬁu ESAEEN ]
AE
A15 Description of emission target(s) and steps Highlights of Environmental-
taken to achieve them. conscious Strategies in 2021
HIMFEI ZEVEEME B IR R RERELE 2021 FIREARBEBEEER
B iR AR 228 - Green Efforts Ashore
FLERRIE
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- Highlights of Environmental-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction conscious Strategies in 2021
target(s) and steps taken to achieve them. 2021 FIRIRE B AL B2
HEEBEREEEEYNAE B Green Efforts Ashore
HEENREIELAFMRBNER - FLERERIE
A2 Use of General Policies on the efficient use of resources, Green Operation
Resources Disclosure including energy, water and other raw FEEE
BIREA — B materials. Green Efforts Ashore
BREAER(BIERR  KREMEN FERRIE
B B BR
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption Key Performance Summary
by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total FRENRE
(kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
? BAEIS M ERE R SEEER (N
ROl BHEE (U TETERGE
REZE(WMAGEREMN - §ERMA
H)o
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity Key Performance Summary
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(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
BFEKENEE(WMAGESSEN - 518
BiEHE) o
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RIE -HERERERS

Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
B ARENER BB MBES, B
A23 Description of energy use efficiency target(s)  Highlights of Environmental-
set and steps taken to achieve them. conscious Strategies in 2021
R REAMGEERRBESELE Q2021FRREBBRER
IZETERE B 2B © Green Operation
meLE
Green Efforts Ashore
FERERIME
A24 Description of whether there is any issue in Highlights of Environmental-
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water conscious Strategies in 2021
efficiency target(s) and steps taken to 202V FIRIRE B RE EE B
achieve them. Green Operation
HCSREGERAKR ERI B EAIERE - A ReEE
RIBARKSHBEERAZETELBE  Green Efforts Ashore
FTERER A 258 - FERERIE
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished The use of packaging materials

products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.
FRm T AR EM R EE (AR E
R(nEA) BEESEMGE -

EREXEEERAF /2021 FFRH

is not material to the Group
due to our business nature.

HRHEMNEBLE  BE
MEMERSAREREmMS
WAERK °
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RIE -HERERRS

Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
B BREANER KB MBES B
A3 The General Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant ~ Green Operation
Environment Disclosure impact on the environment and natural LR EE
and Natural —RRIRER resources. Green Procurement
Resources BIEBITABRRERRAERENER  AAEKRE
BRIRK FERPER © Green Efforts Ashore
RAREIR FRRRIE
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of Green Operation
activities on the environment and natural FEEE
resources and the actions taken to manage  Green Procurement
them. R ERE
L E BB BDEIRIERRRERNEKR  Green Efforts Ashore
TENRCEKNEREMETENITE - FERERIE
A4 Climate General Policies on identification and mitigation of Responding to Climate Change
Change Disclosure  significant climate-related issues which have B3 RE &1L
RixE L — R impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.
BRlMEHE R LAIREEHEITAESE
TENERRIREBAEENECER
A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related  Responding to Climate Change
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issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.
BRI HEITAELEZERN
BARGHEESZE  REKDNEHEH
T EMITE °
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RIE -HERERERS

Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
B ARENER BB MEES, R
B. Social
e
Employment and Labour Practices
EBRETEYR
BT Employment  General Information on: Protecting Rights and Welfare
EE Disclosure B : of Employees
— MR FE (@) the policies; and RIE B TRHEF RAEF
BE K& Focusing on Employees’
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and Engagement
regulations that have a significant AEEINZ2EE
impact on the issuer.
BTHETABEATENERE
BRBROINER -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment Key Performance Summary
type(for example, full- or part-time), age AN E
group and geographical region.
RIER - BIREE (RRSGHRE) - Fi
ARl e DR E S A8 -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age Key Performance Summary
group and geographical region. FRENRE
RIER - Fheil R Ktz Bl 5 ) EBR
K& o
B2 Health and General Information on: Safeguarding Health and
Safety Disclosure  FRARELZE2TIERERREES R Safety of Employees
fEEEZe —REE BERteERN RIEETIHNREERLZ S
(@) the policies; and
R R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BTHETABEAZENERE
eI T Xl

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

B R o
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RIBE -HERER

wE

Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
B BREANER KB MBES B
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Key Performance Summary
occurred in each of the past three years A E
including the reporting year.
ERE=F (BREREFE)AIEREK
ML THA B St 3 -
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Key Performance Summary
EILEBAIIERS - BRENRE
B2.3 Description of occupational health and Safeguarding Health and
safety measures adopted, how they are Safety of Employees
implemented and monitored. REETIMREEEALZS
A TR B R AR R B 2485 - A
RAABBMITRERTE -

B3 Development  General Policies on improving employees’ Investing in Employees’
and Training Disclosure knowledge and skills for discharging duties Development
BREKEI —REE at work. Description of training activities. KERBIT#ERE

BRRITEEB BT TIERE N AMB N
BEEVIRSR - HHIMIEFES

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by Key Performance Summary
gender and employee category (e.g. senior  BHSRAE M E
management, middle management).
BRI REEBER (INESREEE - B R
EREF)E»NXIEERSL -

B3.2 The average training hours completed per Key Performance Summary
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employee by gender and employee
category.
RIERI N R BRI E D
Sl TR o

 BREBTK
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RIE -HERERERS

Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
B ARENER BB MBES, B
B4 Labour General Information on: Protecting Rights and Welfare
Standards Disclosure BB 1EE TR %125 THY of Employees
AA T AEH] — RN (@ the policies; and REE B T AR M EF
HE &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BTHETARERZENHBER
K501
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BB R o
B4.1 Description of measures to review Protecting Rights and Welfare
employment practices to avoid child and of Employees
forced labour. {RIZ B TayRER AR H)
SR EMNERAREET X
SRHEE T o
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such  Protecting Rights and Welfare
practices when discovered. of Employees
MR ER SR ERBRBRN  REE IR KRB
PRERH) 2P 8% -
Operating Practices
ZEIED
B5 Supply Chain General Policies on managing environmental and Green Procurement
Management Disclosure social risks of the supply chain. FERE
HEFHEE —RERE EIRHERENRIE R SRREBUER - Managing Our Supply Chain
EIRMH e
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.  Key Performance Summary

wiREIDNHEREAE -
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RIE -HERERRS

Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
B ARENER BB MR, H
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging  Green Procurement
suppliers, number of suppliers where the FERE
practices are being implemented, how they ~ Managing Our Supply Chain
are implemented and monitored. BIRMH e
MBI REEENED - MHEART
BRABHINHEREE - ARBRED
BT R BB TTA -
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify Green Procurement
environmental and social risks along the e
supply chain, and how they are Managing Our Supply Chain
implemented and monitored Bt
MBI HEEEERENIRE M
tERBRAED - LARABEIRHMIT
NMERITE -
B5.4 Description of practices used to promotes Green Procurement

150

environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored.
MAEREHERRRESARERER
NARTEEVE R - LA KB BB HIRIIT &
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RIE -HERERERS

Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
B EREEANER KB MBES, B
B6 Product General Information on: Striving for Service Excellence
Responsibility Disclosure ~ BEAFMRRMERMBRBHREEZS - EHEBRE
EmaE —RR IR ER B BERILBEEURER A AR © Due to the business nature of
(@) the policies; and the Group, matters related to
B & advertising and labelling of
(b) compliance with relevant laws and products and services
regulations that have a significant provided are not covered
impact on the issuer in this Report.
BTHBETABERZENERZE BARAEENEBNE
eSS X AN W AR B B o [
relating to health and safety, advertising, RIS EE MIREA MR
labelling and privacy matters relating to £H-
products and services provided and
methods of redress.
BV E KL o
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped  Not relevant to the Group's
subject to recalls for safety and health business.
reasons. GERAN SETE U E L
EENRDEXEMBEP AL T HEE
EBHmARKNBE DL
B6.2 Number of products and service related Striving for Service Excellence

complaints received and how they are dealt
with.

EEMNE MM REHIRFEE LA N &
HITEA -
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RIE -HERERRS

Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
B BREANER KB MBES B
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing  Striving for Service Excellence

and protecting intellectual property rights. Rt AR
ft B A T SRR A E B R B o

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and  Striving for Service Excellence
recall procedures. R F RS
HilE ERTEBRENERBIKERF Green Operation
mEEE

The Group will consider
disclosing relevant
information in the future.

AEBEBNRKEERE

HEAEH -
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection Striving for Service Excellence
and privacy policies, how they are 1R it 2 RAR 7S

implemented and monitored.
R B EERRE RALRBOR - AR
HERTRERTE -
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Aspect
Em

KPI
BAREMER

Disclosure

wE

Section/Remarks

HREE

B7 Anti-corruption General

RESF

Disclosure

—RIER

B7.1

B7.2

B7.3

Information on:

BEEPEEEEE - BR - BGFROERER

(@) the policies; and
B R

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BTHETABERZENERE
e FXl]

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering.

B R o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding

corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the cases.

R EHANHETASEEERELE

BRNBETHRARTHNEE LFRER

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

et by S5 e M SR ERAR Y - LA AR RN
TTRERTE -

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.
MlmEERE T RENREFEI -

Anti-corruption
RER

Anti-corruption
k&S

Anti-corruption
k&S

Anti-corruption
RES

EREXEEERAF /2021 FFRH
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RIE -HERERRS

Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
EmE BREANER KB MBES B
Community
vy
B8 Community General Policies on community engagement to Caring Our Community
Investment Disclosure  understand the needs of the communities AEtE
HERE — R where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BURLHRBER T RETASEMRE
HREBENERAERIDHEERLR
FESEVBER ©
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, The Group will consider
environmental concerns, labour needs, disclosing relevant
health, culture, sport). information in the future.
ETERERE(MHE - RBEFE BT AKEHERRKRERERE
ok b BE) o HEAER -
B8.2 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, The Group will consider
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environmental concerns, labour needs,
health, culture, sport).
BEIERESE(HE  RESEHE 4T
=k @R -3k - BE) -
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RSM Hong Kong

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

T +852 2598 5123
F +852 2598 7230

www.rsmhk.com

RSM

eSS B ES S

EREERFE =1 /)5R
ME—#= +jl%7f§

EE +852 2598 5123
EH +852 2598 7230

www.rsmhk.com

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Xin Yuan
Enterprises Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group’) set out on pages 162 to 244, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA”")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

BEREEREARRQTDKRR

(RESESHFMA L BRLE])

=
BEEVNERF162E 244 B IR
PESEERAR(TEAR)) RENEA
AI([EEB])EEaUBEmE EFEER
2021 12 A31 BRAR & B 5k 5= R &R
EZAILFENGEEREK  HKeBak
H2AEWRE  FEERESRREE
REMERNURELETHEHREMT - 81
TESIHHERME -

BMIRE  ZEREVBERREBERS
SHAAE ((ERRTHLAR ) BHHNE
B EmEER ([ EBHEHRELER ] E
§ﬁ¢ﬁm&%7 EE BN 20215F12
HOGE BRI REEEZA L
if‘é’]i?éﬁﬁ“%fﬁ&%mfﬁiﬁ;% K1
EERBBRRKINEEREL B
ﬁo
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2 in the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group had net current liabilities of
US$32,345,000 as at 31 December 2021. As stated in Note 2, this
condition indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matter
we identified is the impairment assessment of vessels:
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BREEFTSEE ()

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRESSEE BN ES UM EEBREET SR
Impairment assessment of vessels

fha BB R4

Refer to Notes 18 & 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

IR 4R A SRR 18 %19 »

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's vessels amounted
to US$190,949,000, representing 95% of the Group's total
assets. They are key assets held by the Group and drive its
significant cash flows from the asphalt tanker chartering
services and bulk carrier chartering services. The Group
reviews the carrying amount of its vessels at the end of
each reporting period if impairment indicators are
present.

M2021F12831H ESEEOMMERZE
190949000 7T * 1 EEBEELRE 5% ° L FM
Mm EEERANIZEEE  URESMEMR
BRAEMEMBREEAERRERE . BEEE
& & BIR R ET H AR 80 BR 1B = & 7 1 RUE B
%\ °

The impairment assessment requires management to
consider both internal and external sources of
information, in determining whether there is any
indication that any vessel may have been impaired. The
assessment of whether impairment indicators are present
requires significant management judgement.
Accordingly, we considered this area as a key audit
matter.
BEMAEFEEEEEET RS ANRB R EMIM
FARTRE B RERZ B A R INBE IR - s A=
BFRERETRFEZEANEIEREHIE - Bt - &
MRBLEEEERETEE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

HMBEREEEREMHIEF B2

— Understand management'’s impairment assessment
process;

— THREERBRENGBIE

—  Review profitability analysis for each vessel, current
vessel price and any changes in time and voyage
charter rates; and

— EHHEEMMOBNEED SN REHMER
AN M2 B R M 28 &

— Challenge management’s assessment of whether
indicators of impairment are present.

— EREEBHRLFERETRHE
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

BB E R S M |RAEN

B

RMWBR  RYUSRAMBHRREERSD
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safequards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ms. Liu Fung Yi.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

25 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2001F 12831 BILEE

2021 2020
2021 % 2020
Note US$’000 US$'000
B 5 FEx FET
Revenue '@N 8 52,331 55,973
Cost of sales SHER R (44,022) (39,309)
Gross profit EF 8,309 16,664
Other income 8= 9 1,299 634
Administrative expenses ITBR (3,664) (3,199)
Other operating expenses HmgEmx (1,034) (596)
Fxchange gains/(losses), net bE N e, (E518) B 58 417 (89)
Profit from operations BE 18R 5,327 13,414
Finance costs B & Ak A 11 (3,596) (4,806)
Profit before tax BRBLAR R 1,731 8,608
Income tax expense Frie MR 12 (10) (5)
Profit for the year FERA 13 1,721 8,603
Earnings per share BRER 17
Basic (cents per share) EAR (ML) 0.39 203
Diluted (cents per share) g (Fal) N/A i A N/A N3
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REEEkHEtEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #(ZE 2021 F 12 31 HIEFE

2021 2020
2021 F 20204
USss$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Profit for the year FERAN 1,721 8,603
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2 mEUKE :
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AJRER EFT AR B ) HE -
Fxchange differences on translating MEBINERER Z58
foreign operations 2 (15)
Other comprehensive income RRENFEHEM2ENE
for the year, net of tax 2 (15)
Total comprehensive income FEXHWNRHAEE
for the year 1,723 8,588
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MR R &

At 31 December 2021 720214 12 A31 H

2021 2020
2021 2020
Note US$’000 US$'000
P 5T FEx FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - MR NERE 18 113,455 95,383
Right-of-use assets ERERE 19 77,872 103,206
Total non-current assets FREBEELE 191,327 198,589
Current assets RBEE
Derivative financial instruments TTHEER T A 20 = 230
Inventories FE 21 2,165 1,409
Trade receivables Z Z i saa 22 1,299 1,462
Other receivables, deposits Ho b e A -
and prepayments e RIEFE 23 463 586
Contract assets BREE 30 = 76
Pledged bank deposits EIRRITER 24(a) 1,399 1,398
Bank and cash balances RIT IR 2 4 ek 24(b) 3,846 8,775
Total current assets REEEAE 9,172 13,936
TOTAL ASSETS EEHAE 200,499 212,525
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERZREE
Share capital AR 7R 25 4,400 4,400
Reserves & 27 116,630 114,907
Total equity R 121,030 119,307
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings B 28 23,620 30,747
Lease liabilities MEaE 29 14,332 31,171
Total non-current liabilities kRBEBRTE 37,952 61,918
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MR R

At 31 December 2021 720214 12 A31 H

2021 2020
2021 202045
Note US$’000 US$'000
B 5 FEx FET

Current liabilities RBEE
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A 20 160 508
Contract liabilities EREE 30 257 532
Borrowings Bz 28 17,058 12,787
Lease liabilities HERE 29 17,121 14,184
Trade payables B 5 EMFIE 31 5,898 1,909
Other payables and accruals Hip et Ia Kk Est B B 32 1,023 1,380
Total current liabilities REBAEAE 41,517 31,300
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EERAEHEEE 200,499 212,525
Net current liabilities BB EFE (32,345) (17,364)
Total assets less current liabilities E&EEZERAHERE 158,982 181,225

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2022 and are signed  jA20224F3 HAos AEEEZ2H & WA T~

on its behalf by: FIAETRERE
Xu Wenjun Chen Ming
538 PR 88
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2001F 12831 BILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARHE AER
Foreign
currency
Share Share  Capital  Merger translation Retained

capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total

HMEBE
ke ROEE ExRE AHEE e REEN act
US$'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000
TEr TEr TEr TEr TER TER TER
At T January 2020 R2020E1R18 4,000 69,063 9310 833 22) 21,306 105,090
Issue of shares (Note 25) BRI (W5t 25) 400 5229 - - - - 5,629

Total comprehensive income EErANEEE
for the year - - - - (15) 8,603 8,588
Changes in equity for the year EEEGE 400 5209 - - (15) 8603 14217
At 31 December 2020 R2020F 124318 4400 743892 9310 833 (37) 29909 119,307
At T January 2021 R0 FE1ATB 4,400 74,892 9,310 833 (37) 29,909 119,307
Total comprehensive income FEXEYEESE

for the year - - - - 2 1,721 1,723
Changes in equity for the year FEEGE - - - - 2 1,721 1,723
At 31 December 2021 R0 E 1 A3A 4,400 74,892 9,310 833 (35) 31,630 121,030
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEEHESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #(ZE 2021 F 12 31 HIEFE

2021 2020
2021 20204F
Note USs$’000 USS$'000
B aE FEx FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BRA% A8 A 1,731 8,608
Adjustments for: BT SIBEL AR -
Allowance for other receivables H {th fE Ug SOBE B 13 - 204
Bank interest income RITH B = 9 (3) (26)
Depreciation of property, Y - B MEREITE
plant and equipment 13 6,426 5,079
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREESERTE 13 3,867 5,858
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BE R
plant and equipment Byl 13 (3) -
Gain on disposal of derivative HETESR T AlE
financial instrument 13 - )
Fair value gains on derivative EeMIARFE
financial instruments, net W F 58 13 (118) @®)
Finance costs BE R 11 3,596 4,806
Unrealised exchange (gains)/losses RERE N (W), EE (253) 144
Write-off of trade receivables 8 5 FE W IE A 85 13 = 38
Write-off of other receivables H b i R IE R 8 13 - 183
Operating profit before working EEESEHAKL BN
capital changes 15,243 24,877
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEEGEEM), md (756) 99
Decrease in trade receivables H 5 W IR R 163 813
Decrease in other receivables, EmpEWIE - e &
deposits and prepayments TEATRIER A 161 670
Decrease in contract assets BHEERY 76 297
(Decrease)/increase in contract AHBaBEORD),
liabilities (275) 345
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 8 5 B 2 IEIE M, G ) 3,989 (1)
Decrease in other payables E b e FR0E R FEET
and accruals BRI (357) (433)
Cash generated from operations REMFRE 18,244 26,657
Income tax paid BRI EH (10) (5)
Interest and bank charges paid BENFMERIBITFEE (1,928) (2,206)
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEFE (1,650) (2,573)
Net cash generated from operating K EBSIR G S5
activities 14,656 21,873
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mMERTMER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2001F 12831 BILEE

2021 2020
2021 2020
Note US$’000 US$'000
P 5T FEx FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Increase in pledged bank deposits B RITIFFIE M (1) (19
Decrease/(increase) in restricted TR EISRITEE AR (1 h0)
bank balances 24(b) 787 (1,160)
Interest received B FE 3 26
Net proceeds from disposal of HETESMTA
derivative financial instruments FiS 5B F58 = 9
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE  WEL&E
equipment (2,763) (446)
Net cash used in investing activities B REFTAIR G F5E (1,974) (1,590)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRENRE
ACTIVITIES
Principal elements of lease payments ~ FA & XA S 5 33(b) (14,223) (11,717)
Borrowings raised EPNEEN 33(b) 13,900 20,500
Repayment of borrowings BEEm 33(b) (16,503) (29,879)
Proceeds from issue of shares BT TS 50 - 5,629
Net cash used in financing activities BB RSB FTAIR © F5E (16,826) (15,467)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN HERREEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i, CRd) B8 (4,144) 4816
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 4 [ & & B 1 2 (18)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS M1A1EHNERER
AT 1 JANUARY REZEY 5,881 1,083
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS M12A31ANRER
AT 31 DECEMBER RE&EZEEY 1,739 5,881
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND RERBESEEYNIW
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITNIR S 4 3,846 8,775
Less: Restricted bank balances B PR B fETT? R 24(b) (2,107) (2,894)
1,739 5,881
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.

HE2001F 12431 BILEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Xin Yuan Enterprises Group Limited (the "Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 28 June
2016. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 31119, Grand
Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman KY1-
1205, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business in Hong Kong is 40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre,
No. 248 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s
share are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA”"). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS”); Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (‘"HKAS"); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
and with the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

At 31 December 2021, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately US$32,345,000. This condition indicates the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
therefore, it may be unable to realise its assets and discharges its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

—REHR
EREXFEEARAFT(A2E )
R2016F6 A28ARBERESHER
AEEREREEMKIAERE
Aa] e B EE i 2 P.O. Box
31119, Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802
West Bay Road, Grand Cayman KY1-
1205, Cayman Islands © EHF B F E &
FHEH MU AFEBEFERANER
248 RFT S WA 0 40 o KT
MREREBERXZAAR LA ([ H#
) EMRET -

RRABRREZERRAR - EBA
AINEBXB RS HN SRS VR
RMTEE37

HELEAMBBRRVZBELEGS
fag((EBEMAE])HEMHZ
FrEERESMBRELEN(ER
MBHREER ) MEE - FBUGE
BEEABERBBVHREERN(E
AMBEREREL])  FESHER
([EBEER]) « M2k - HER
EMBREANTEMIAESF LT
BMANT EWRRD 2 ERWERE -
PARREBIEDIE 622 F N BER 2 B
BRE AKEMRERANERNSE
BN T X -

B2021F 128318 AEEERH
B 15 F 5H 49 32,3450003 7T ° Ik
ARG EAREREAEERFEL
BRENELEBEREENEXNTHEA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 EZE 2021512 A31 BIEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the

fmBLELE (18)
RRBEBFHFESTHRERE - AR

170

directors of the Company have given careful consideration to the
current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group and the
ability of the Group to continue to attain profitable and positive
cash flows from operations in the immediate and longer terms. In
order to strengthen the Group’s liquidity in the foreseeable
future, the directors of the Company have taken the following

measures:

0]

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

On 30 December 2021, the Group entered into a two-year
US$4,000,000 loan facilities with a related company. As at
31 December 2021, the Group has utilised US$300,000 of
the aforesaid facilities;

On 4 March 2022, the Group entered into a finance lease
agreement of US$16,000,000 with a financial institution;

Negotiating with banks and other financial institutions in
advance for renewal and obtaining new banking facilities;

The directors of the Company have been taking various
cost control measures to tighten the costs of operations;
and

The Group has been implementing various strategies to
enhance the Group's revenue and profitability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2.

HE2001F 12431 BILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The directors of the Company have taken into account the cash
requirements of the Group for the next twelve months from the
end of the reporting period and the above measures, and have
concluded that the Group will have sufficient working capital to
meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due and
accordingly the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. Should the Group be unable
to continue as a going concern, adjustments would have to be
made to the consolidated financial statements to adjust the value
of the Group’s assets and to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities as current assets and liabilities, respectively.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

Reform — Phrase 2

2.

fim BLELE (18)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 EZE 2021512 A31 BIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

R AT REIERT BB M B
HER (8

172

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group's financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phrase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from (i)
accounting for changes in the basis for determining
contractual cash flows of financial assets, financial liabilities
and lease liabilities as modifications, and (ii) discontinuing
hedge accounting when an interest rate benchmark is
replaced by an alternative benchmark rate as a result of the
reform of interbank offered rates ("IBOR reform”).

The Group had certain interest-bearing other loan and lease
liabilities (the “Other Liabilities”) denominated in United
States dollars based on the London Interbank Offered Rate
("LIBOR”") as at 31 December 2021. Since the interest rate of
the Other Liabilities was not replaced by an alternative
benchmark rate during the period, the amendment did not
have any impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group. If the interest rate of the Other Liabilities is
replaced by an alternative benchmark rate in a future
period, the Group will apply this practical expedient upon
the modification of the Other Liabilities provided that the
“economically equivalent” criterion is met.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #(ZE 2021 F 12 31 HIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective
The Group has not applied any new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2021. These new and
revised HKFRSs include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

R R RAEIERT BB M B
HER (&)

(b)

EEMEMRERNHITR
KIS B R KRELER

AEEVEREBEMNEEME
AR 2021 561 A1 BHRAE 281
BEEERNFIIREEITE
B ISIRE LR ZEFA R
KIEET BBV B REELN B
AIREEAANEB AN THIFIE -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT B#is

Z BB
SETHBER

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Business Combination — Reference to

the Conceptual Framework

FRMBGHRELERE 35 (BT A) XA 0 — BRIERES
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before

Intended Use
BB EAE 16 (IBEIN)ME - BE K
B — (EE G A 2 TS 50R

1 January 2022

20221418
1 January 2022

2022F1H1H

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
FR G ERE 7R (BRI R) BEAH — BITE K ZEA
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
2018 F 22020 FREMIBEAMBHMEER 2 FESCE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
FREtERE 1R (BFIA) BB ERRBIGERD
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements — Disclosure
of Accounting Policies
FERGERE R (BFIAR) U REBREREMEBEMBRESENEHL RS
F2RELERAE — SETHRHTE
Amendments to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors — Definition of Accounting Estimates
FE et ERFE 8 (B A) — TSR - SstEstEE
ZWEIE — gtttz EE
Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax Related to
Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction
FEAGFERFE 12 (BRI R) BT —HE-RFELZEER
BEMBENELES A

1 January 2022
2022F1H1H
1 January 2022
2022F1H1H
1 January 2023
2023F 1 H1H
1 January 2023

2023%F 1 A1 H
1 January 2023
2023%F 1 A1 H

1 January 2023

20231 H1H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

AEB LR EZFERT AR
AT 2 Rl TR B R FE R HA
MEE - BEBA ERHE
i o Ay PR A L il B TR AN KX AT RE
UG EMBHRRELEATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 EZE 2021512 A31 BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared

4, EEBTTEER

I ERE M BEMRIIIRE LKA L
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise BE . ETXEtHESAHMLE
in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial (METEAFES=ENERIE)
instruments that are measured at fair value). BRAN o

RIEE S B 75 3RS L2 R AR B B 75 )
REEZHEAETHARg M- &
NEEERERERASEE S
KBIBRVEL HE - B RAFTE
BEVBRERBEANBBEREER
BEES o

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

LIS A BT RS A 0 E
BERHBERIOT -

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation (a) #ZEEEB

174

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

RAEMBRERBPEARARE
MEBATEZ 12831 BB
WK -MBRAAIEAEEHE
BEEHENERE  S4AKE
BEREARENZEL2HEEHER
BT 15 2 AT % [o] 3R /Y & B ok 42
- BB BHEZEENE
hEEzER®R - MRERY
ZEBRBEBZGIE - BAEE
MIREEFNE TEBREESR
FEESACIPN -2 5 10k
£ ML N BIAEEYZ
EREREN -

EHEEH R AREEE
BEREERZEAREMBAL
FRENBERREE - EEFA
ABRBERTEEEREENE
AT TEEREER -

MEBAEMRE b EE
BEAEEEREGEE AR
EEREHREKIEIERIBEA
N



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2001F 12431 BILEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the
Company. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statements of financial position and
consolidated statements of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

HE2001F 12831 BILEE

176

(b)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’'s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
United States dollars ("US$"), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the
end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #(ZE 2021 F 12 31 HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

4. FESFEEGE)
(b) HMNEFIRET (4E)

(ii)

(i)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary items
that are measured at fair value in foreign currencies
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company'’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company's presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates
on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

(ii)

(iii)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

178

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on disposal.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

(i)

Vessels

Vessels, other than vessels under leases which were
classified as right-of-use assets (Note 4(d)(i)), are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

Vessels (other than the abovementioned vessels
under lease and the dry-docking component) are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of 10-25 years, after taking into account
the estimated residual values. Depreciation method,
estimated useful lives and estimated residual values
are reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

Upon acquisition of a vessel, the components of the
vessel which are required to be replaced at the next
dry-docking are identified and their costs are
depreciated over the period to the next estimated
dry-docking date. Costs incurred on subsequent dry-
docking of the vessels are capitalised and depreciated
over the period to the next estimated dry-docking
date. When significant dry-docking costs incurred
prior to the expiry of the depreciation period, the
remaining costs of the previous dry-docking are
written off immediately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2001F 12431 BILEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(c)

(ii)

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates
are as follows:

Office equipment & motor vehicle 20%-33%
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of

any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Leases

180

HE2001F 12831 BILEE

4. FESFEEGE)
(d) *Hl%i

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.

() The Group as lessee
Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus
any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Leases (Continued)

182

(i)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in the
Group's estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is a
change arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract ("lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification. The only
exceptions are any rent concessions which arose as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
which satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph
46B of HKFRS 16. In such cases, the Group took
advantage of the practical expedient not to assess
whether the rent concessions are lease modifications,
and recognised the change in consideration as
negative lease payments in profit or loss in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #(ZE 2021 F 12 31 HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FESTHHEE®)

(d) Leases (Continued)

(e)

(i) The Group as lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.

Inventories

Inventories comprise bunker and lubricant oil for vessels
remaining on board at the end of the reporting period.
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out basis.
Net realisable value is the expected amount to be realised
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Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses (“ECL") in accordance with the policy set out in Note
4(v) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

184

(f)

(9)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)
When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

186

1)

(k)

()

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group'’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

4., FEETTEEE)

1)

(k)

)

(m)

ReRATEEY

RekREFEVERBRITR
FHERE RITLEAMS B
BEERERARREBAR=
BAAZ A BERER AR A
cRATHEHNSRBELE
BENERR NANKE - &
mESZARERERT BHe
LR FEEMMBRHARER
EEMBRARER S EE—
MOWRTEX - RERRE
FEMETEENEERE -

TREERKRATA

TRABEBRATAREDA
VEHZHOAT REFBM
BEEANBTH R EENMK
ATEMERETORE WA
TEREMAEARASEER
HEFfFBEROFBREEED
FIA K o AN EIIB R E & B
BEEEATARAN ST K

Paras

Eﬁo

3

fERNIB R A FEINRAELE
RHRAER  HRFEBER
MR IZEEHAANGT & o

BROERRBAEE  BRIER
SEEEGRGENASEER
ERHREEEREHEBED
1218 A -

BEZREMENRE

85 REMENRIBNREA
FEER  HREBERMNE
SRR BHKANGTE - BRIFITIR
FEWPEK » AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
Costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from voyage charter and contract of affreightment
("CoA") is recognised over time when the asphalt tanker
chartering services are performed.

Revenue from vessel management services is recognised
over time when the management services are performed.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.
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(p)

(a)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Rental income from time charter and bulk carrier charter is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of each
charter, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
(ii) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group

(iii)

recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group
that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset. Any specific borrowing that remain
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended
use or sale is included in the general borrowing pool for
calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

190

(s)

(t)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FESTHHEE®)

(t)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent

(t)

BIR (48)

B FE 7N S (B RJ 422 I B By 2 A R
B RERZBRNRAERAR
R D - 7B R 3 R
RANIREMELNERTE
RERERECHAAE -

RN IR E E N REER S ®
THRETR  MTABAR

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits %) fiE p%m,mﬂ e 2k
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be Ho&EE  ELEHIEEEEN
recovered. JER D ©

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected B IBRFERREER Tfi
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the '%:*EEQFHEFBWEFH 9 B

asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
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of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

192

(t)

(u)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the
case, recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value less
costs of disposal of the individual asset or the cash-
generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values
are computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-
generating unit whose impairment is being measured.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused by
changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the
extent that they reverse the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
receivables and contract assets. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective financial
instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

194

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects of the
industries in which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained
from economic expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information that
relate to the Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

() The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(I The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

() Adverse changes in economic and business

conditions in the longer term may, but will not

necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.
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196

(v)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood
definition or if an external rating is not available, the asset
has an internal rating of “performing”. Performing means
that the counterparty has a strong financial position and
there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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(v)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the exposure
at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the
assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. For a lease receivable, the
cash flows used for determining the expected credit losses
is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the
lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets for which simplified approach was
used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(w) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(x)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgement that has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements (apart from those involving estimates, which are dealt
with below).

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on

a going concern basis, the Group meets its day-to-day working
capital requirements through its continuous positive operating
cashflow and the bank and other facilities. Details are explained
in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES 5.
(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
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The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value
in use, the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the assets belongs. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or
the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable amounts.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2021 were
approximately US$113,455,000 (2020: US$95,383,000) and
approximately US$77,872,000 (2020: US$103,206,000),
respectively.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Income taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made. During the
year, approximately US$4,000 (2020: US$5,000) of Singapore
Corporate Income Tax and US$6,000 (2020: USSNil) of Hong
Kong Profits Tax were charged to profit or loss based on the
estimated profit from operations. No provision for the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") Enterprise Income
Tax was made since the Group had no assessable profit for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets
The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables and contract
assets based on the credit risk of trade receivables and
contract assets. The amount of the impairment loss based
on ECL model is measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where the
future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of trade
receivables and contract assets was approximately
US$1,299,000 (2020: USS1,538,000) and no allowance of
doubtful debts was made (2020: Nil).
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. TRERERE

202

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.

The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as
some of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of respective Group entities such as Singapore
dollars ("SGD") and Renminbi ("/RMB"). During the year, the
Group entered into foreign currency forward contracts to
hedge the foreign currency risk in respect of bank loans
denominated in SGD. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider further its
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

At 31 December 2021, if USS$ had strengthened/weakened
5 per cent against SGD with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year would
have been approximately US$411,000 (2020: US$651,000)
higher/lower, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange gains/losses on other loans denominated in SGD.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including
deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments. The
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents and derivative financial assets is limited because
the counterparties are banks and financial institutions with
high credit-rating assigned by international credit-rating
agencies, for which the Group considers to have low credit risk.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables and contracts assets

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group's established policy, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables, for voyage
charter, generally are due within five business days
after completion of cargo loading. For CoA, the
balances generally are due within three business days
after completion of cargo discharging. For demurrage
claims, the balances normally are due within 30 days
after the finalisation. For asphalt trading, the balance
is normally paid within 30 days after the invoice date.
Debtors with balances that are more than 3 months
past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group's different customer bases. The
ECL rate of current trade receivables and contract
assets is assessed to be 0% (2020: 0%). No loss
allowance provision was recognised during the year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii) Otherreceivables
The Group assessed that the ECL for other receivables
are not material under 12-month expected losses
method. Allowance provision of approximately USSNIil
(2020: US$204,000) was recognised during the year.

6. TRIAMERE®)
(b) EERM(E)
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(c) Liquidity risk () REBESEMR
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and AREBSOBREKEAEEHERB A
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains LB REE R F K - LAE
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements RAEE BT EWIRSFHEE
in the short and longer term. MESEEEERFHESEK o
The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted AEBEFTESRBBRED
cash flows of the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities AR RE 2R E S
is as follows: iGN
On demand Between Between
or within 1and 2and Over
1year 2years 5years 5years Total
RERS
M1ER 122% 2E5F SENE -
US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET S FET FEn FET
At 31 December 2021 20215128318
Borrowings EE 18,210 9,774 15,214 339 43,537
Lease liabilities BERRE 18,342 14,615 79 - 33,036
Trade and other payables ESREMENZIE 6,555 - - - 6,555
At 31 December 2020 R2020512 A31H
Borrowings fEm 13672 15,494 19835 - 49,001
Lease liabilities REARE 15620 18,208 14,486 - 48314
Trade and other payables B RAMENTIE 2,570 - - - 2,570
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Interestraterisk

HE2001F 12431 BILEE

6. TRIEAMERE®)

(d) FZRPE K

(e)

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk mainly arises from
its bank deposits, bank loans, loans from a related company
and other loans. Bank deposits of approximately
US$2,149,000 (2020: US$2,148,000) bear interests at fixed
interest rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest
rate risk. Bank deposits of approximately US$1,444,000
(2020: US$6,115,000), bank loans, loans from a related
company and other loans bear interests at variable rates
varied with the then prevailing market condition.

The Group used interest rate swaps in order to mitigate its
exposure associated with fluctuations relating to interest
cash flows.

At 31 December 2021, if interest rates had been 100 basis
points (2020: 100 basis points) lower/higher with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the
year would have been approximately US$707,000 (2020:
US$828,000) higher/lower, arising mainly as a result of
lower/higher interest expenses.

Categories of financial instruments
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(e) €RTEMER

2021 2020
2021 % 20205
US$’000 US$'000
FER FET
Financial assets: SHMEE
Financial assets mandatorily Gl B/ NS = u‘l‘)\%ﬁ?&
measured at FVTPL AENSREE —
— derivative financial instruments SRT A - 230
Financial assets measured REEK AT ENERMEE
at amortised cost 6,971 12,119
Financial liabilities: £ 3=L
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BN EFABZNSR
— derivative financial instruments BE—ITAsRmIA 160 508
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IR E K At EN LRI A G 47,325 46,104
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6.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(f) Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statements of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out

of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.
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7.

HE2001F 12431 BILEE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(@) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy:

7. DEEFTE@E)

(a) RFEERKE:

At
Fair value measurements using: 31 December
EATIERNATETE: 2021
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level3 20215
ik F-% -t #£=® 12AnA
US$'000 USs$’000 US$’000 US$’000
TER TER TER TER
Recurring fair value REMNTETE:
measurement:
Financial assets tHEE
Foreign currency forward MNERHEL
contracts - - - -
Recurring fair value KEMATETE
measurement:
Financial liabilities tHEE
Interest rate swap contracts FEREEBEL = 160 = 160
At
Fair value measurements using: 31 December
ERTIERNATEAE 2020
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 12020
fast F—H F_MH F=H  12AnNH
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 USS'000
TEx TEx TET TET
Recurring fair value KEMATETE
measurement:
Financial assets tHEE
Foreign currency forward INERHER S 4
contracts - 230 - 230
Recurring fair value KEMATETE
measurement:
Financial liabilities tRAE
Interest rate swap contracts MEREHEL - 508 - 508
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVERE®E)

(b) Disclosure of valuation process used by (b) XEBEFMEAGRERFUR
the Group and valuation techniques and AFEFEFRFERAGERLE
inputs used in fair value measurements: RBABBEE
Level 2 fair value measurements E_RAFEE

Assets/(liabilities)
BE (88
Description Valuation technique Inputs 2021 2020
Hia RER % WA BE 202145 20206
USss$’000 USS$'000
FTERx FET
Foreign currency Discounted cash flows ~ Comparable - 230
forward contracts exchange rate
SN SR B A 4 FRIMEME AJLERE &
Interest rate swap Discounted cash flows  Interest rate (160) (508)
contracts Discount rate
B EIE 4 FIRBEERE IS
IELES
During the two years, there were no changes in the RREFE - FrRGEREL
valuation techniques used. mEE -
8. REVENUE 8. WA

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by F RN ARFE R AR EE D8

services and the timing of revenue recognition for the year are as KARPSAWKALDT

follow:

2021 2020
2021 20204
USs$’000 USS$'000
FTER FET
Revenue from contracts with ERMBEHREEAE 155
customers within the scope BEEARBEFEHHKRA
of HKFRS 15
— Voyage charter and CoA, —RBHEKBESL
recognised over time 7 ERHERR 26,986 23,332
Revenue from other sources R EHAMRFRHWKA
— Time charter — HEAFA 25,345 32,641
52,331 55,973
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9.

10‘

HE2001F 12431 BILEE

OTHER INCOME 9. Hfttz=
2021 2020
2021 F 2020
US$’000 USs$'000
FEx FE
Bank interest income RITH B AR 3 26
Compensation income EEN = 1,162 426
Net fair value gains on derivative PTEemIAATE
financial instruments Wiz FRE 118 8
Gain on disposal of derivative HEMESRT AR
financial instruments - 9
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BFE REEWE
plant and equipment 3 -
Government grants (Note) BT B (B aE) 10 45
Sundry income HMETE U S 3 120
1,299 634

Note: During the year, the Group recognised government grants in respect of
COVID-19 related subsidies provided by the government of Singapore
(2020: from government of Singapore and Hong Kong).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has three operating segments as follows:

Asphalt tanker chartering
services

Provision of asphalt tanker
chartering services

Provision of bulk carrier
chartering services

Bulk carrier chartering
services

Asphalt trading Trading of asphalt

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include unallocated
interest revenue, unallocated interest expenses, unallocated
corporate income and unallocated corporate expenses.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the
sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market prices.

10.

MIsE R ANEEERIINFEBUT (20205 ¢
Froondgk BB BT ) HE A COVID-19487
RAwHAh 2 BT -

2 2R 1)
REEBUAT=ELEDE

EEMAEMR — REESHEM
B 75 ARTE
BUEMN — IRHEHAEMmER
AR 7% AR 7%
BES5E5 — EBEH
AEEBTERND ILAEEET
JX&T:&HWQE”JEJZW%WET ° uxi
DHIAERE RAASHEKS
THE’JTSEHI& 2 SHEBLEE o
KD BR LS B R

RMEE4FTALEAER © & \ﬁnf'JjZ)Eﬁ
BABEAD @Eﬂ%ﬂﬁl?\ EN)
MEFRX %ﬁ@ﬂ’&ﬁ?ﬂ&ﬁ?&&ﬁiﬁ
FLRRIFX °

AEERBINEEIERTE=]
(BIAERIH(E) 5 A2 E D R E
HENEE
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 0. oEPER (&)
Information about operating segment profit or loss, FBERE D ﬁB BANEEE - BEE
assets and liabilities: BREBHNESR :
Asphalt
tanker Bulk carrier
chartering chartering Asphalt
services services trading Total
EE M BEm
1 e B % A e B % BE5E5 Y
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 USS'000
TET =T TET e
Year ended 31 December 2021: EZ2021512H31H
LEE:
Revenue from external customers 3R B INIEE B HIUA 41,851 10,480 = 52,331
Segment profit/(loss) AEREH,/(E51B) 781 4,019 8) 4,792
Interest expenses MBS 2,966 576 - 3,542
Depreciation TE 8,316 1,791 - 10,107
Income tax expense FIEERS 4 - 6 10
Additions to segment AEDH
non-current assets ERHEE 1,488 1,183 - 2,671
As at 31 December 2021: RH2021F12A31H
Segment assets NHEE 167,672 31,440 6 199,118
Segment liabilities NEBE 64,507 13,427 - 77,934
Yearended 31 December 2020 & & 2020512 A31H
IEFE:
Revenue from external customers 3R BMNIFE B HIUA 45329 10,644 - 55,973
Segment profit/(loss) DEEA/ (EE) 7,662 3577 (3) 11,236
Interest expenses MBS 3,846 929 - 4775
Depreciation E 8,963 1819 - 10,782
Income tax expense Fﬁﬁﬁfﬂ"ﬁ X 5 - - >
Additions to segment NEDE
non-current assets FRBEE 442 - - 442
As at 31 December 2020: FR2020F 124318 -
Segment assets NHEE 175,774 31,895 7 207,676
Segment liabilities AHERE 73,738 16,253 - 89,991
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) D EE R (&)
Reconciliations of segment profit or loss: 2 E R E IR AR -
2021 2020
20214 2020
US$’000 USs$'000
FEx FET
Revenue WA
Total revenue of reportable segments AT ERDEBUALEE 52,331 55,973
Profit or loss %*UEEE? B
Total profit or loss of reportable segments 78T 2 ¥ 7> %04 7| 5k E5 18 4 4,792 11,236
Unallocated interest revenue KD @Eﬂ A 1 1
Unallocated interest expenses PN @Eﬂ SHX (54) (31)
Unallocated corporate income E N NS 4 62
Unallocated corporate expenses PN @E G52 (3,022) (2,665)
Consolidated profit for the year FEEEE TN 1,721 8,603
Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities: PTHEERBBEHER :
2021 2020
20214 2020
Uss$’000 USs$'000
FEx F3EIT
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments ATE2 ifﬁ ‘E‘B & ERE 199,118 207,676
Unallocated amounts: ROBEK
Other corporate assets HMA T éf = 1,381 4,849
Consolidated total assets MEBERE 200,499 212,525
Liabilities =K
Total liabilities of reportable segments BTE2 $& ‘E‘B | (H48%8 77,934 89,991
Unallocated amounts: RO BEFIA
Other corporate liabilities H@" FlAE 1,535 3,227
Consolidated total liabilities TEBERSE 79,469 93218
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. DEER(B)

212

Geographical information: EER -
Revenue WA

The Group's business is managed on a worldwide basis. The
revenue generated from provision of asphalt tanker chartering
services and provision of bulk carrier chartering services which
are carried out internationally, and the way in which costs are
allocated, preclude a meaningful presentation of geographical
information.

Non-current assets
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, over 99% of the Group’s non-
current assets are vessels.

The vessels are primarily utilised across geographical markets for
shipment of liquid asphalt and dry bulk cargo throughout the
world. Accordingly, it is impractical to present the locations of the
vessels by geographical areas and thus no segment analysis is
presented.

AEENEBEMEZIK - REES
e L o PR 75 B 42 A AR i 7 v BR 75
(EeXBEARER) EEMHBRA R
DERANTASTH2I R E R

FRBEE
R2021F 202012 318 » A&
B8 99% M FE BN B EE AT o

MMEZRREERESHWET S
REEREBES MEBREMN -
bt RHIR R IR 2 5 M AR E I A
B - ML EZ25) 0 BT -

Revenue from major customers: REETEEFHBA :
2021 2020
202145 20205
US$’000 USs$'000
FEx FET
Provision of asphalt tanker REES MM IR
chartering services
Customer A ZBA 12,108 15,125
Customer B (Note (a)) ZFPB(KIFE@E) 10,348 N/A i A
Customer C (Note (b)) BB C(MIEE (b)) N/A 7 iE A 6,644
Provision of bulk carrier RMEBE MM IR
chartering services
Customer D (Note (a)) EPD (M5 () 5,346 N/A i
Notes: PaE
(@  Revenue from Customer B and Customer D represented less than 10% of @ REEFBREFPDHWAMAERE

the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020.

(b) Revenue from Customer C represented less than 10% of the Group's
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021.

XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

FE220FN2ANHIEFERATRTR
10% ©

b) RERFCHBRAMGAREBRHZ=2021F
12 A31 BIEFEWRATR10% ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #(ZE 2021 F 12 31 HIEFE

11. FINANCE COSTS 11. BE KA
2021 2020
2021 F 20204
USs$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Interest expenses on lease liabilities MERGEZHNERX
(Note 19) (BtsE19) 1,668 2,600
Interest rate swap expenses F =42 BRI 2 281 304
Interests on borrowings BRAE 1,647 1,902
3,596 4,806
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FifEHAX
Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as following: REZAERHFIEHROT :
2021 2020
2021 F 20204
USs$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits tax ENEATIE — BAENEN
Underprovision in prior year TFEERETR 6 -
Current tax — Singapore Corporate BNEARITE — FrhnE %
Income Tax PRS0
Underprovision in prior year TFEERETR 4 5
Income tax expenses PSR 2 10 5

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Singapore. During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021,
Singapore Corporate Income Tax has been provided at a rate of
17%. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC Enterprise
Income Tax was made since the Group has no assessable profit
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate is as follows:

REBEEZEEETE - RERITMNE
B FETE o AELE 2020F 2021 FF
12A3BALEFE  BR17%8H =X
EHIRET N TSR o W EET IR
BAENESHEPBEDTEMSH
ARNEBHZE2021F12A31HIEE
G B ERBRF)

PAT 15 758 B S B2 R 5 A s 1) SR A & 78
MM RS ERNOERIOT
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2. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12. FIBHHAXZ (&)
2021 2020
2021 % 2020
US$’000 USS$'000
FEx FET
Profit before tax B F4 BT 4 ) 1,731 8,608
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% 127 7 K15 Fi F & 16.5%

(2020: 16.5%) (2020%F : 16.5%) st EHFIA 286 1,420
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BAERBRK ORI E (8,945) (9,379)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 7~ A F15 5 sk B Bl 75 52 &8 8,437 7,715
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERMIBEBEONEZE 342 361
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries  [ff/&@ A &) R Bl R H) 52 2 (120) (117)
Underprovision in prior year TFERETRE 10 5
Income tax expense FR1S M7 2 10 5
As at 31 December 2021, the Group has unused tax losses of R2021F 128318 XEBFXH

approximately US$4,867,000 (2020: US$3,277,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax assets have been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams
from those loss making subsidiaries. The aforesaid unused tax
losses of the Group have not yet been agreed by respective tax
authorities. The expiry date of unrecognised tax losses are
summarised as follows:

FA % T8 518 494,867,000 7T (2020 4F -

3,277,0003 7T ) AJ Fﬁbﬁhﬁﬂixlﬁn
Fle BRZEESEENHEA

B 7R B S F i S | TR E&Ifﬁiﬁﬁ
RELEHBEE - Ll AEE KRS
FA 754 TE 5 18 1A AR A AR B8 B 7 K 8 R
B RMERTEEEMI AR
U

2021 2020
2021 2020

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FXET

On 31 December 2022 202212 A31H 46 43
On 31 December 2023 MR2023%F 12 A31H 842 789
On 31 December 2024 202412 A31H 1,071 1,003
On 31 December 2025 2025 12 A31 H 1,539 1,442
On 31 December 2026 MR2026% 12 A31H 1,369 -
4,867 3,277
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13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. FE&F
The Group's profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) RNEBFE &M &R (GFA)
the following: Ty &EBEIEZS
2021 2020
2021 20204
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Auditors’ remuneration % S A 7 B 153 154
Allowance for other receivables H A FE R IR B = 204
Depreciation of property, %% R E R EITE
plant and equipment 6,426 5,079
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEETE 3,867 5,858
Exchange (gains)/losses, net fE N (), RFRE (417) 89
Fair value gains on derivative TTEEMITAATERZFE
financial instruments, net (118) (8)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BEL&ERE
plant and equipment (3) -
Gain on disposal of derivative HEMTE ST AR
financial instruments - ©)
Write-off of trade receivables Z 5 FE W GRIE A 85 - 38
Write-off of other receivables H b fE UG SR I8 R £ - 183
14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. EEEFEX
2021 2020
2021 20204
Uss$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Employee benefits expense: EERAAX
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - TEALNOERY 1,228 1317
Fquity-settled share-based payments BREEURD A
B e - -
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R K& FIET &L 3% 105 34
1,333 1,351
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14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued)

HE2001F 12831 BILEE

216

(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
plans which are available for eligible employees in the PRC
and Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the Group has joined defined contribution retirement
schemes for the employees arranged by local government
labour and security authorities (the “PRC Retirement
Schemes”). The Group makes contributions to the PRC
Retirement Schemes at the applicable rates based on the
amounts stipulated by the local government organisations.
Upon retirement, the local government labour and security
authorities are responsible for the payment of the
retirement benefits to the retired employees. Contributions
made to the Central Pension Scheme vest immediately.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
(the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and the
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

Under the central retirement benefit scheme to which the
Group's subsidiaries operating overseas are required to
make contribution, no forfeited contributions will be used
by the employers to reduce the existing level of
contributions.
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14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued)

HE2001F 12431 BILEE

(a)

(b)

Pensions — defined contribution plans (Continued)
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, the
Group had no forfeited contributions under the PRC
Retirement Schemes and MPF Scheme and which may be
used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions. There were also no forfeited contributions
available at 31 December 2020 and 2021 under the PRC
Retirement Schemes and MPF Scheme which may be used
by the Group to reduce the contribution payable in future
years.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the
year included three (2020: two) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in Note 15. The emoluments of
the remaining two (2020: three) individuals are set out
below:

14. EERAAXZ (&)

(a)

(b)

BRE — EHEEREFE(E)
HZE 20208 & 2021%F12 A31H
WEFE - AEBERAFBERKRET
EIRBE S EE T ERER
WeEy 3R - T 5% 5 08 W ey it
KA AAEBARRDIRFH
FOKFE o FA2020 4 K 2021 F 12
A318  RERKRFE RETE
S T8I T N ROL ey 5K
AREASBERRNBLRREE
FERTE R -

FEEESHFMAL
FRAEERERSFHMHAL
REE=R02020F: MA)E
- A AR R =t
BRAN A (2020F : =&)AL H
&SI T

2021 2020

2021 2020

Us$’000 USS$'000

FEx FET

Salaries and allowances e NERL 202 223

Discretionary bonuses BIFTEAL 47 124
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R /K& F1| 5T & = 10 —*

259 347

* Less than US$1,000

The emoluments fell within the following band:

* T2 1,000E7T

BRAFMNN TIIEE

Number of individuals

AE
2021 2020
20215 2020
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = Z 1,000,000 7 7T 1 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T Z 1,500,000 & 7T 1 -
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15. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 15. EEwRARER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EZ=FHM
The emoluments of each director are set out below: KREENIHES 0T

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

PEEELAFHNE L DESRERBME SN AEYHH

Retirement

benefit

Salariesand  Discretionary scheme
Fees allowances bonuses  contributions Total

RIKER
e  HEREH BMiETA HEIM Azt
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TER FER FER TER TER

Year ended HZ2021 5
31 December 2021 12831HLEEE

Mr.ChenMing (Notea)  FR8& 5%t 4 (sEa) 72 - 19 - 91
Mr.Wang Faging (Note©) - &/E %4 (FisEc) 187 - 16 - 203
Mr. Xu Wenjun mxa%sE 168 - 49 - 217
Mr. Ding Yuzhao TES%AE 31 - 2 - 33
Mr.Lin Shifeng (Note @)~ #kit$8 5% 4 (Fii5ta) 78 - 19 4 101
Mr. Lai Guanrong (Note ¢)  #BEBSR %4 (Fif3c) 31 = = = 31
Mr. Suen Chi Wai REREE 34 - - - 34
Mr. Wei Shusong (Note b)  BEZ#A% 4 (FizEb) 1 - - - 1
Mr. Xu Jie R 34 - - - 34

636 = 105 4 745
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15. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

HE2001F 12431 BILEE

15. EET/AIRELRS (E)

(a) ESHM (B

Retirement
benefit
Salariesand ~ Discretionary scheme
Fees allowances bonuses  contributions Total
RIKRER
e  FelkEl BETEAL TEIf H
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET TET FET FET
Year ended BE220%F
31 December 2020 12A31ALEE
Mr. Wang Faging THELAE 87 - 28 - 115
Mr. Xu Wenjun ®"xa%sE 128 - 89 - 217
Mr. Ding Yuzhao TE8%ESE - - 8 - 8
Mr. Lai Guanrong FRERL LA 34 - _ _ 34
Mr. Suen Chi Wai BEBRE 34 - - - 34
Mr. Xu Jie RREE 34 - - - 34
317 - 125 - 442
Notes: PR -

(@) Appointed on 25 March 2021
(b) Appointed on 20 December 2021

(@] Resigned on 20 December 2021

There were no arrangements under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2020:
Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved as disclosed in Notes 28 and 36, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

@  R2021F3A25HERT
(b) P2021F 12820 BERT

(© 20214912 A20BEIT

FAMBEFTREXRBTHE
R B A 22 Bk (20205 - %) o

(b) EERRS THHEHH
HERER
B B 5 28 N2 36 M PT8 58 & 4h
BMERRNFERKAREAFER
EAREEDATENHERNEER
E¥BER ARRABEFHNA
BERRABIEEREECHEA
TEEKHEEREFHEREEKX
BENHEMEARS  THR
BHY -
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15. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 15. EEEF RERE (&)

(Continued)

(c) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (0 BEEUESE - EZEZER
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies EBREERAZTEZANE
corporate and connected entities with such F EERRHEHMRINE
directors #

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no RNE Z201F12A318 1EF
loans, quasi-loans and other dealings entered into by the AR NN 197 /NI RO D= RN
Company or subsidiaries undertaking of the Company, Bl(nER)MENEREATH
where applicable, in favor of directors (2020: Nil). AT ERMER - EERXKH

325 (20204 - 4&) o

16. DIVIDEND 16. B2
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend EETEZRMBE(20205F « ) o
(2020: Nil).
17. EARNINGS PER SHARE 17. BREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the FIREXRABNFEENUTZIE
following:
2021 2020
20214 20204F
US$’000 USS$'000
TR FET
Earnings Z7
Profit for the year attributable to owners  ANA & #EA A fE1H & E &5 7
of the Company 1,721 8,603
‘000 ‘000
T TR
Number of shares BB
Weighted average number of TE AR AR S8R
ordinary shares 440,000 423,169
No diluted earnings per share was presented for the year ended AR EEE RBITE @AY Bt
31 December 2021 (2020: Nil) as there was no potential ordinary W25 EE2021F 128318 1IEFE

share outstanding.

ERSREERF (2020F : £) -

220 XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #(ZE 2021 F 12 31 HIEFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. 1% - BMERKRE

Office
Vessels& equipment &
dry-docking motor vehicle Total
MARER
MR RER AE #Et
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
FTET FET FET
Cost %N
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1 8 108,103 128 108,231
Additions INE 44 4 446
Write-off patkc| - (1 1
Exchange differences & H Z%E - 4 4
At 31 December 2020 and 7202012 A31 A R
1 January 2021 20211 A1 H 108,545 135 108,680
Additions INE 2,671 92 2,763
Disposal HeE - (71) (71)
Transfer from right-of-use assets BB {FAEEE 26,786 - 26,786
Write-off sk (797) = (797)
Exchange differences E N =% - 2 2
At 31 December 2021 FR2021F 12 A31H 137,205 158 137,363
Accumulated depreciation EEtinE
At 1 January 2020 202061 A1 H 8,172 45 8,217
Charge for the year FAMBR 5,058 21 5,079
Write-off Paskc| - (1 (1
Exchange differences E N =% - 2 2
At 31 December 2020 and 2020 12 A31 A K
1 January 2021 20211 A1 H 13,230 67 13,297
Charge for the year FRHEK 6,389 37 6,426
Disposal & - (36) (36)
Transfer from right-of-use assets BB {FRAEEE 5,017 - 5,017
Write-off acki= (797) = (797)
Exchange differences E N =% - 1 1
At 31 December 2021 FR2021F 12 A31H 23,839 69 23,908
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2021 2021912 A31H 113,366 89 113,455
At 31 December 2020 2020912 A31 H 95,315 68 95,383
FEREESEEFGR AR /2021 FFHK 221
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

18‘

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
At 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of vessels pledged
as securities for the Group’s bank loans and other loans
amounted to approximately US$61,023,000 (2020: US$63,964,000)
and approximately US$51,911,000 (2020: US$31,016,000),
respectively (Note 28).

HE2001F 12831 BILEE

18. ¥ - MERRE (&)

PR2021E12 8318 - Bi{EAARE
EIRITE R R E M E KR A
BRTEIE D Bl A#761,023,000 37T (2020
F : 63,964,0003 JT ) & #951,911,000
FE 7t (20204 : 31,016,000 7T) (Bt 3%

28) °
19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. EAEEE
Leased

Vessels properties Total

fha A HEW=X Bt

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

FTErx FET FET

At 1 January 2020 F2020F1 A1 H 108,794 124 108918
Additions NE - 143 143
Depreciation e (5,724) (134) (5,858)
Exchange differences fEH =58 - 3 3
At 31 December 2020 72020612 A31H 103,070 136 103,206
Additions NE - 301 301
Depreciation e (3,718) (149) (3,867)
Exchange differences MEH ZRE - 1 1

Transfer to property, BEYX  BEREE

plant and equipment (21,769) - (21,769)
At 31 December 2021 202112 A31H 77,583 289 77,872

222

Lease liabilities of approximately US$31,453,000 (2020:
US$45,355,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
approximately US$77,872,000 (2020: US$103,206,000) as at 31
December 2021. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the vessels that are
held by the lessor (Note 29). Except for leased vessels with
carrying amount of approximately US$77,583,000 (2020:
US$103,070,000), there is no other leased asset that was used as
security for borrowing purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #(ZE 2021 F 12 31 HIEFE

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 19. EREEE (@)
2021 2020
2021 F 20204
US$’000 US$'000
FER FET
Depreciation expenses on FREEENTEER
right-of-use assets 3,867 5,858
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEERNNERAX
(included in finance costs) (Gt ARERKA) 1,668 2,600
Expenses relating to short-term leases HEHEERENRAX
(included in administrative expenses) GTATTHAX) 31 66
Expenses relating to leases of HHEREEEERBNMAX
low-value assets (included in GFATTE )
administrative expenses) = 8
Details of total cash outflow for leases are set out in Note 33(c). HERS R ABEFFIHNAMNE
33(0) °
For both years, the Group leases certain vessels and offices for its NAEEE  AEBARRESME
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed terms EEFHMmEEAT IR E
ranging from 1 to 5 years (2020: 1 to 5 years). Lease terms are B4 E TR A1 5% (20204 : 1
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of ZE54F) o FHE K THIR (A R B R
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and o ERESEANRBIEIR EEE -
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group MNE T EA L G RS EAPR B -
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for AREEERBAYNTEVETAY
which the contract is enforceable. ] o Sl 1T A HA PR ©
No lease of the Group includes an option to renew the lease for REFHNBEEBE TSRS L8 m
an additional period after the end of the contract term. BIEBEA R IERE -
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20.

21.

224

HE2001F 12831 BILEE

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

20. TE€@M T A

2021 2020
2021 % 2020
US$’000 USS$'000
FEx FET
Financial assets SREE
Fair value of foreign currency INEREIGHATE
forward contracts - 230
Financial liabilities cRasE
Fair value of interest rate swap contracts ~ #| &5 14 49N F(E 160 508

The Group entered into certain foreign currency forward
contracts and interest rate swap contracts with banks to manage
its exchange rate and interest rate exposure.

The foreign currency forward contracts are measured at FVTPL.
The fair value has been estimated using discounted cash flows
that are based on forward exchange rates and contract forward
rates. At 31 December 2021, there was no outstanding foreign
currency forward contract.

The interest rate swap contracts are measured at FVTPL. The fair
value has been estimated using discounted cash flows that are
based on interest rates and discount rates.

AEERRGTITETHEESRE
HEFREREDAEREERR
FIR A -

SNERHAS WA FEF ABRE
E-RNFENERAERNRAEXRR
BHRHERNITFR S MEMET
R2021F 128318 WEEHKTE
IREINE S A o

MEHRBPELHRAFES ABRG
EoRFEDERENRMERITR
KRR MEMGET

INVENTORIES 21. &8
2021 2020
20215 2020
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FE
Bunker and lubricant oil for vessels M RRR L B2 8 2,165 1,409
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

22,

23‘

TRADE RECEIVABLES

For time charter, the Group generally receives monthly
prepayments from customers. For voyage charter, the Group
generally receives full payments within five business days after
completion of cargo loading. For CoA, the Group generally
receives full payments within three business days after
completion of cargo discharging. For demurrage claims, the
balances are normally paid within 30 days after the finalisation.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice

HE2001F 12431 BILEE

22,

B 5 RWRIE

AHEmME  ARE-REARET
PYEEM K - BiiEEM T - A&
E-ReaRETKEAMEEXA
MR 2= 5FIR - LBEARMS -
AEE-—BRRHER=[EZX
BRAKBREHFE - ERFHER
B AlGEs—RNEERIAA
it - BREPHERRIEERE
AR B AR IR I R EE R -
=T RS

REZBHZIINE 5 R KFIAR

date, is as follows:

BT -

2021 2020

2021 F 2020

Uss$’000 US$'000

TER FET

0 to 30 days 0&30H 1,299 1,462
Over 30 days 308 E - -
1,299 1,462

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

denominated in USS.

REEE Z WA REEAS

oA -

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 23. B EUREIE - RS RTENE
PREPAYMENTS 15

2021 2020
202145 2020 5
US$’000 US$'000
FEx T3
Other receivables Hh e TR 149 173
Deposits and prepayments w4 MIENZIA 314 413
463 586
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

24. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND
CASH BALANCES

226

(a

The Group's pledged bank deposits included deposits
pledged to a bank to secure bank loans granted to the
Group (Note 28). The deposits were denominated in US$
and bore fixed interest rate of 0.15% (2020: 0.15%) per
annum, and therefore were subject to fair value interest rate
risk.

At 31 December 2021, bank balances of approximately
US$1,529,000 (2020: USS1,660,000) were restricted from
being used and charged over the Group’s bank loans (Note
28).

At 31 December 2021, bank balances of approximately
US$578,000 (2020: USS1,234,000) were restricted from
being used and charged over the Group's lease liabilities
(Note 29).

At 31 December 2021, the bank and cash balances of the
Group denominated in RMB and kept in the PRC amounted
to approximately US$65,000 (2020: US$147,000). Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.
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24. CEARTERUARRITRER
TEER

(@)

AEEMEERBRTEREE
KB TFRITERR FAEER
TEREROFER(H7E28) °
ZETFRAETEE  REE
FEFF0.15%(2020%F : 0.15%)
e AEERAFERER

4 o
A

2021812 8318 » #91,529,000
3 7T (20204 : 1,660,0003 JT )
WRITHEBRZTRAEARER
AEERITERHER(H T
28) ©

2021512 318 » #9578,000
% 71 (20204F : 1,234,000 % T )
WRITHEBRZTRAEARER
AEEHEAEMNER(MT
29) o

R2021F 128318 » NEB A
ARBHELFERPEAR
TR E HE %4 B65000%E T
(20204F : 147,000 7T) - AR
B IR BINEBX R BRI CHMNE
EIRGEHI) RCKERE - EIE R
EEIRHIE)HMR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #(ZE 2021 F 12 31 HIEFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25, |gA
Number of
shares Amount
RAEE S5
US$'000
FET
Authorised: SETE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, 202051 A1 8 -
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 2020512 A31 8 -
(US$0.01 each) 202141 A1 8 K2021 F
12 A31H(8&00137T) 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :
At 1 January 2020 7202051 A1 H 400,000,000 4,000
Issue of shares (Note) BT (MYEE) 40,000,000 400
At 31 December 2020, 1 January 2021 FA2020%F 12 A318 -~
and 31 December 2021 (US$0.01 each) 20211 A1 B K& 2021 F
12 A31H(8&0013%E5T) 440,000,000 4,400

Note: On 19 May 2020, the Company entered into two subscription agreements
(the “Subscription Agreements”) with Forever Win Asia Trading Limited
and Profit Source HK Trading Limited (the “Subscribers”), pursuant to the
Subscription Agreements, the Company has conditionally agreed to allot
and issue, and the Subscribers have conditionally agreed to subscribe for,
an aggregate of 40,000,000 subscription shares (the “Subscription
Shares’) at the subscription price of HK$1.092 per Subscription Share for
an aggregate cash consideration of HK$43,680,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$5,628,866). The subscription was completed on 3 June
2020.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The only externally imposed capital requirement for the Group is
in order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to
have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. Based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required by the Listing Rules. As at 31
December 2021, over 25% (2020: over 25%) of the shares were in
public hands.

MEE : 72202055 F19H » &K A &) Hi Forever
Win Asia Trading Limited X EREBZ 5
BRAR([ZERBADLMARE
Wi ((ZERBHE])  BEZSRE
W& ARAB B GRS RS K
17 MZERBACDERHREIRRE
EERRBERMDI0NETAEAH
40,000,000 % R B8 M (0 ([ RBE R 12 ) -
#8358 & R (B /543,680,000 7T (FHE R4
56288663 L) ° 4 R HE EIHE 12020
FeA3IHTK -

AEBENEAERBRRERELRE
BRFELENRNALBBBICER
B A 5 o ) B0 P BT SR (@ 3R B K
1t -

NEB BT ENEZMH Lt
fE—HETHIINAERBEZR
DIERL 2 TME R 25% B 1D © IRIEA
RAAHAIESHNERREBEESMR
M ARAARIE#ERF ETHRBRESN
EHRARIFRE - 12021F 12 A 31
B BB 25% (2020 %F : #BiB25%) &)
BROBARALTRE °
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26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

26. ANFMBRARRFESE

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) AATEBEARAR
As at 31 December
®12A831H
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 FF
Note US$’000 USS'000
B 5 FEx FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRARIRIRE 37 55,603 55,603
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits o YRIA -
and prepayments e RTA A 22 17
Due from subsidiaries YNGR ] 37 18,785 19,962
Bank and cash balances RIT IR 8 63 37
Total current assets REEELE 18,870 20,016
TOTAL ASSETS EEHE 74,473 75619
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERRAE
Share capital F& AN 4,400 4,400
Reserves HE 26(b) 69,724 70,875
Total equity iR 74,124 75275
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals H b e RIE M ERTE 234 229
Due to subsidiaries A NGRS 37 115 115
Total current liabilities RBEEHEE 349 344
TOTALEQUITY AND LIABILITIES ## R B E&%E 74,473 75,619
Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2022 and R202F3HA2SHEEZEESH
is signed on its behalf by: o WA TIALTREREE
Xu Wenjun Chen Ming
#®3g B 84
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26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

HE2001F 12431 BILEE

26. XRRHBRRAKREFHEEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (%)
(Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) RNQBREREEE
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
B0 E AitBE st
US$'000 Uss$'000 USs$'000
FE7x FET FET
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1 H 69,663 (3,274) 66,389
Issue of shares TR, 5,229 - 5,229
Loss for the year FEEE - (743) (743)
At31 December2020and #2020 12 A31 B K&
1 January 2021 202191 A1H 74,892 (4,017) 70,875
Loss for the year FEEE - (1,151) (1,151)
At 31 December 2021 R2021F 12 A31H 74,892 (5,168) 69,724
27. RESERVES 27. %%
(a) Group (a) &RKEHE
The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements NEENFEsBLES G
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of NI RR e B LEMEE
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and W RUA LG EREREER -
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
(b) Nature and purpose of reserve (b) REEHNEEREDN
(i) Share premium (i) BR@EE

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the

funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall in the ordinary course of business.

EREXEEERAF /2021 FFRH
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27.

28.

230

RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserve (Continued)
(ii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents wavier of amount due
to the controlling shareholders. As the waived amount
is in substance equivalent to a capital contribution to
the Group, hence, it has been accounted for as capital
reserve.

(iii) Merger reserve
The merger reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the cost of investment in Xin
Yuan Ocean Shipping (HK) Group Limited (“Xin Yuan
Ocean’) over the nominal value of shares of Xin Yuan
Ocean acquired pursuant to the reorganisation.

(iv) Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange difference arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance

27. f#EE)

(b)

RENMEERB(E)

(i) BEXEHE
CENGEEYY AR
BIAF R - HREFR B
HEE LRERAAEE
BHE - FARIEER
ZNE

(iii) EOtf#E
TEENEHREANRE
REFER(BE)EEAE
BRAR(TEREE]) Mg
& AR AN AR §5 25 48 AT URRE
EREFRHOEEZHELN
E' o

(iv) SMERIRGEHE
SNERMFERHEERBES
SNETS B TS SRR T E AR PR
BINEZER o B TIRE
AR B B 7% ¥R 3R B R 4(0) i)

with the accounting policy set out in Note 4(b)(iii) to T st R RIE -
the consolidated financial statements.
BORROWINGS 28. &
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 FF
US$’000 USS'000
FEx FET
Bank loans, secured RITER > HIKE 16,742 25174
Other loans, secured EmER - HiKE 23,636 15,860
Loans from a related company, KE—EEB AR
unsecured (Note) AR E (M) 300 2,500
40,678 43,534

Note: Mr. Xu Wenjun, the director of the Company, has beneficial interests in the
relate company.

The aforesaid related company agreed to provide unsecured and interest
bearing loans to the Group up to US$4,000,000 and be repayable by 30
December 2023. As at 31 December 2021, the Group has utilised
US$300,000.
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28. BORROWINGS (Continued) 28. B (&)
The borrowings are repayable as follows: JEEEEFRAT -
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 FF
US$’000 USS'000
FEx FET
Within one year —FEUR 17,058 12,787
More than one year, but not exceeding —FE LA BT BBMRE
two years 8,959 15,087
More than two years, but not more than ~ WA H{E BB A F
five years 14,335 15,660
More than five years AFELLE 326 -
40,678 43,534
Less: Amount due for settlement R 1NEAARNREASEE SR
within 12 months (shown =y =D
under current liabilities) (17,058) (12,787)
Amount due for settlement after RIERBINBAEE S
12 months 23,620 30,747
The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are AEEEFOETDENITYEES
denominated in the following currencies: 17 :
2021 2020
2021 % 2020
US$’000 USS$'000
FEx FET
uss ETT 32,336 30,360
SGD s T 8,342 13,174
40,678 43534
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28. BORROWINGS (Continued)

HE2001F 12831 BILEE

The effective interest rates as at 31 December were as follows:

28. B (&)

K12 A3 HEBRAMZENT :

2021 2020
2021 2020 FF
US$’000 US$'000

FEx FE

Bank loans
Other loans
Loans from a related Company

RITER
HAiE R

XA —HEREB AR ZER

All borrowings are arranged at floating rates, thus exposing the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

Bank loans were obtained for the sole purpose of the
construction of the vessels. At 31 December 2021, the bank loans

were secured by the followings:

() Mortgage over the Group's vessels (Note 18);

(i)  Corporate guarantee provided by the Company and

subsidiaries; and

(i) Pledged bank deposits (Note 24(a)) and restricted bank

balances (Note 24(b)).

Other loans were obtained for the additional working capital of
the Group. At 31 December 2021, the other loans were secured

by the followings:

() Mortgage/Charge over the Group's vessels (Note 18);

(i)  Corporate guarantee provided by the Company and

subsidiaries;

(i)  Restricted bank balances (Note 24(b)); and

(iv)  Shares of certain subsidiaries.
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2.88%-2.95%
3.90%-3.91%
4.11%

2.90%-4.56%
3.93%-4.08%
4.08%
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EAREEmEERESREN AR

IRTTERRAR AZEMMMEUS -
MR20215 128318 SRITERUT
518 B EH R -

() AEBEMMEIE (FFEE18)

(i) ANRQBRHERFIREH QA
BR: &

(i) BEEMIEITER(MFE24) &
SRR HISRITAE SR (B EE 24(0)) ©

EHmEREAAEERTEEES
MmELE - R2021F12A31H » Hi4
BEFATSIIE B (A

() ANEBMANIEIE, 480 (M
18) :

() ARFRNERDREHAA
1R

(i) PR &R 17 45 &k (MY 7E24(b))
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29. LEASE LIABILITIES

20. fHEEE

Minimum lease payments

REHAEFFR
2021 2020
202145 20205
US$’000 USS$'000
FEx FET
Within one year —FE PN 18,342 15,620
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFRF(BIEEEMS) 14,694 32,694
33,036 48314
Less: Future finance charges B KRR EE A (1,583) (2,959)
Present value of lease obligations HEFMTIRE 31,453 45,355
Present value of
minimum lease payments
REHEESRRE
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 FF
US$’000 USS$'000
FEx FET
Within one year —FEUR 17,121 14,184
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EERF(BREEEMF) 14,332 31,171
Present value of lease obligations HESTRE 31,453 45355
Less: Amount due for settlement B R NREAREIREE SR
within 12 months (shown B AEREEE)
under current liabilities) (17,121) (14,184)
Amount due for settlement after RI2EREBIBEESRE
12 months 14,332 31171

EREXEEERAF /2021 FFRH
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29.

30.

234

HE2001F 12831 BILEE

LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 29. HEESE (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group's lease liabilities are AREBHEEABRNEEMMBENETE
denominated in USS. (ER)
At 31 December 2021, the lease liabilities were secured by the R2021F12A318 - HEBEUT
followings: 5|18 B 1R -
(i)  Charges over the Group's right-of-use assets (Notes 19); () AEBFAEEENTL(ME
19) :
(i)  Corporate guarantee provided by the Company and/or (i ARAKRHHERBIRER
subsidiaries; NEVER
(i) Restricted bank balances (Note 24(b)); and (i) 52 PR &SR 17 45 &4 (B 5E 24(b))
&
(iv)  Shares of certain subsidiaries. (iv) BETFHBRARIMRG -
CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. 8N EERANAE
Contract assets 2021 2020
EHEE 2021 % 20205
US$’000 USS$'000
FERx FET
Unbilled revenue — voyage charter AAAREWA —2HE K
and CoA BIBAK - 76
Receivables from contracts with customers 7 7 B #5525 2 BI 55 15 5%
within the scope of HKFRS 15, which HEAKBEFELHH
are included in “Trade receivables” FERFIA  5TATE S
JE W R - 1,462

Amounts relating to contract assets are unbilled amount resulting
from voyage charter and CoA over time. Contract assets are
transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional.
This usually occurs when the Group issues invoice to the
customer.

There were no significant changes in the contract assets balances
during the reporting period.

The amount of contract assets that is expected to be recovered
no more than one year is approximately USSNil (2020: US$76,000).
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30. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. 2 BERASHER/ ()

(Continued)

Contract liabilities 2021 2020
BHEE 2021 5 20204F
US$’000 USS$'000
FEx FET

Billings in advance — voyage charter TBARARE —12HEK
and CoA BESH 257 532

Contract liabilities relating to the advance payments made by the
customers or billing involved to the customers (whichever is
earlier) while underlying services are yet to be provided. Such
liabilities decreased as a result of decrease in advance payments
made by the customers or billing raised to the customers.

There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities
balances during the reporting period.

BRNRBELEEPI AR
HERBENRAXFAETFHAR
BEUABREELRE) - ARNEP AN
REXMEFHAKRERYD 5
BEBEMRD

BEPRAEHBEEHRRBELEEXN

Movements in contract liabilities: A4 B EEE
2021 2020
20214 2020
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Balance at 1 January K1 A1 B &R 532 187
Decrease in contract liabilities as aresult ~ FANERFEIT AL N BEDN
of recognising revenue during the year WA BUE A W B &R D
was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year (532) (187)
Increase in contract liabilities asaresult 2N BEALTELFHAKE
of billing in advance of voyage charter BEE LB EEM
and CoA 133 480
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of & FEfT RIBBUE A 4
advance payments made by customers B {&EE N 124 52
Balance at 31 December M12 A31 Bz #er 257 532

The amount of billings in advance of performance received that
is expected to be recognised as income no more than one year is
approximately US$257,000 (2020: US$532,000).

AR BB —FRAERAEKRZEZ
BHRELARAAERESE AN
257,000 7T (2020%F : 532,000 JT) °
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31. TRADE PAYABLES 31. EZENRE
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, REZAHEINE FENKIER
is as follows: BONTAT -
2021 2020
2021 F 20204
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
0to 30 days 0Z30H 4,243 1,695
31 to 60 days 31260H 1,455 150
Over 60 days 60 B A E 200 64
5,898 1,909
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are AEEESEMNFIENREBENE
denominated in USS. JLETE °
32. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 32. Hitt BN REREAER
2021 2020
2021 F 20204
USs$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Receipts in advance TAlFRIE 87 439
Other payables and accruals EtpEIE R ERTE R 936 941
1,023 1,380
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

HE2001F 12431 BILEE

33. KEBERERME

CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (@) EXFBRERS
Additions to right-of-use assets during the year of FREAEEERE 301,000
approximately US$301,000 (2020: US$143,000) were 3 7T (2020 4F < 143,000% 7T ) Jb
financed by lease liabilities. MEEBERN -
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) RIEEBIELXEBEMNEER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TREVAEERMEETHESE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and BENEE  BRE2KIER
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities EY METBHEANAERE
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows ABESREELHIERRESR
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of EHREgRAEEGFEHRERE
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. SBEAREEHIEIRER
EMBRIE-
At Additions At
1 January oflease  Cash flows, Non-cash Exchange 31 December
2021 liabilities net interest  differences 2021
R2021% i Re R2021%
1818 HEEE  RERE FReMR EXZE 12831R
Uss$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Uss'000 US$'000 Uss$'000
TEn TER TEn S TEn TEn
Borrowings fE% 43,534 - (2,603) - (253) 40,678
Lease liabilites HEAR 45355 301 (14,223) 18 2 31,453
Total &5 88,889 301 (16,826) 18 (251) 72,131
At Additions At
1 January of lease Cash flows, Non-cash Exchange 31 December
2020 liabilities net interest differences 2020
R2020F #ig He R2020F
1A18 HERE  REFE  HEe#s  EXEE AR
US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000 US§'000
TEn Tin TEn Tin TEL TEn
Borrowings B 52,769 - 9379) - 144 4353%
Lease liabllities HERRE 56,900 143 (11,717) 7 2 45355
Total @it 109,669 143 (21,09) 27 146 88,889
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HE2001F 12831 BILEE

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(c)

33. KMEBREREXRMFT(H)

Total cash outflow for leases (¢ HEBRESRHALEE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases HESFABRSESRERNESED
comprise the following: FELAT
2021 2020
2021 2020 FF
US$’000 USS$'000
FEx FET
Within operating cash flows BREEReRE 1,681 2,647
Within financing cash flows BREtERERE 14,223 11,717
15,904 14,364

These amounts relate to the following:

oup

%5 EE N I)1A B AERE -

2021 2020

20214 20204F

US$’000 USS$'000

FEx F=T

Lease rental paid BENEERS 15,904 14,364

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant

contingent liabilities (2020: Nil).
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 35 REHELH

The Group as lessee

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for office
premises. As at 31 December 2021, the portfolio of short-term
leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the
short-term lease expense disclosed in Note 19.

As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding lease commitments
relating to these leases is approximately US$5,000 (2020:
US$5,000).

The Group as lessor

Operating leases relate to future aggregate minimum charter hire
income receivable under non-cancellable time charters. The
lessee does not have an option to purchase the vessels at the
expiry of the lease period.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

AEBEREABA
AEBTFEHRPHAWET L CHA
B2 F12AH REHEE
HEHEMFIOBRENEHREERX
WEPEEHREEREE °

MR2021F 128318 BZZEHESR
AR AREEREAELN AS5000ETT
(2020 € : 5,000FETT) °

AEBEAHEA

AR ETHE EARER A A]H B R R
MIARRKEESWALEBRE - &
A 48 7 T HA R o B S B e AR Y
RIEIE -

SR REREENTNT

2021 2020

20215 20204

Us$’000 USS$'000

FErx FET

Within one year —FE PN 16,111 19,680
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFRF(BIEEEMTE) - 5426
16,111 25,106
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@) Inaddition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with

36. B ARS

(@) PFRARB BARSMRAE MM T AT

BB X5 MR -

ZS

SERFNEEBEHETT

its related parties during the year: LTRSS
2021 2020
2021 F 20204
US$’000 USS$'000
FTER TETT
Interest paid to related companies ) B Bt 2 B S T LR (BT )
(Note) 36 176

Note: Ms. Liu Weipeng and Mr. Yan XianKai (the spouse of Ms. Liu
Weipeng), the directors of some of the Group's subsidiaries, and Mr.
Xu Wenjun, the director of the Company, have beneficial interests
in the related companies.

(b)  The remuneration of directors and other members of key

Mt AEBEETHE QR ESFLu
Weipeng 2 + K& Yan XianKai 5t 4
(Liu Weipeng Z = Z B2 (8 ) LA K X
NARFBFRXI R ERZ SR

NAHEAEmiE o

b BEFERTIZEEBHMAER

management during the year was as follows: FARNFHET -
2021 2020
20214 2020 5
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Short-term benefits %G HAtE A 795 698
Retirement benefit Scheme contributions 3R /K18 FI| &t 21 =r 15 1
810 699
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37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021

37. XEWBE AT
2021128318 TEHE A A

are as follows: FEBET
Percentage
Place of ownership interest/
Principal place  incorporation/ Particular of voting power/
Name of operation establishment issued share capital profitsharing  Principal activities
AL/ fiEE/ RER/
£ TEERME  RUBE BERARAKFE BHARLS  TEXH
Directly held:
EERR:
Virtue Glory Holdings Limited Hong Kong The British 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Investment holding
Virgin Islands of USS1 each
Virtue Glory Holdings Limited & EBRIES 10000 R EREE RERR
1ETHEBR
Indirectly held:
BiEEE
Baustella Shipping (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited of HKS1 each chartering
ZHENK (BR)ERAT e & 10000k ERERE HAMRRAAEE
1BTHERR
Begstella Shipping (Hongkong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited of HKS1 each chartering
BRERB(BER)RRRR BB & 10000 R AR E (B HAMMRAMEE
1T E AR
China Union Sealand Group Limited - Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Investment holding
of HKS1 each
i EEEEER AT BB B 10000 R SR E (B REER
BT ERR
Jastella Shipping (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited of HKS1 each chartering
KAEMH(BB)ERRR &R Bl 10000 R B RAE HAMERAAEE
1ETLREER
Lotstella Shipping (Hongkong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited of HKS1 each chartering
FEEMB(BR)RRAR BB G 10000 R AR E (B HAMMRAMEE
1T E AR
Oasis Oriental Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Asphalt trading
of HKS1 each
RAEMNERAT &R Bl 10000 R B RAE EEE5
BT ERR
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37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

HE2001F 12831 BILEE

37. FEMBE LT (&)

Percentage
Place of ownership interest/
Principal place incorporation/ Particular of voting power/
Name of operation establishment issued share capital profit sharing  Principal activities
AL/ e/ RERk/
£ TEERHE AU BRTREHE BHARLS  TEEH
Phoenix Shipping (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited of HKS1 each chartering
BEHS(BE)ERAA B B 10000 B R EfE FERRRHMES
1BTHEBR
Shun Yuen Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Investment holding
Limited of HKS1 each
ER&E(BE)BRAA A &E 10000 R B REE RERR
1BTHERR
Xin De Yuan (Hong Kong) Shipping  Hong Kong Hong Kong 59,000,000 ordinary 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited shares of HK$ 1 each chartering
ERREE)MEERRE  FA BB 59000000 B IR E(E EAMMEMES
1T ERR
Xin Yuan Ocean Hong Kong Hong Kong 70,000,000 ordinary 100%  Vessel owning and
shares of RMB1 each chartering
[ERER &R &R 70,000,000 RE R EE FERRRHRES
ARB I THEBR
Xin Yuan Ship Management Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel management
(Hong Kong) Limited of HKS1 each
ERMBER (BB)ERAR BB BB 10,000 R B E (B hER
1BTHERR
Z8L Dolphin Shipping Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
of HKS1 each chartering
BREMEERAT A A 10000 R B RAE FAERhAEE
1T ERR
Bilxin Shipping Group Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore 1,000,000 ordinary 100%  Investment holding
shares of USS1 each
Bilxin Shipping Group Pte. Ltd. g g 1,000,000 R &R E RERR
IR EBR
Lilstella Shipping Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore 50,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
of USS1 each chartering
Lilstella Shipping Pte. Ltd. g g 50000 REREE BERARMHEE
IETHERR
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37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

HE2001F 12431 BILEE

37. TEMBE LT (&)

Percentage
Place of ownership interest/
Principal place incorporation/ Particular of voting power/
Name of operation establishment issued share capital profit sharing  Principal activities
AL/ ik RERk/
8 TEERME  RuBEH BRTREHE BNAREA  TERH
Orcstella Shipping Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore 50,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
of USS1 each chartering
Orcstella Shipping Pe. Ltd. g IR 50000 R EREE EERRAHAE
1ETHEBR
Poestella Shipping Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore 50,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
of US$T each chartering
Poestella Shipping Pte. Ltd. g s 50000 BREE BERARMHEE
Bkl
Rostella Shipping Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore 50,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
of USS1 each chartering
Rostella Shipping Pe. Ltd. A A 50000 B REE EENA RS
IETHERR
Fujian Xinyuanxinlanhai Importand ~ The PRC The PRC Registered capital of 100%  Sourcing of mechanical
Export Trade Company Limited RMB50,000,000 equipment and hardware
('Xinlanhai’) (Note) product for the Group’s
vessels and provision of
administrative services to
group companies
BRERNESELOES e hE AMER RAEERMRERA
ARRA ([3ER]) (W) AR 50000000 7T RERBHERARR

Note: Xinlanhai is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise established in the PRC. The

registered capital of Xinlanhai is RMB50,000,000 (2020: RMB50,000,000) and
RMB37,019,648 (2020: RMB28,873,478) has been paid up at 31 December

2021.

The above list contains the particular of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt securities.

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

SERFRMETHRE

i - MES R — MNP ERINIINEBED

o R2021F 128310 BN
it & A< A& A R # 50,000,000 7T (2020 £F -
A R #500000007T)  EFHAARE
37,019,648 7L(2020 FF = AR ¥ 28,873,478
JL) °

RN EZBREAKEXE &
EXBENHBRRNER - fiE

fY /8~ A B A TR E R E

FEU (AT BB A R A R EE

- %/%'\&EBA;zIB-MEJ&
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38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@ On 4 March 2022, the Group entered into a finance lease
agreement of US$16,000,000 for the additional working
capital of the Group. The lease is repayable in three years,
interest bearing and secured by the followings:

(i) charge over a vessel of the Group;

(i) corporate guarantee provided by the Company;

(iii)  restricted bank balance; and

(iv)  100% of the shares of a subsidiary.

Further on 9 March 2022, the Group received US$9,500,000,

the net amount after repayment of other loan, from the
financial institution.
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R2022%F3 848 » REBEETAL
% %8 /416,000,000 & ST B R
EnE - BRASBIRMEREING
BEET ZMHEAR=-FANE
& FPEILATSIIE B EEAR -

() AEE—MERAERL
(i) ANREHRHEERFER
(i) ERHIBITHER K

(v) —FEMERRE 2 EAR
H#&mM20226F3A98 » KX&EE
BB %% m s IR
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